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Corporate Profile Wt

Qceancering is a global oilfield provider of engineered services and products
primarily to the offshore oil and gas industry, with a focus on deepwater
applications. Through the use of its applied technology expertise, Oceancering
also serves the defense and acrospace industries.

Occancering’s business offerings include remotely operated vehicles, built-
to-order specialty hardware, deepwater intervention and manned diving services,
non-destructive testing and inspection, mobile offshore production systems, and

engineering and project management,

- M1SSION STATEMENT

BackGcrounD _ 3
Founded in 1964, Oceaneering has grown from an air and mixed gas diving EOceaneering’s mission is to
business in the Gulf of Mexico to a provider of diversified, engineered services and

 increase the net wealth of its

products operating worldwide. We have achieved this growth by executing a plan

of internal development augmented by strategic acquisitions. éSharChOlderS by pI‘OVidil’lg
During the year ended December 31, 2007, we earned net income of §180.4 .
.isafe, cost-effective, and

million on revenue of $1.7 billion while employing approximately 7,500 people

working out of 58 locations in 18 countries. We serve our offshore oil and gas Equality—based technical
customers through the trade names of Oceaneering International, Oceaneering : . . .

, o _ _ ‘ _solutions satisfying customer
Intervention Engincering (OIE), Oceaneering Multiflex, Oceaneering Grayloc, ¥
Oceaneering Rotator, and Oceancering Inspection Services. Our Advanced needs worldwide.
Technologies Group, which includes Oceaneering Technologies and Oceaneering !

Space Systems, serves our customers outside the oil and gas industry.

AsouT THE COVER

Oceaneering achieved record earnings in 2007, for the fourth consecutive year.,

Four of our five cilfield businesses set annual profit records. Pictured on the

cover is a Hydra® Millennium Plus, one of Oceaneering’s high-powered remotely
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Financial Highlights

EREVENUE

?GROSS MaRrcGIN
;OPERATING INcoME
;NET INcoME

iDiLuTep EARNINGS

$1,743,080
413,2855
289,623,
180,374

PEr SHARE

324

§(8 in thousands, exeept per share amouns)

2006 % INCREASE

2007

51,280,198 36%
296,121 40%
194,336 49%
124,494 45%

2.26 43%

% a4
; reported record earnings for the fourth censecutive year, up 45% over

i those of 2006, as we continued to benefit from our strategic focus on deepwater and

i subsea completion activity and increased participation in Gulf of Mexico hurricane

édamage projects. We achieved record Remotely Operated Vehicles, Subsea Products,

i Subsea Projects, and Inspection operating income performances.
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Letter to
Shareholders

We had an outstanding 2007 and achieved record earnings for the fourth consecutive year. Our strategic focus on

_T. Jav Corrins
"PRESIDENT AND CHIEF
Execurive OFFICER

providing services and products to support decpwater and subsea completion activity served as the linchpin for our
carnings growth, Additionally, we benefited from performing more hurricane damage projects, as we placed a new
saturation diving system into service and chartered two vessels and a barge to augment our existing vessel fleet.

Net income was 45% above that of 2006. In acknowledgment of our continued earnings growth and our future
prospects, the market price of Oceancering's stock during the vear rose 70%, almost 20% more than the increase in the .
Oil Service Sector Index (OSX) quoted on the Philadelphia Stock Exchange (PHLX}. This was the sixth time out '
of the eight years in this decade that Oceancering’s stock outperformed the OSX. In November, the PHLX selected
Oceancering to become one of the companies in the OSX in recognition of the diversity of our service and product

‘line offerings and our worldwide market presence.

Our 2007 earnings growth was broad-based, with four of our five oilficld business segments setting annual profit
records. This performance was attributable to: increased demand within our offshore oilfield service and product
markets, our business expansion strategy, and exceptional operational execurtion. The market environment during the
year was such that we were able to achieve strong utilization of our assets at favorable prices.

We continued to find good organic growth and acquisition opportunities and invested more than our net cash
provided by operating activitics. Our capiral expenditures totaled $234 million and included: 1) ROV fleet
expansion and upgrades; 2) facility expansions in the United States, Scotland, and Norway; 3) the acquisition of

Ifokus — a Norwegian designer and manufacturer of specialty subsea products, particularly ROV tooling; and
4) vessel upgrades. These investments position Oceaneering for increased earnings in the years ahead.

Looking forward, we expect the price of oil will remain at high levels. In this environment, oil and gas
companies, our customers, are projected to increase their capital spending — 4 rising percentage of which is expected
to be spent on decpwater fields. Decpwater is one of the best frontiers for adding large hydrocarben reserves with
high production flow rates at relatively low finding and development costs.

Specific signs of a healthy deepwater market that will drive demand for our services and products are evident:

+ About two-thirds of the deepwater field discoveries around the world are not yet in production;

+ Over 95% of the existing 202 floating rigs in the world are under contract, and over half of these are contractcdf

through 200%;

+ Seventy-four new floating rigs are scheduled to be added to the worldwide fleet through 2011, up from 45 a

year ago. Fify-three have already secured term contracts with an average length of over five years; and

+ During the next five years, subsea production tree orders arc predicted to be at least 515 per year and annual

demand for umbilicals is projected to approach 3,200 kilomerers. These forecasts represent increases of 35%

and 110%, respectively, over the last five years.

2 OCEANEERING INTERNATIONAL
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We believe our business prospects over the next several years are excellent. With our existing assets,
we are well positioned to supply a wide range of the services and products required to support the
growing deepwater exploratton, development, and production cfforts of our customers. Furthermore, we
plan to expand our ability to participate in this market by continuing to grow organically and making
additional acquisition investments. At year-end, our debt-to-capitalization was 18% and we remain
committed to using our resources to continue to grow.

For 2008 we are forecasting another record year with EPS in the range of $3.50 to $3.80. We project
operating income improvements of $30 million to $40 million in our Subsea Preducts business and
$25 million to $35 million in our ROV business. We expect to benefit from our 2006 and 2007 Subsea
Products investments, which increased our manufacturing capacity and rental service capabilities. For ROVs,
we anticipate continued pricing improvement and expansion of our fleet to meet rising customer demand.
‘We foresee decreasing demand for our shallow-water vessel and diving services as hurricane damage projects
near completion. Additionally, four of our six company-owned vessels will be temporarily out of service
during the year undergoing mandatory regulatory drydock inspections. Consequently, we expect the
operating profit from our Subsea Projects business to decline by $25 million to $30 million.

Achieving our growth objective for 2008 — to set a fifth consecutive EPS record — will be challenging.
Many of our operations will be running at activity levels not previousty experienced. To ensure consistency
in the quality of our services and products, we are commitred to improving our business processes and the
effectiveness of how we work. Throughout the organization we have teams working on wavs to offer more
value to our customers, control our operating expenses, and optimize the returns on our capital investments.

A skilled, well-trained, and safety-conscious workforce remains the key to our success, as validated
by our record-setting safety performance in 2007, We will continue to invest in recruiting, training,
developing, and retaining qualified personnel. During 2007, in our ROV business alone, we conducted
training for over 500 technicians recruited from 13 countries. We also held classes to prepare 100 ROV
technictans to become supervisors and provided advanced leadership training to over 160 experienced
supervisors, We have six training centers around the world in which we provide ROV personnel
instruction. In 2008 we anticipate hiring and training 500 more technicians and promoting additional
personnel to supervisory positions.

Another significant challenge we face in 2008 is to invest our substantial cash flow to drive cur earnings
growth in 2009 and beyond. We anticipate our cash flow will exceed our organic growth oppertunities,
Consequently, we will continue to pursue acquisitions during the vear, particularly in the subsea products
area. As In the past, we will be a disciplined acquirer of businesses at reasonable prices. We are committed
to increasing shareholder value,

This is clearly an exciting time for Oceaneering. I'd like to commend our employees who made our
record 2007 resules possible. Their commitment to safely provide high-quality solutions to our custorners’
needs provides the foundation for our continued success.

Tlcok forward to leading Oceaneering to anocther record year in 2008.

TNy L

T. Jar CoLLins
.PreEsIDENT AnD CHieF Execurive Qrricer
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Oceaneering
at a Glance

2007 BVICW

:Eamings of $180 million were the highest in Oceaneering’s history, 45% above last year's
record result. We achieved record ROV, Subsea Products, Subsea Projects, and Inspection
‘operating income performances.

. During the year we continued to position the organization for future growth and
increased profitability. This included investing $234 million to upgrade and expand our
service and product manufacturing capacity. Eighty percent of this investment was spent on
.our ROV and Subsea Products businesses — the two operations thar offer exceptional growth

‘prospects as they are tied to deepwater and subsca completion activity.

‘VEHICLES 1

-‘We achieved record financial results due Wc achieved record financial results due to
‘to higher average revenue per day-on- fimproved profit contributions from OIE
‘hire, growth of our average flect size, and Especialry products and Multiflex umbilical
‘an increase in our fleet utilization to 87%. ésales. Operating income rose by $39 million,
Operating income improved by $33 million, ;over 70%, on an increase in revenue of

“or 30%. :nearly 45%.

We expect the profit contribution from ;We forecast the profit contribution from
‘this segment to improve in the range .this segment to improve in the range of
‘of $25 milkion to $35 million due to an '$30 million to $40 million due to higher
‘increase in average pricing and growth sales in each of OIE’s product lines and

in our average fleet size. We anticipate Multiflex umbilicals.

adding approximately 30 new vehicles to
our fleet.

4 OCEANEERING INTERNATIONAL

iWe achieved record financial results
ion the strength of our increased

iparticipation in hurricane damage
projects in the Gulf of Mexico.
lOperating income increased

3533 million, over 55%.

2008 QUTLOOK

‘We anticipate operating income to
;decrcasc in the range of $25 million to
1830 million. We foresee lower demand
fffor our shallow-water vessel and diving
Eserviccs, as hurricane damage projects near
‘completion. Additionally, four of our six
‘company-owned vessels will temporarily

be out of service undergoing mandatory
regulatory drydock inspections.

uBsEa Projecrs.
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. Wc expect to achieve a new earnings record in 2008 and EPS in the range of §3.50 to $3.80 on the
jstrcngth of operating income improvements from ROVs and Subsea Products.

: For 2008 we expect the market environment for our deepwater oilfield services and products
éwill continue to be characterized by robust demand. This demand is being driven by high crude
épriccs, limited non-OPEC supply growth, significant reservoir depletion rates, and increased
Ehydrocarbon consumption. In this market we believe the trend for our customers to invest their

‘cash flows in deepwater projects will continue.

DVANCED TECHNOLOGIES

MosiLe OFFSHORE

‘PRODUCTION SYSTEMS

{We achieved record financial results due iPre-tax income contribution decreased ‘We achieved an increase in operating

‘to strong demand growth in all of the ilargely as a result of reduced production fincome due to better profit performances
‘geographical markets we serve and our success ithroughput at the Medusa Spar, costs by all of our non-oilfield business
lin selling more value-added services and iincurred to mobilize the Ocean Pensador :operations. This included: general
Eimproving pricing. Operating income grew by gfrom the U.S. to Southeast Asia, and a lower ‘engineering services; submarine repair,
inearly $8 million, over 50%, on a 30% increase idayrate for the Ocean Legend. ‘maintenance, and engineering projects
iin revenue. i for the U.5. Navy; and engineering services
and hardware for NASA.

2008 QUILOOK e
Wc anticipate the operating income ‘We expect the pre-tax income {We anticipate the operating income
iperformance of our Inspection business icontribution to decline as a result of: a iof this segment to decrease due to
éto improve due to increased activity and ilack of profit contribution from the PB ithe completion of a major contract
thighcr pricing, iSan Jacints;, a drop in production at the ifor engineering services at the end of

Medusa Spar; and a lower dayrate for the iSeptember 2007.
iOcean Legend. :
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Remotely
Operated Vehicles

_FinanciaL SumMmary_

We achieved all-time high revenue, gross margin, and operating income. This was

due to a 16% increase in average pricing and a 12% growth in our work class fleet ~ ;WeLLneap Creanixe Toow Recovery

days on hire. The rise in days on hire was the result of a 10% expansion of our average
fleet size and an improvement in fleet utilization to 87% from 85% in 2006.
Operating income increased 30% and operating income per day-on-hire improved
by 16%. Operating income as a percent of revenue was 27%, equaling the record set
in 2006.

Morcax Crry ROV ManuracTuring Faciuity

: :Sunsea TREE INTERVENTION

6 OCEANEERING [NTERNATIONAL




Remorery OFERATED VEHICLES i:

VenicLE MaINTENANCE IN VESSEL HANGAR Bay

DuURING THE YEAR WE:

B Maintained our position as owner of the
industry’s largest work class ROV flect with
an cstimated 35% market share — over twice
that of the next largest service supplier. We
continued to be the primary provider of
ROV drill support service with an estimated
market share of over 55%, almost three times
that of the second largest ROV supplicr, and
remained the principal provider of this service
in the UL.S. Gulf of Mexico, Norway, West
Africa, and Mexico. We have a drill support
market share of approximately 85% on the 35
existing 5™ and 6™ generation floating drilling
rigs in the global fleet and have secured 19

of the 20 ROV contracts awarded on the

74 announced floating drilling rigs under
construction for delivery over the next

four vears.

B Became the fargest global provider of
construction and field maintenance ROV
services. We achieved this by increasing the
mumber of vehicles we provide to offshore
construction contractors and to subsca
support vessel owners. The future market

growth outlook for ficld maintenance ROV

1007 AMNUAL REPORT
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services looks particularly promising as there
are approximately 100 subsea supporst vessels
being built for delivery over the next four
vears, which will likely require at least one
ROV each.

B Grew our fleet size to 210 vehicles, up from

186 at the beginning of the year. We added 31
new vehicles, disposed of 7 older systems, and
upgraded 30 existing units as we maintained
our strategy of operating a modern work class
ROV flect. About half of the new vehicles,

as was the case in 2006, went to work in drill
support service and the others were used for
construction and production maintenance

on the growing number of deepwater field
developments.

B Opened a new ROV manufacturing center
in Morgan City, Louisiana. We can now build
up to four vehicles per month and anticipate
putting into service approximately 30 more
new systems in 2008, We have already secured
contract commitments for over 20 of them, a

reflection of the growing market demand for

.jROV services and our status as the premier
isupplier. We expect to put about 20 of
éour new 2008 vehicles initialty in drill
Esupporr service.

B Continued to pioneer ROV system

. innovations. This included adding an
fadvanced autopiloting feature into our ROV

*:control software, acoustic sensor imaging

:to conduct operations in zero visibility

isea conditions, and high definition video

écapnbi[ity to our cameras. The autopiloting

: Efeaturc enables precision movement and

| isrntion keeping of the vehicle. This capability,
gsimilar to dynamic positioning on vessels,
ircduccs operator fatigue and enhances
Epiloting skills, particularly in navigating

s icomplex subsea hardware installations and

using intervention tooling in poor visibility.

. 'Acoustic imaging allows us to build a

wirtual 3-D image of the work site and
‘operate an ROV when conventional cameras

‘are inadequate.

OCEANEERING INTERNATIONAL 7
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Subsea
Products

FinaNciaL SuMMARY

We achieved record financial resuits. Operating income improved over 70% on
éhigher sales of OIE specialty products and Multiflex umbilicals. We also invested
Eover $65 million to increase our manufacturing and rental service capabilities
;to participate in the secular market growth for specialty subsea hardware
icurrently underway.

: Operating income margin increased to a record high of 18%. We improved
;OIE product pricing and manufacturing execution through our continuous
;improvemcnt initiatives. We also benefited from increased throughput and the

?resolution of 2006 startup problems at our U.S. umbilical plant.

InsTaLLation Workover ControL SysTeEM (IWOCS) DepLoyMENT

8 (OCEANEERING INTERNATIONAL

URING THE YEAR WE:

; M Expanded our product line oftering

by acquiring Ifokus Engineering AS, 2
Norwegian designer and manufacturer of
ispecialty subsea products. In addition to ROV
tooling and interfaces, [fokus product lines
E'1nc1ude hardware to perform fluid transfer
:and control, valve intervention, and hydrate
Ercmcdiation. Specific Ifokus products of note
Eare leading-edge electric valve actuators and
gmultiﬁlnction hot stabs.

I Obtained three contracts for subsea
Eblowout preventer (BOP) control systems,
éwith a combined value in excess of $30

{ ‘million. The orders include two discrete

hydraulic systems for moored, semisubmersible
drilling rigs undergoing major upgrades.
The third is a microprocessor-based system

for an ultra-deepwater, sixth generation,

‘dynamically positioned drillship currently
‘under construction. Future demand for subsea
- BOP control systems is tied to the announced

Ecxpansion of the global floating drilling

érig fleet, totaling 74 units at year-end, and

Eadditional upgrades to existing rigs, which we

Ebelieve are highly likely.
5 I Commenced manufacturing hybrid subsea
épump and steel tube production control

- {umbilicals totaling approximately 31 miles

in length for the BC-10 field development

 ioffshore Brazil. This will be the first full field

development based on subsea oil and gas

separation and pumping. Hybrid umbilicals

i offer several capabilities in a single integrated




;I ) .lﬁ' ;
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-

UmeiLicar DistrisuTion SysTEM

‘product, which generally lower an offshore
Vﬁcld operator's development cost.

B Completed significant plant expansions
in the U.S. and Norway, and opened a new
facility in Dubai. The U.S. expansion was
made to accommodate the ramp up of

our BOP control system manufacturing
operation. In Norway we added plant space
to accommodate additional Rotator valve
fabrication, assembly, and testing, The Dubai
plant was opened to meet escalating regional
demand for Grayloc clamps, specifically for
offshore topside production facility manifolds
and LNG plant installations.

B Obtained a large contract to supply
-umbilical distribution and connection
:equiprnent for the initial Shenzi field
development located within the Gulf of
‘Mexico in water depth of approximately
.4’300 feet. The order is for three suction-

‘pile-supported umbilical distribution system

structures, 40 steel tbe flying lead assemblies,

Sunsea Proouvers i 2007 ANNuae ReporT

 ROVDemoveo'

EvLecTroNic CALIPER

P

junction plates, and assorted test equipment.

Each structure will have umbilical termination, - .

hydraulic, and electrical/communication
assemblies that will be independently
retrievable for ease of maintenance.

B Continued to develop new specialty
subsea products. These included ROV
tools, connectors and other hardware for use
in pipeline repairs, and a new generation
launch and recovery system (LARS) for

our Installation/Workover Control Systems
(TWOCS). The new LARS enables us to
utilize an IWOCS without interfering with a
rig’s moon pool operations, even in adverse

water currents,

Preerine Repair anp ConnNECTOR SYSTEM

OCEANEERING INTERNATIONAL
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Subsea
Projects

FinancIAL SuMMARY

We realized record financial results on the strength of our increased participation
in hurricane damage projects in the Gulf of Mexico (GOM). Operating income
increased over 55% as we henefited from placing a new saturation diving system

into service and chartering two vessels and a barge to augment our existing fleet.
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DURING THE YEAR WE:

B Obrtained two contracts from BP to
provide vessel and remotely operated vehicle
{(ROV) serviees to support hurricane damage
platform decommissioning operations. Under
terms of cuch contract, we are providing a
dynamically positioned ROV support vessel
cquipped with three ROVs — two work class
and one observation class. Both contracts
have terms of one year that commenced in
May and June.

B linished construction in March of a
ten-man situration Lliviug system, namud
Nautilns. We sccured hurricane damage work
for this assct to perform platform repairs,
platform debris removal, and well plug and
abandonment support services. Hurricane
projects of these types are expected to lase for
the next two or three vears, albeit ar lower
levels of total overall market demand. Longer
term, the aging GOM infrastructure and
growing operator preference for state-of-the-
art equipment should enabte us to keep the
Nautifus protitably employed.

B Completed in March a capiral investraent
in the Perfarnier o improve its dynamic
positioning (2P} capability to Class 2 and
install one of our new work cluss ROV,
Following its upgrades, we used this vessel on
a variety of projects including platform debris
recovery, pipeline inspections, and strake
installations. We are now able to work The
Performer in close proximity to platforms and

spars and use more specialized ROV twoling

-W-...“_ o —
e N . [ s



while performing deepwater inspection, repair,
and maintenance {(IRM) projects.

B Took delivery in April of the Ocean
Intervention 111, a Class 2 DT vessel, which

we have chartered for a primary term of three
vears. It was initinlly deployed on one of the
BI* downed platform contracts and we are
marketing this vessel for deepwater installation
and TRV projects upon completion of this
contract. The vessel has been outhitted with
rwo of our work class ROVs, one of which is a
300-hp Hydra® Maximum.

B Chartered another DP vessel, the Olympic
Intervention IV, for a five-year term with an
anticipated stare date in the third quarter

of 2008. Upon its arrival in the GOM,

this vessel will be outhitted with two of our
high-specification work class ROVs. We

are marketing it for use commencing in

the fourth quarter of 2008 to augment

our ability to perform subsea hardware
mstallation and [RM projects, and conduce
well intervention services in the ultra-

deep waters of the GOM. ‘The Olympic
Intervention IV is being built to an overall
length of approximately 312 teet and will
have a Class 2 DI system, accommodations
for 100 personnel, a helideck, a 1530-ron heave

compensated crane, and a working moonpool.

Ocrdn Proecr Ann Ocray INSPECTOR SUPPORTING
UnDERWATER PraTrorM REPALRS

Additionally, the vessel will be equipped with
a S‘.ltc”itc COmmuniC:lti()nS S}'STC[“ C:lp;ll)lc
of transmitting video for real-time work
abservation by shore personnel.

B Accomplished our first well intervention
project using our proprictary Subsea
Intervention Lubricator System (S11.5%)

10 CiOSC :Uld OPC“ prOduCti()ll 7ONnes i[1 Hi
subsea well. The STLS® system is designed
to perform riserless wireline, electric ling,
and plug and abandonment operations

in deepwater without requiring the use

of a floating driiling rig or large offshore
construction vessel. As this technology
gains acceptance and the number of subsea
completions inereases, we are confident SILS®
projects will become a growing part of our

vessel-based subsea projects business,

SusseEa Projners
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Inspection

FiNaNcIAL SUMMARY
We achieved best-ever financial results due to increased demand tor our
services in all of the geographic markets we serve and to our success in selling
more value-added services and improving pricing. Operating income grew by
over 30% on the strength of our ability to obrain contract awards tor work in
the UK., West Africa, and the Middle East and an escalation in North Sea

inspection activity under a contract awarded in 2006.

12 Qeraverring INTERNATION A
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DURING THE YEAR WE:

B Benefited from securing several new
contracts and contract extensions for our
services. We anticipare continuing to profic
from them in 2008 and bevond. These
included awards relared w: LNG receiving
and storage facilities, nuclear power stagons,
and petrochemical plants in the UK ;
manpower and NIDT services in West Afvica:
and offshore pipelines, LNG processing
plants, and offshore production facilities in the
Middle Tnast.

B increased significantly the amount of
services we provided to BP under a contrace
sceured in 2006. “The assers covered by the
contract include all of BI”s upstream oil and
gas facilitics, both onshore and offshore, in
the United Kingdom and Norway, Under
terms of the contract we are providing risk-
based inspection plans derived from detailed
corrosion assessments. Furthermore, we are
compiling trend and defect analyses to support
faciliey maintenance and repair plans and to
meet regulatory requirements.

W Acquired CET Medway, an inspection
company based in southeast England.
Medway provides a comprehensive range of
services to the oil, gas, petrochemical, power,
and fabrication markers and augments our
existing operations. This aequisition positions
us to take advantage of significant business
growth opportunities in the area.

B [ntensified our X-ray pipeline crawler
training effort in Batam, Indonesia. We

can now deploy erawlers and Indonesian
engineering and maintenance personnel
throughout the world; this capability
alleviates the severe shortage of experienced

technicians in many of the market areas

INsrECTION i 2007 ANNUaL REPORT

Pumeing StatioN Prre
CoRROS10N SCREENING

we serve. We also conducted our frst
automated ultrasonic (AUT) pipeline
inspections for customners in West Africa
and rhe Middle East. Due to enhanced
productivity on offshore pipelay barges
and inherent safety advanrages, we expeet
continued growth in the use of AUT
technelogy in 2008 and bevond.

‘SEMIsUBMERSIBLE Rig
Hurr InspecTION

B Continued to invest in a variety of high
rechnology equipment to enhance our abiliry
to pertorm computerized radiography,
corrosion mapping, and long-range
ultrasonic inspections. These deviees are
being used to inspeet oftshore production
facilities and petrochemical and power
generation plants over their life evele. Thuse
specialized inspection services address
evolving requirenents for more cost-effeetive
merhods to identify integrity issues, plan and
perform preventive maintenunce, and ensure

relinbility and safery,

OceEANEERING INTERNATIONAL 13
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Mobile Offshore
Production Systems

Operating income declined as aresult of alower dayrate for the Ocean Legend, ;
which went into effect in May, and the mobilization of the Ocean Pensador
from the U.S. to Southeast Asia. Equity income from our ownership in the

Medusa Spar also dropped as a result of lower hydrocarbon throughput at ~ °
?EOrJEAN PRODUCE_R ]

this offshore production facility. o - -
s
DURING THE YEAR WE:
; 1
B Took redelivery of the PB San Jacinto after it came off contract in July and received § -
1 $2.8 million settlement from the charterer in lieu of the barge being restored to the ' 1
; ~

condition specified in the contract. We are investigating our options with respect to

the future use of this asset. Most likely, it will be sold in 2008,
B Mobilized the Ocean Pensader from the U.S. to Southeast Asia. We moved this

used tanker, which we acquired in 2006, to better position it in the market place. The
vessel is now closer to several shipyards capable of modifying it for production or
storage service, either by us or another company should we decide to sell it.

W Continued to charter the Ocean Producer and Occan Legend. They both performed

bevond all contractual operating requirements with excellent safety performance.

i0cEAN PRoDUCER PROCESSING
‘EquipmenT

¢ {Qckan Lecenn Propuckp WaTer MoniToRING
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Apvarcep TEcHNOLOGIES 1 2007 ANNUAL REPORT

Advanced DURING THE YEAR WE:
Te Chno:logies :l Completed one major overhaul and

repaired four of the U.S, Navy's Dry Deck
Shelters {DIS), which are mounted on

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ‘nuclear submarines to deploy Special

Operating Forces. We also installed the
ADTECH operating income improved by 25% over 2006 results due to better

" fittings to accommuodate use of the shelters

profit performances by all of our non-oilfield business operations. This included: o5 fve of the Navy's submarines. All of this
-general engineering services; submarine repair, maintenance, and engineering | ‘work was performed under the seven-year

projects for the U.S. Navy; and space-related engincering services and hardware | term contract we secured in 2006 to provide
for NASA. .engineering, technical, and maintenance and

* repair services for life cycle support of the
Navy’s DDS.

B Secured contracts to conduct maintenance
on six 1.5, Navy Landing Craft Air Cushion
vessels, Our work included making repairs
to fuel and waste oil tank plating and welds
and correcting lift fan misalignments. We
‘also installed design improvements to the

gas wrbine engine intake filters, the lift fan
bearing support structures, hydraulic control
svstems, and the electronic controls for radios,
radar, and habitability.

W Supported all Space Shuttle flights and

many of the International Space Station

_j_[; i operations conducted during the year. Our

"ULS. NAVY SUBMARINE M AINTENANCE " work scope included the design, manufacture,

. and maintenance of robotic tools used during
space walks and the training of NASA
astronauts.

B Completed the design of a cranc system to
transfer cargo containers between large ships
at sea in support of the ULS. Navy’s Sea Basing
Initiative. We will oversee the manufacture

of this crane to conduct testing in 2008. We
also were awarded two additional contracts to
design a ramp capable of transferring tracked

“and wheeled military vehicles from ship to

ship while underway and a system to transfer

containers from large to small ships at sea.
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Oceaneering International Locations

:CorRPORATE HEADQUARTERS

{OCEANEERING INTERNATIONAL, [NC.

511911 FM 529 TeLEPHONE: (713) 329-4500
‘Houstow, Texas 77041-3000 Fax: (713) 329-4951
P.O. Box 40494 WWW.OCEANEERING.COM

-HousTon, TExAs 77240-0494

RecronaL HEADQUARTERS ... ‘OperaTioNAL Bases .

OceaNEERING INTERNATIONAL, INC. ANTERNATIONAL UNITED STATES

{5004 RAILROAD AVENUE
iIMorgan CrTy, Louisiana 70380
ETELEPHONP.: (985) 3955247

Fax: (985) 395-5443

{CABINDA, Angora HunTsvILLE, ALABAMA

iLoniTo, ANcoLa San Dieco, CaLiForNIA

‘Luaxpa, ANGoLA GaLes Ferry, ConxecTicuT

PerTH, WA, AUSTRALIA OrLANDO, FLORIDA
; s

{OCEANEERING INTERNATIONAL iBaku, AzERBALAN Panama Crtv, FLoripa
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; : ,
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‘TeLEPHONE: (44-122 8500 Y i

:F ( (-1;4 . 4) 7585 E;\l.eu_.—um, EquaTtoriaL GuiNea Moreax Crrv, LOUISIANA
‘Fax: (44-1224) 758519 Y

iMumzar, INpia New IseR1A, LOUisiana

: EBALIKPAI’AN, InpoNESIA
iQceaNeerING INTERNATIONAL Dusal LLC ‘ New OnrLEaNs, Loutsiana

{BaTAM, INDONESIA HAaNGVER, MARYLAND

‘AL Moosa Tower 2, SUITE 135
:Sueikn Zavep Roap
iDusal, UniTen Aras EMiRATES

:Hax~otr, Inpoxesia PorTsmouTH, NEw HampsHIRE

{JaKARTA, INDONESIA MinpLETOwN, REODE [SLAND

iKuara Lumpur, Mavavsia

“TELEPHONE: (971-4) 311-7500 i HousTow, Texas

‘Fax: (971-4) 331-0800 EMnu, Sarawax, MaLavsia InGLESIDE, TEXAS

) EMEXICO D.F, Mexico CHESAPEAKE, VIRGINIA
{OCEANEERING ADVANCED TECHNOLOGIES iCp. pkL CarmEeN, MExico

i;rool Dorsey Roan gEKET’ NiGERIA

‘Haxover, MARYLAND 21076 EIKE]A, Lacos, NIGERIA

ETELEPHDN £: (443) 459-1700 gPORT HarcourT, N1GERIA

‘Fax: (443) 459-3980 {WaRrrl1, NIGERIA

: iNODELAND, NORWAY
MARINE ProDUCTION SYSTEMS ;

: iSTAVANGER, NORWAY
‘Do Brasii Ltpa. H

iJurONG, SINGAPORE
iZuG, SWITZERLAND
:Asu Duasr, UAE.

‘Praca Avrcipis PEREIRA, N° 1-PARTE
‘TLHA pa CoNcEICAO/NITEROI
:Ri10 pE Janeiro BrasiL 24.050-350

{TrLEPHONE: {55 21) 2729-8g00 §D”B'“' UAE.

Fax: (55 21) 2722-1515 {ABERDEEN, ScoTLAND, UK.

: :GLoUCESTER, ExcLanD, UK.
jOcmNun:Nc InTErRNaTIONAL PTE LTD E]MMINGHAM,ENGLAND,U.K.
;No. 1 Kwone Min Roap SLONDON- Encrano, UK.
‘Jurone, SIRGAPORE 628704 ‘RosyTh, ScorLanp, UK.
TeLepHONE: (65) 6261 3211 ;SDUTHAMPTON, Encranp, UK.

EFAX: (65) 6261 3230 ESTOCKTON, Encranp, UK.
: iSwansea, Wares, UK.
;OCEA‘\EEMNG AS {RocHEsTER, Encranp, UK.
%JATT-“VAGF-N' Hinna E\NHITLF,\:’ Bripce, Encranp, UK.
‘PB 8024 4068 ;
_STAVANGER, NORWAY
‘TeLePHONE: (47} 51 82 51 00

‘Fax: {47) 518z 52 50

Wi LToN, EncrLann, UK.
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PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following graph compares our total shareholder return to the Standard & Poor’s 500 Stock
Index (“S&P 5007), the weighted average return generated by a peer group from December 31,
2002 through December 31, 2007. The peer group companies for this performance graph are
Global Industries, Ltd., Halliburton Company, McDermott International, Inc., Cal Dive International,
Inc. (formerly known as Helix Energy Solutions Group, Inc.), Bristow Group Inc., Acergy S.A.
(formerly known as Stolt Offshore S.A.), and Tidewater, Inc.

It is assumed in the graph that: (1) $100 was invested in Oceaneering Common Stock, the S&P
500, and the Peer Group on December 31, 2002; (2} the peer group investment is weighted
based on the market capitalization of each individual company within the peer group at the
beginning of each period; and (3) any dividends are reinvested. We have not declared any
dividends during the period covered by the graph. The shareholder return shown is not
necessarily indicative of future performance.

Comparison of Cumulative Shareholder Return
for Oceaneering, S&P 500, and a Selected Peer Group

Comparison of Cumulative Shareholder Return
$600 -
$500 4
$400 -
$300 -
$200 -
$100 ¢
so L) L L] L) 1
12/31/02 12/31/03 12/31/04 12/31/05 12/31/06 12131107
—o—0Qceaneering —0— S&P 500 —— Peer Group
December 31,
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
Oceaneering 100.00 113.18 150.85 201.21 320.94 544 .46
S&P 500 100.00 128.68 142.69 149.70 173.34 182.86
Peer Group 100.00 134.16 203.49 325.61 358.88 481.13
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OCEANEERING COMMON STOCK

Our common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol Oll. We submitted to the
New York Stock Exchange during 2007 a certification of our Chief Executive Cfficer regarding compliance
with the Exchange's corporate governance listing standards. We also included as exhibits to our annual
report on Form 10-K, as filed with the SEC, the certifications of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer required under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

In June 2006, we effected a two-for-one stock split in the form of a stack dividend. All historical share and
per share data in this annuat report reflect this stock split.

The following table sets out, for the periods indicated, the high and low sales prices for our common stock
as reported on the New York Stock Exchange (consolidated transaction reporting system):

2007 2006
For the quarter ended: High Low High Low
March 31 $ 43.64 $ 3540 $ 30.08 $ 2505
June 30 54.08 4210 45.85 27.55
September 30 76.85 52.03 47.23 27.80
December 31 85.88 62.07 46.91 28.73

On February 15, 2008, there were 356 holders of record of our common stock. On that date, the closing
sales price, as quoted on the New York Stock Exchange, was $64.19. We have not made any common
stock dividend payments since 1877, and we currently have no plans to pay cash dividends. Qur credit
agreements contain restrictions on the payment of dividends. See Note 4 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements included in this report.

We did not repurchase any shares of our common stock in 2007 or 2006.
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SELECTED HISTORICAL FINANCIAL DATA

The following table sets forth certain selected historical consolidated financial data and should be read in
conjunction with Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation
and our Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes included in this report. The following information
may not be indicative of our future operating results.

Results of Operations:

Year Ended December 31,

{in thousands, except per share

amounts) 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Revenue $1,743,080 $1,280,198 $998,543 $780,181 $639,249
Cost of services and products 1,329,795 984,077 819,263 648,378 528,465
Gross margin 413,285 296,121 179,280 131,803 110,784
Selling, general and
administrative expense 123,662 101,785 85,211 67,939 56,787
Income from operations $ 289623 $ 194336 _$ 94069 _9 63864 _$ 53997
Net income $ 180,374 $ 124494 § 62680 § 40,300 $ 29,307
Diluted earnings per share 3.24 2.26 1.17 0.78 0.60
Depreciation and amortization 93,776 80,456 79,613 65,619 56,963
Capital expenditures, including
business acquisitions 233,795 193,842 142,269 153,184 100,370
Other Financial Data:

As of December 31,
(in thousands, except ratios) 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Working capital ratio 1.98 1.87 1.797 1.62 1.69
Working capital $ 331594 $ 243939 $171,566 $106,204 $ 921,793
Total assets 1,531,440 1,242,022 989,568 819,664 662,856
LLong-term debt 200,000 194,000 174,000 142,172 122,324
Shareholders' equity 915,310 696,764 536,118 454,437 359,375
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
QPERATION

All statements in this annual report, other than statements of historical facts (including, without limitation,
statements regarding:

our business strategy;,

our plans for future operations;

industry conditions;

our expectations about 2008 revenue growth, net income and segment operating results, and the

factors underlying those expectations, including our expectation that the demand for our

deepwater oilfield services and products will remain high as a result of the factors we specify in

the “Executive Overview” below;

» projections refating to subsea tree orders and industry-wide umbilical orders for 2008;

+ the adequacy of our working capital and cash flows to support our operations and ongoing annual
cash requirements, including debt service;

+ the adequacy of our accruals for uninsured expected liabilities from workers' compensation,
maritime employer’s liability and general liability claims;

» our expectations about the profit contribution and cash flows from our investment in Medusa Spar
LLC, and the factors underlying those expectations,

+ our expectations regarding inspection and repair work for 2008 made necessary by hurricanes;

¢ our backlog; and

« our belief relating to our total unrecognized tax benefits)

are forward-looking statements made pursuant to the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These forward-looking statements are subject to various risks,
uncertainties and assumptions, including those we refer to under the headings "Risk Factors” and
"Cautionary Statement Concerning Forward-Looking Statements” in Part | of our annual report on

Form 10-K. Although we believe that the expectations reflected in such forward-looking statements are
reasonable, because of the inherent limitations in the forecasting process, as well as the relatively volatile
nature of the industries in which we operate, we can give no assurance that those expectations will prove
to have been correct. Accordingly, evaluation of our future prospects must be made with caution when
relying on forward-locking information.

OCEANEERING INTERNATIONAL
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Executive Overview

The table that follows sets out our revenue and profitability for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006
and 2005.

Year Ended December 31,

(doflars in thousands) 2007 2006 2005

Revenue $1,743,080 $1,280,198 $ 998,543
Gross Margin 413,285 296,121 179,280
Gross Margin % 24% 23% 18%
Operating Income 289,623 194,336 94,069
Operating Income % 17% 15% 9%
Net Income 180,374 124,494 62,680

We generate approximately 90% of our revenue, and 95% of our operating income, from our services and
products pravided to the il and gas industry. In 2007, we increased revenue by 36%, led by our Subsea
Projects (up 66%), Subsea Products (up 43%) and ROV (up 30%) segments. Our Subsea Projects
segment, which operates only in the Gulf of Mexico, continued to benefit from performing more hurricane
damage-related work, as we placed a new saturation diving system into service and chartered two
vessels and a barge to augment our existing vessel fleet. Our Subsea Products segment revenue
increased from sales of Oceaneering Intervention Engineering specialty subsea products and umbilicals.
Our ROV segment increase was a result of an improvement in average revenue per day-on-hire and
growth in days on hire for our expanded work-class fleet.

The $180 million consolidated net income we earned in 2007 was the highest in our history. The
$56 million increase in 2007 results was attributable to higher profit contributions from our Subsea
Products, ROV and Subsea Projects segments, with each setting annual profit records. The Subsea
Products and ROV improvements reflect our strategic focus on deepwater and subsea completion
activity. Our Subsea Projects increase was due to demand increases for hurricane damage-related
projects.

In 2007, we invested in the following major capital projects:

» additions of work-class ROVs, including 31 placed into service during the year;

+ expenditures to increase capacity at our Subsea Products manufacturing facilities;

» purchase of Norway-based Ifokus Engineering AS, a designer and manufacturer of specialty
subsea products;

» completion of construction of a saturation diving system for our Subsea Projects segment to meet
growing demand; and

+ completion of upgrades of the dynamic positioning system of our vessel, The Performer.

For 2008, we expect the demand for our deepwater oilfield services and preducts will remain high. We
believe this will be driven by continued high crude cil prices, limited non-OPEC supply growth, rapid
reservoir depletion rates and increasing hydrocarbon demand. We believe the trend for our customers to
increasingly invest in deepwater projects will continue.

We expect our 2008 earnings to grow about 15% over 2007, led by increases in operating income in our
Subsea Products and ROV segments.

We believe that growth in our Subsea Products segment will be driven by a rise in the use of subsea
completions. Historically, there has been a strong correlation between the number of annual subsea tree
orders and the follow-on orders for umbilicals and other subsea specialty products that we provide.

According to industry data, there were less than 600 subsea completion installations before 1990 and
approximately 1,100 in the decade of the 1990s. It is currently projected that there will be approximately
3,300 subsea completion installations in the decade of the 2000s.
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According to publicly available information published by Quest Offshore Resources, Inc., the projected
global market for subsea tree orders in 2008 will be over 330 trees, down from 452 trees in 2007.
Industry-wide umbilical orders in 2008 are forecast to increase to around 1,170 miles, up over 55% from
approximately 755 miles in 2007. Quest attributes the expected rise in 2008 subsea umbilical orders,
despite a lower subsea tree order forecast, to:

» a carryover of demand for umbilicals for trees ordered in prior years, as umbilical orders are being
placed closer to tree installation dates; and
« an anticipated increase in the average distance between subsea trees and the host platforms.

With our expanded steel tube and thermoplastic umbilical manufacturing capacities, we are well
positioned to secure a share of this work.

We use our ROVs in the offshore oil and gas industry to perform a variety of underwater tasks, including
drill support, installation and construction support, pipeline inspection and surveys and subsea production
facility operation and maintenance. The largest percentage of our ROVs are usually used to provide drill
support services. Therefore, utilization of floating drilling rigs is a leading market indicator for this
business. The following table shows average floating rig use and our ROV utilization.

2007 2006 2005
Average number of floating rigs in use 196 191 175
ROV days on hire (in thousands) 63 56 52
ROV utilization 87% 85% 83%

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

We have based the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations
on our consolidated financial statements, which we have prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the U.S. These principles require us to make various estimates,
judgments and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expense during the periods we present.
We base our estimates on historical experience, available information and other assumptions we believe
to be reasonable under the circumstances. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates; however,
our actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions. The
following discussion summarizes the accounting policies we believe (1) require our management's most
difficult, subjective or complex judgments and (2) are the most critical to our reporting of results of
operations and financial position.

Revenue Recognition. We recognize our revenue according to the type of contract involved. On a daily
basis, we recognize revenue under contracts that provide for specific time, material and equipment
charges, which we hill periodically, ranging from weekly to monthly.

We account for significant fixed-price contracts, which we enter into mainty in our Subsea Products and
Advanced Technologies segments, and occasicnally in our Subsea Projects segment, using the
percentage-of-completion method. In 2007, we accounted for 14% of our revenue using the percentage-
of-completion method. In determining whether a contract should be accounted for using the percentage-
of-completion method, we consider whether:

« the customer provides specifications for the construction of facilities or production of goods or for
the provision of related services;

« we can reasonably estimate our progress towards completion and our costs;

- the contract includes provisions as to the enforceable rights regarding the goods or services to be
provided, consideration to be received and the manner and terms of payment;

« the customer can be expected to satisfy its obligations under the contract; and

* we can be expected to perform our contractual obligations.

Under the percentage-of-completion method, we recognize estimated contract revenue based on costs
incurred to date as a percentage of total estimated costs. Changes in the expected cost of materials and

OCEANEERING INTERNATIONAL

23




24

labor, productivity, scheduling and other factors affect the total estimated costs. Additionally, external
factors, including weather or other factors outside of our control, may also affect the progress and
estimated cost of a project's completion and, therefore, the timing of income and revenue recognition.

We routinely review estimates related to our contracts and reflect revisions to profitability in earnings
immediately. If a current estimate of total contract cost indicates an ultimate loss on a contract, we
recognize the projected loss in full when we determine it. In prior years, we have recorded adjustments to
earnings as a result of revisions to contract estimates. Although we are continually striving to improve our
ability to estimate our contract costs and profitability, adjustments to overall contract costs could be
significant in future periods.

We recognize the remainder of our revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery
has occurred or services have been rendered, price is fixed or determinable and coliection is reasonably
assured.

Long-lived Assets. We evaluate our property and egquipment for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not be appropriate. We base these
evaluations on a comparison of the assets' carrying values to forecasts of undiscounted cash flows
associated with the assets or quoted market prices. If an impairment has occurred, we recognize a loss
for the difference between the carrying amount and the fair value of the asset. Qur expectations
regarding future sales and undiscounted cash flows are highly subjective, cover extended periods of time
and depend on a number of factors cutside cur control, such as changes in general economic conditions,
laws and regulations. Accordingly, these expectations could differ significantly from year to year.

In 2005, we recorded $6.1 million of additional depreciation in our ROV segment. These provisions
related to the retirement of four vehicles and obsolete ROV components.

We charge the costs of repair and maintenance of property and equipment to operations as incurred,
while we capitalize the costs of improvements. In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards
Board (“FASB") issued FASB Staff Position No. AUG AIR-1, Accounting for Planned Major Maintenance
Activities. This Staff Position prohibits companies from recognizing planned major maintenance costs by
accruing a liability over several reporting periods before the maintenance is performed — the accrue-in-
advance method. We previously used the accrue-in-advance method for anticipated drydocking of our
vessels. This Staff Position was effective for us beginning January 1, 2007, and we have since charged
drydocking expenses to the income statement as incurred. There was no material effect on our financial
statements from the change.

Goodwill. We account for acquisitions using the purchase method of accounting, with the purchase price
being allocated to the net assets acquired based on their fair market values at the date of acquisition. In
accordance with the requirements of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 142,
Goadwill and Other Intangible Assets, we test the goodwill attributable to each of our reporting units for
impairment. We estimate fair value of the reporting units using discounted cash flow methodologies and
market comparable information,

Loss Contingencies. We self-insure for workers' compensation, maritime employer's liability and
comprehensive general liability claims to levels we consider financially prudent and carry insurance for
exposures beyond the self-insurance levels, which can be by occurrence or in the aggregate. We
determine the level of accruals by reviewing our historical experience and current year claim activity. We
do not record accruals on a present-value basis. We review larger claims with insurance adjusters and
establish specific reserves for known liabilities. We establish an additional reserve for incidents incurred
but not reported to us for each year using our estimates and based on prior experience. We believe we
have established adequate accruals for uninsured expected liabilities arising from those obligations.
However, it is possible that future earnings could be affected by changes in our estimates relating to
these matters.

We are involved in various claims and actions against us, most of which are covered by insurance. We
believe that our ultimate liability, if any, that may result from these claims and actions will not materially
affect our financial position, cash flows or results of operations,

OCEANEERING INTERNATIONAL




Income Taxes. Effective January 1, 2007, we adopted FASB Interpretation No. ("FIN") 48, Accounting
for Uncertainty in Income Taxes. This interpretation clarifies the criteria for recognizing income tax
benefits under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 109, and requires disclosures
about uncertain tax positions. Under FIN 48, the financial statement recognition of the benefit for a tax
position depends on the benefit being more likely than not to be sustainable upon audit by the applicable
taxing authority. If this threshold is met, the tax benefit is then measured and recognized at the largest
amount that is greater than 50 percent likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement. We made an
adjustment of $1.6 million to reduce our retained earnings as of January 1, 2007 to record the effect of
our adoption of this interpretation.

We account for any applicable interest and penalties on uncertain tax positions as a component of our
provision for income taxes on our financial statements. We charged $0.4 million to income tax expense in
2007 for penalties and interest for uncertain tax positions, which brought our total liabilities for penalties
and interest on uncertain tax positions to $2.8 million on our balance sheet at December 31, 2007.
Including penalties and interest, we have accrued a net total of $5.8 million in the caption "other long-term
liabilities" on our balance sheet for unrecognized tax benefits. All additions or reductions to those
liabilities affect our effective income tax rate in the periods of change.

We do not believe that the total of unrecognized tax benefits will significantly increase or decrease in the
next 12 months.

Our tax provisions are based on our expected taxable income, statutory rates and tax-planning
opportunities available to us in the various jurisdictions in which we operate. Determination of taxable
income in any jurisdiction requires the interpretation of the related tax laws. We are at risk that a taxing
authority’s final determination of our tax liabilities may differ from our interpretation. Our effective tax rate
may fluctuate from year to year as our operations are conducted in different taxing jurisdictions, the
amount of pre-tax income fluctuates and our estimates regarding the realizability of items such as foreign
tax credits may change. In 2007, 2006 and 2005, we recorded reductions of income tax expense of

$1.1 million, $1.3 million and $1.8 million, respectively, resulting from the resolution of uncertain tax
positions related to certain tax liabilities we recorded in prior years. Current income tax expense
represents either nonresident withholding taxes or the liabilities expected to be reflected on our income
tax returns for the current year, while the net deferred income tax expense or benefit represents the
change in the balance of deferred tax assets or liabilities as reported on our balance sheet.

We establish valuation allowances to reduce deferred tax assets when it is more likely than not that some
portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized in the future. We currently have no valuation
allowances. While we have considered estimated future taxable income and ongoing prudent and
feasible tax-planning strategies in assessing the need for the valuation allowances, changes in these
estimates and assumptions, as well as changes in tax laws, could require us to adjust the valuation
allowances for our deferred tax assets. These adjustments to the valuation allowance would impact our
income tax provision in the period in which such adjustments are identified and recorded.

For a summary of our major accounting policies and a discussion of recently adopted accounting
standards, please read Note 1 to our Consolidated Financial Statements.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We consider our liquidity and capital resources adequate to support our operations and internally
generated growth initiatives. At December 31, 2007, we had working capital of $332 million, including
cash and cash equivalents of $27 million. Additionally, we had $160 million available under our revolving
credit facility, which currently extends to January 2012. At December 31, 2007, our debt-to-total
capitalization ratio was 18%.

We expect our operating cash flow to meet our ongoing annual cash requirements, including debt service,
for the foreseeable future. Our net cash provided by operating activities was $209 million, $151 million
and $94 million for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Our capital expenditures, including business acquisitions, for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006
and 2005 were $234 million, $194 million and $142 million, respectively. Capital expenditures in 2007
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included expenditures for: additions and upgrades to our ROV fleet; the purchase of Norway-based Ifokus
Engineering AS (“Ifokus”), a designer and manufacturer of specialty subsea products, for $20 million;
vessel upgrades; the acquisition of a small inspection company in the United Kingdom; and facility
expansions in the United Kingdom, Norway, Morgan City, LA and Houston. Our facility expansiaons in the
United Kingdom, Norway and Houston relate to our Subsea Products manufacturing operations, and our
Morgan City expansion supports our ROV and Subsea Projects operations.

Our capital expenditures during 2007 included $122 miillion in our ROV segment, principally for additions
and upgrades to our ROV fleet to expand the fieet and replace units we retired and for facilities
infrastructure to support our growing ROV fleet size. We plan to continue adding ROVs at levels we
determine appropriate to meet market opportunities as they arise. We added 31 ROVs to our fleet and
disposed of seven units during the year ended December 31, 2007, resulting in a totat of 210 systems in
the fleet. We have chartered the Ocean Intervention lif from another party for an initial term of three
years, which began in May 2007, with extension options for up to six additional years. The Ocean
Intervention llf is equipped with two of our work-class ROVs, We obtained a one-year contract for the
vessel, with customer options for up to twe additional one-year pericds, to work on shallow water
hurricane damage-related projects in the Guif of Mexico. We have received notice that the customer has
declined to exercise the extension options, and we now plan to utilize the Ocean Intervention Il on
deepwater projects after it has completed its current commitment. We have also chartered the Olympic
Intervention 1V for an initial term of five years, which we anticipate will begin in the third quarter of 2008.
The Olympic Intervention IV will be outfitted with two high-specification work-class ROVs, and we
anticipate using the vessel to perform subsea hardware installation and inspection, repair and
maintenance projects, and to conduct well intervention services in the ultra-deep waters of the Gulf of
Mexico.

Our capital expenditures during 2006 included $113 million in our ROV segment, principally for additions
and upgrades to our ROV fleet to expand the fieet and raplace units we retired and for facilities
infrastructure. In 2006, we commenced improvements in our Subsea Products facilities, including the
addition of equipment to increase manufacturing capacity at our umbilical plant in the U.K. and our
subsea valve facility in Norway and purchased an oil tanker for possible future conversion to a mobile
offshore production and storage system in the event we obtain a suitable contract. We alsoc began
upgrades to a dynamically positioned vessel and began construction of a saturation diving system to
meet demand in our Subsea Projects segment.

Our capital expenditures during 2005 included the acquisition of Grayloc for $42 million and additions to
our ROV fleet to replace units we retired and to increase the number of units.

In September 2002, our Board of Directors approved a plan to repurchase up to 6,000,000 shares of our
common stock, subject to a $75 million aggregate purchase price limitation. Under this plan, we
repurchased 1,795,600 shares of common stock through the year ended December 31, 2007, at a total
cost of $20.1 million. We have not repurchased any shares of common stock since 2003. Through
December 31, 2007, we had reissued all of these shares as contributions to our 401(k) plan or for
exercised stock options under our incentive plans. For a description of our incentive plans, please read
Note 8 to our Consolidated Financial Statements.

We have not guaranteed any debt not reflected on our consolidated balance sheet. In December 2003,
we acquired a 50% interest in Medusa Spar LLC. At formation, Medusa Spar LLC borrowed $84 million,
or approximately 50% of its total capitalization, from a group of banks. The balance of the bank loan at
December 31, 2007 was $22 miillion, and it requires scheduled quarterly payments through 2009. The
bank loan is secured by minimum throughput guarantees by the other investors in Medusa Spar LLC. We
expect the minimum throughput guarantees will generate sufficient revenue for Medusa Spar LLC to
repay the bank loan. We are under no obligation to provide Medusa Spar LLC or the banks with
additional funds to repay the loan. At December 31, 2007, Medusa Spar LLC had $18 million of cash and
cash equivalents on its balance sheet. The majority of the cash flow generated by Medusa Spar LLC will
continue to be used to repay the bank loan until the loan is retired. After that, the cash flow from Medusa
Spar LLC will be available for distribution to the equity holders. We received $3.4 million, $5.4 million and
$2.3 million of cash distributions from Medusa Spar LLC and recognized $3.8 million, $11.2 million and
$10.1 million of equity in the earnings of Medusa Spar LLC in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
Medusa Spar LLC is a variable interest entity under FIN 46R, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.
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As we are not the primary beneficiary of Medusa Spar LLC, we are accounting for our investment in
Medusa Spar LLC using the equity method of accounting. At December 31, 2007, our investment in
Medusa Spar LLC was $63 million.

Qur principal source of cash from operating activities is our net income, adjusted for the non-cash
expenses of depreciation and amortization and noncash compensation under our restricted stock plans.
Our $209 million, $151 million and $34 million of cash provided from operating activities in 2007, 2006
and 2005, respectively, were net of increases of $55 million, $46 million and $57 million, respectively, in
accounts receivable and increases of $91 million, $84 million and $37 million, respectively, in inventory
and other current assets. The increases in accounts receivable were due to increases in revenue in the
fourth quarter of the respective year as compared to the fourth quarter of the preceding year. The
increases in inventory and other current assets principally related to raw materials and ROV parts. The
raw materials increases related to preparations for building goods in our Subsea Products segment,
which experienced a revenue increase of 43% in 2007, and we anticipate continued revenue growth in
2008. The increases in ROV parts inventory related to equipment waiting for assembly into ROVs to be
placed in service in the succeeding year and increases in parts to be used for servicing our growing ROV
fleet.

In 2007, we used $227 million in investing activities, including $122 million to modernize and add
additional units to our ROV fleet, $66 million to add capacity to our Subsea Products facilities, including
our acquisition of Ifokus for $20 million. In 2006, we used $187 milflion in investing activities, including
$113 million to modernize and add additional units to our ROV fleet and $38 million to add capacity to our
Subsea Products facilities. In 2005, we used $139 million in investing activities, including $46 million
related to business acquisitions, primarily Grayloc, and $56 million to modernize and add additional units
and equipment to our ROV business.

In 2007, 2006 and 2005, we received $5 million, $8 million and $23 million, respectively, in cash flow from
financing activities as proceeds from the sale of our common stock, primarily pursuant te the exercise of
employee stock options. In addition, in 2007, 2006 and 2005, we received $8 million, $7 million and

$6 million, respectively, of excess tax benefit realized from tax deductions in excess of financial statement
expense related to our stock-based compensation plans.

Because of our significant foreign operations, we are exposed to currency fluctuations and exchange
risks. We generally minimize these risks primarily through matching, to the extent possible, revenue and
expense in the various currencies in which we operate. Cumulative translation adjustments as of
December 31, 2007 relate primarily to our permanent investments in and lcans to our foreign
subsidiaries. See ltem 7A — "Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk." Inflation has
not had a material effect on our revenue or income from operations in the past three years, and no such
effect is expected in the near future.
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Results of Operations

Information on our business segments is shown in Note 6 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial

Statements included in this report.

Oil and Gas. The table that follows sets out revenue and profitability for the business segments within

our Qil and Gas business for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005.

Year Ended December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Remotely Operated Vehicles
Revenue 531,381 $ 410,256 $ 315,178
Gross Margin 168,322 129,929 84,419
Gross Margin % 32% 32% 27%
Operating Income 144,242 111,022 68,962
Operating Income % 27% 27% 22%
Utilization % 87% 85% 83%
Subsea Products
Revenue 521,937 364,510 239,039
Gross Margin 133,285 81,380 37,113
Gross Margin % 26% 22% 16%
Operating Income 92,804 53,645 13,941
Operating Income % 18% 15% 6%
Subsea Projects
Revenue 257,752 155,046 121,628
Gross Margin 100,577 65,119 31,122
Gross Margin % 39% 42% 26%
Operating Income 92,841 59,585 26,219
Operating Income % 36% 38% 22%
Inspection
Revenue 219,686 169,014 154,857
Gross Margin 37,195 28,501 21,704
Gross Margin % 17% 17% 14%
Operating Income 22,749 14,946 7,946
Operating Income % 10% 9% 5%
Mobile Offshore Production Systems
Revenue 50,103 52,931 50,091
Gross Margin 12,443 17,136 18,330
Gross Margin % 25% 32% 37%
Operating Income 11,048 16,001 16,796
Operating Income % 22% 30% 34%
Total Qil and Gas
Revenue $1,580,859 $ 1,151,757 $ 880,793
Gross Margin 451,822 322,085 192,688
Gross Margin % 29% 28% 22%
Operating Income 363,684 255,199 133,864
Operating Income % 23% 22% 15%

In response to continued increasing demand to support deepwater drilling and identified future
construction and production maintenance work, we continue to build new ROVs. These new vehicles are
designed for use around the world in water depths of 10,000 feet or more. We added 31 ROVs in 2007
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while disposing of seven units. We plan to continue adding ROVs at levels we determine appropriate to
meet market opportunities.

For each of 2007 and 2006, our ROV revenue increased 30% over the respective prior year from
improvements in average revenue per day-on-hire and growth in days on hire for our expanded work-
class fleet. We grew our fleet size to 210 at December 31, 2007 from 186 at December 31, 2006.
Operating income increased by 30% in 2007 over 2006 and 61% in 2006 over 2005. The lower margin
percentage for 2005 reflected $6.1 million of additional depreciation in 2005 associated with the
retirement of four older ROVs and obsolete ROV components.

We anticipate ROV operating income to increase $25 million to $35 million in 2008 from a higher average
fleet size and pricing. We expect to add approximately 30 ROVs in 2008, with most to be placed in
setvice in the second half of the year.

Our Subsea Products revenue for 2007 rose 43% and operating income increased over 70% on
increased sales of our specialty subsea products and umbilicals. Qur operating margin percentage
increased to 18% from 15% from better pricing and improved manufacturing execution, including better
throughput and resolution during 2006 of startup preblems at cur U.S. umbilical manufacturing plant.

Our Subsea Products revenue in 2006 was 52% higher than in 2005, while gross margin and operating
income percentages significantly improved. We achieved higher sales of umbilicals and of our specialty
hardware, and segment operating income nearly quadrupled. During the year, we resolved the
mechanical problems we previously experienced at our Panama City, FL umbilical facility and we
processed higher volumes at all three of our umbilical manufacturing plants. The increase in sales of
specialty hardware came particularly from RQV tooling and clamps. The increase in clamp sales was
primarily attributable to the full year of operations from our Grayloc division, which we acquired at the end
of June 2005,

We anticipate our Subsea Products segment operating income will grow $30 million to $40 million in
2008, driven by a continuation of a high level of subsea completion activity, which we expect will result in
growth in our specialty hardware sales. Cur Subsea Products backlog was $338 million at

December 31, 2007 compared to $359 million at December 31, 20086.

In 2007, our Subsea Projects segment experienced higher revenue and operating income than 2006 from
an increase in hurricane damage-related projects. Qur operating income rose by over 55% on an
increase in revenue of 66%. We continued to experience favorable pricing for and utilization of our vessel
and diving assets. Additionally, during the year we added a saturation diving system, placed The
Performer back into service after its upgrade, and chartered and utilized two dynamically positioned
vessels and a barge. Our margin percentages decreased due to the high third-party cost content of the
chartered assets.

In 2006, our Subsea Projects segment had better results than 2005 due to work related to hurricane
damage from Hurricanes Katrina and Rita and an escalation in demand for installation projects and our
inspection, maintenance and repair services on the deepwater infrastructure in the Gulf of Mexico.
Annual operating income more than doubled as we continued to benefit from rate increases and high
utitization for our seven vessels and our diving assets.

We anticipate our 2008 operating income for Subsea Projects to be about $25 million to $30 million less
than in 2007, based on our expectations of the completion of two large hurricane damage-related
contracts midway through 2008, four scheduled vessel drydockings in 2008, and lower demand for
shallow water vessel and diving services as hurricane damage-related projects near completion.

In 2007, our Inspection revenue and margins continued to increase, due to strong growth in all of the
geographic areas we serve. We continued to sell more value-added services at improved pricing.

For 2006, our Inspection revenue increased and margins improved over 2005. This was attributable to

our successes in providing more value-added services, securing new contracts, and controlling our
operating expenses. Qur operating income grew by over 85%.
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We expect that our Inspection segment operating income will improve in 2008, due to increased activity
and higher pricing.

Our Mobile Offshore Production Systems three major units continued to work under the same contracts,
until the termination of the contract for the San Jacinto in July 2007. The decreases in margins in 2007
were the result of $2.8 million of expenses incurred to move the Ocean Pensador from the U.S. west
coast to Southeast Asia in the fourth quarter of 2007, and the anticipated decline in the dayrate of the
Ocean Legend, as per the customer renewal option terms in the existing contract. We moved the Ocean
Pensador to better position it in the marketplace. The vessel is now closer to several shipyards capable
of modifying it for production or storage service, either for us or another owner should we sell it.

We anticipate our Mobile Offshore Production Systems operating income in 2008 will decline from 2007
as a result of a lower dayrate going into effect in mid-May 2008 for the use of the Ocean Legend, as per
the customer renewal option terms in the existing contract, and the end of the contract on the San Jacinto

in 2007,

Advanced Technologies. The table that follows sets out revenue and profitability for this segment for
the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005.

Year Ended December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2007 2006 2005

Revenue $ 162,221 $ 128,441 $ 117,750
Gross Margin 25,561 19,862 20,772
Gross Margin % 16% 15% 18%
Operating Income 14,458 11,585 12,539
Operating Income % 9% 9% 11%

Our Advanced Technologies segment's revenue and margins for 2007 increased from those of 2006 due
to increased work for the U.S. Navy on submarine repair and maintenance and general engineering
services. Our margins for 2006 decreased from those of 2005, primarily due to the transfer of The
Performer to our Subsea Projects segment in April 2006. Our 2006 revenue was higher than 2005 from

demand for general engineering services.

We anticipate our Advanced Technologies 2008 operating income will be lower than 2007 due to the
completion in September 2007 of an engineering services contract that had been ongoing for more than

five years.

Unallocated Expenses. Our unallocated expenses, i.e., those not associated with a specific business
segment, within gross margin consist of expenses related to our incentive and deferred compensation
plans, including restricted stock and bonuses, as well as other general expenses. A portion of our
restricted stock expense varies with the market price of our common stock. Our unallocated expenses
within operating income consist of those within gross margin plus general and administrative expenses
related to corporate functions. The table that follows sets out our unallocated expenses for the years
ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005.

Year Ended December 31,

{dolfars in thousands) 2007 2006 2005

Gross margin expenses $ (64,098) $ (45,806) $ (34,180)
% of revenue 4% 4% 3%
Operating expenses {88,519) (72,448) (52,334)
% of revenue 5% 6% 5%

Our unallocated gross margin and operating expenses increased in 2007, primarily due to higher
compensation related to incentive plans as a result of record results and an escalation in information
technology-related costs to support our growth.
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Our unallocated gross margin and operating expenses increased in 2006 over 2005, primarily due to
compensation related to incentive plans as a resuit of record results and our higher stock price. Qur
unallocated operating expenses in 2006 and 2005 included $5.8 million and $2.7 million, respectively,
refated to post-retirement benefits for our current chairman and former chief executive officer.

In November 2001, we entered into an agreement with our Chairman (the "Chairman"} who was also then
our Chief Executive Officer. That agreement was amended in 2006, Pursuant to the amended
agreement, the Chairman relinquished his position as Chief Executive Officer in May 2006 and began his
post-employment service period on December 31, 2006. The agreement provides for a specific service
period ending no later than August 15, 2011, during which the Chairman, acting as an independent
contractor, has agreed to serve as nonexecutive Chairman of our Board of Directors for so long as our
Board of Directors desires that he shall continue to serve in that capacity. The agreement provides the
Chairman with post-employment benefits for ten years following his services to us. The amendment
included a lump-sum cash buyout, paid in 2007, of the Chairman’s entitlement to perquisites and
administrative assistance during that ten-year period (expected to run from 2011 to 2021). As a result,
we recorded $2.8 million of associated expense in the fourth quarter of 2006. The agreement also
provides for medical coverage on an after-tax basis to the Chairman, his spouse and children during his
service with us and thereafter for their lives., We are recognizing the net present value of the post-
employment benefits over the expected service period. If the service period is terminated for any reason
(cther than the Chairman's refusal to continue serving), we will recognize all the previously unaccrued
benefits in the period in which that termination occurs.

Other. The table that follows sets farth our significant financial statement items below the operating
income line.

Year Ended December 31,

{dollars in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Interest income 3 1,198 $ 730 $ 505
Interest expense, net of amounts capitalized (15,333) {12,920) {10,102)
Equity earnings of unconsolidated affiliates:

Medusa Spar LLC 3,779 11,213 10,082

Other 251 838 328
Other income (expense), net (2,020) (3,302) (432)
Provision for income taxes 97,124 66,401 31,770

Interest expense increased in 2007 and 2006, primarily because we used debt to partially finance capital
expenditures and acquisitions. Interest expense is net of capitalized interest of $1.0 million, $0.1 million
and $0.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

In 2004, we started earning equity income from our 50% investment in Medusa Spar LLC, which we
acquired in December 2003. Medusa Spar LLC owns 75% of a production spar in the Gulf of Mexico and
earns its revenue from fees charged on production processed through the facility. During 2004 and 2005,
additional wells were connected to the facility, thereby raising 2006 throughput over the 2005 level. In
2007, we experienced a decrease in equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates from our investment in
Medusa Spar LLC due to tower production throughput at the spar, and we expect this trend to continue in
2008. If the cperator of the producing wells is able to either start producing from other zones in the
existing wells, which are anticipated to have higher flow rates than the currently-producing zones, or
connect more wells to the spar, the declining revenue trend would be reversed.

Our effective tax rate, including foreign, state and local taxes, was 35%, 35% and 34% for 2007, 2006
and 2005, respectively. In 2007, 2006 and 2005, our effective tax rates included favorable resolutions of
uncertain tax positions of $1.1 million, $1.3 million and $1.8 million, respectively, related to certain tax
liabilities we recorded in prior years. For 2008, we anticipate an effective tax rate of approximately 35%.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements, as defined by SEC rules.
Contractual Obligations

At December 31, 2007, we had payments due under contractual obligations as follows:

(dollars in thousands) Payments due by period

Total 2008 2009-2010 2011-2012  After 2012
Long-term Debt $200,000 $ 20,000 $ 40,000 $140,000 % -
Operating Leases 187,461 31,124 62,887 46,486 46,964
Purchase Obligations 55,365 55,365 - - -

Other Long-term Obligations
reflected on our halance sheet
under GAAP 43,796 584 1,343 3,343 38,5286

TOTAL _$486622 $107073 _$104230 _$189829 _§ 85490

At December 31, 2007, we had outstanding purchase order commitments totaling $55 million, including
approximately $29 million for ROV winches and control umbilicals for ROV units and $26 million for
specialized steel tubes to be used in our manufacturing of steel tube umbilicals by our Subsea Products
segment. The winches and ROV umbilicals have been ordered for new ROVs and for anticipated
replacements due to normal wear and tear. We have ordered the specialized stee! tubes in advance, due
to the current shortage of these specialized materials caused by a general worldwide increase in demand
for steel, as the lead times between placing the order and delivery have become extended. We have
contracts to build umbilicals that will use approximately 59% of the orders. We also have other identified
opportunities that could utilize these materials. However, should we decide not to accept delivery of the
steel tubes, we would incur cancellation charges of at least 10% of the amount canceled.

Effects of Inflation and Changing Prices

Our financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the
United States, using historical U.S. dollar accounting, or historical cost. Statements based on historical
cost, however, do not adequately reflect the cumulative effect of increasing costs and changes in the
purchasing power of the dollar, especially during times of significant and continued inflation.

In order to minimize the negative impact of inflation on our operations, we attempt to cover the increased
cost of anticipated changes in labor, material and service costs, either through an estimate of those
changes, which we reflect in the original price, or through price escalation clauses in our contracts.

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.

We are currently exposed to certain market risks arising from transactions we have entered into in the
normal course of business. These risks relate to interest rate changes and fluctuations in foreign
exchange rates. We do not believe these risks are material. We have not entered into any market risk
sensitive instruments for speculative or trading purposes. We manage our exposure to interest rate
changes through the use of a combination of fixed and floating-rate debt. See Note 4 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements included in this report for a description of our long-term debt
agreements, interest rates and maturities. We believe that significant interest rate changes will not have
a material near term impact on our future earnings or cash flows. Because we operate in various oil and
gas exploration and production regions in the world, we conduct a portion of our business in currencies
other than the U.S. dollar. The functional currency for several of our international operations is the
applicable local currency. We manage our exposure to changes in foreign exchange rates principally
through arranging compensation in U.S. dollars or freely convertible currency and, to the extent possible,
by limiting compensation received in other currencies to amounts necessary to meet obligations
denominated in those currencies. We use the exchange rates in effect as of the balance sheet date to
translate assets and liabilities as to which the functional currency is the local currency, resulting in
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translation adjustments that we reflect as accumulated other comprehensive income or loss in the
shareholders' equity section of our Consolidated Balance Sheets. We recorded adjustments of
$21.0 million, $17.3 million and ($14.3 million) to our equity accounts in 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. Positive adjustments reflect the net impact of the strengthening of various foreign
currencies against the U.S. dollar for locations where the functional currency is not the U.S. dollar.
Conversely, negative adjustments reflect the effect of a strengthening dollar.

We recorded foreign currency transaction gains (losses) of ($0.3 milion), ($2.5 million) and $0.2 million in
our Consolidated Income Statements in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively, related o our foreign
operations. In 2006, the majority of our fareign currency losses related to our U K. operations. Some of
our U.K. subsidiary's revenue is from U.S. dollar-denominated contracts. If the U.S. dollar weakens
against the British pound sterling, we will incur currency losses for the period the related accounts
receivable are outstanding.

CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

In accordance with Rules 13a-15 and 15d-15 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended
{the "Exchange Act"), we carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of
management, including our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, of the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures (as that term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the
Exchange Act) as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based on that evaluation, our chief
executive officer and chief financial officer concluded that our disclosure centrols and procedures were
effective as of December 31, 2007 to provide reascnable assurance that information required to be
disclosed in our reports filed or submitted under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized
and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission's rules and
forms. There has been no change in our internal contrel over financial reporting that occurred during the
year ended December 31, 2007 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect,
our internal controt over financial reporting.
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Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting (as that term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act). Our internal
control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
regarding the refiability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
reporting purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. We developed our internal control over financial reporting through a process in which our
management applied its judgment in assessing the costs and benefits of various controls and procedures,
which, by their nature, can provide only reasonable assurance regarding the control objectives. You
should note that the design of any system of controls is based in part on various assumptions about the
likelihood of future events, and we cannot assure you that any system of controls will succeed in
achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions, regardless of how remote. Because of its
inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive,
financial and accounting officers, we have conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal
control over financial reporting based on the framework in "Internal Control — Integrated Framework™
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. This evaluation
included a review of the documentation surrounding our financial reporting controls, an evaluation of the
design effectiveness of these controls, testing of the operating effectiveness of these controls and an
evaluation of our overall controt environment. Based on that evaluation, our management has concluded
that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2007.

Ernst & Young LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, has audited our internal control
over financial reporting, as stated in their report which follows.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Oceaneering International, Inc.

We have audited Oceaneering International, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission {the COSO criteria).
Oceaneering International, Inc.’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control
over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting included in the accompanying Management's Report on Internal Control Qver Financial
Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company's internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and {3) provide reascnable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internat control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the
risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in cenditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Oceaneering International, Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheets of Oceaneering International, Inc. and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 an.d 2006, and the related consolidated statements of income,
cash flows, and shareholders’ equity and comprehensive income for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2007 and our report dated February 26, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion

thereon.
St ¥ LLP

Houston, Texas
February 26, 2008
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INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDUILES
index to Financial Statements

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Consolidated Statements of Income

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity and Comprehensive Income
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Selected Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited)

Index to Schedules

All schedules for which provision is made in the applicable regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission have been omitted because they are not required under the relevant instructions or because
the required information is set forth in the financial statements included herein or in the related footnotes
thereto.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Oceaneering International, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Oceaneering International, Inc. and
subsidiaries (the “Company”} as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated
statements of income, cash flows and shareholders’ equity and comprehensive income for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2007. These financial statements are the responsibility of
the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Qceaneering International, Inc. and subsidiaries at December 31, 2007
and 2006, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years
in the pericd ended December 31, 2007, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, effective January 1, 2007, the Company
adopted FASB Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes. As discussed in Note
1, effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123
{revised 2004), Share-Based Payment and, as discussed in Note 1, effective December 31, 20086, the
Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 158, Employers’ Accounting for
Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans, an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88,
1086, and 132(R}.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), Oceaneering International, Inc.'s internal control over financial reparting as of
December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 26,

2008 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.
é/vmt £ MLLP

Houston, Texas
February 26, 2008
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OCEANEERING INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

(in thousands, except share dala) 2007 2006
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 27,110 $ 26,228
Accounts receivable, net of allowances for doubtful accounts 370,612 315,255
Inventory and other current assets 272,847 182,162
Total Current Assets 670,569 523,645
Property and Equipment, at cost:
Marine services equipment 754,158 635,490
Mobile offshore production equipment 167,437 152,854
Manufacturing facilities 172,598 151,826
Other 153,069 99,872
1,247,262 1,040,042
Less accumulated depreciation 609,155 516,335
Net Property and Equipment 638,107 523,707
Other Assets:
Goodwill 111,951 86,931
Investments in unconsolidated affiliates 64,655 64,496
Other 46,158 43,243
Total Assets $1,531,440 § 1,242,022

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 76,841 $ 70,777
Accrued liabilities 235,748 180,073
Income taxes payable 26,386 28,856
Total Current Liabilities 338,975 279,706
Long-term Debt | 200,000 194,000
Other Long-term Liabilities 77,155 71,552

Commitments and Contingencies

Shareholders' Equity:
Common Stock, par value $0.25 per share; 90,000,000 shares

authorized: 55,075,238 and 54,440,488 shares issued 13,769 13,610
Additional paid-in capital 210,388 191,910
Retained earnings 651,304 472,525
Accumulated other comprehensive income 39,849 18,719

Total shareholders' equity 915,310 696,764

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity $ 1,531,440 $ 1,242,022

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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OCEANEERING INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSID!ARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Year Ended December 31,

(in thousands, except per share data) 2007 2006 2005
Revenue $1,743,080 $1,280,198 $ 998,543
Cost of services and products 1,329,795 984,077 819,263
Gross Margin 413,285 296,121 179,280
Selling, general and administrative expense 123,662 101,785 85,211
Income from Operations 289,623 194,336 94,069
Interest income 1,198 730 505
Interest expense, net of amounts capitalized {15,333) (12,920) (10,102)
Equity earnings of unconsolidated affiliates 4,030 12,051 10,410
Other income (expense}, net (2,020) (3,302) (432)
Income before Income Taxes 277,498 190,895 94,450
Provision for income taxes 97,124 66,401 31,770
Net Income $ 180,374 $ 124494 $ 62,680
Basic Earnings per Share $ 320 § 231 % 1.20
Ditluted Earnings per Share $ 324 % 226 % 1.17
Weighted average number of common shares 54,786 53,990 52,300
Incremental shares from stock equivalents 969 1,001 1,347
Weighted average nhumber of common shares

and equivalents 55,755 54,991 53,647

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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OCEANEERING INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net income $180,374 $124,494 $ 62,680
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 93,776 80,456 79,613
Gain on asset sales (4,198) - -
Noncash compensation and other 20,255 11,292 562
Undistributed earnings of unconsolidated affiliates (33) (2,898) (8,406)
Increase (decrease) in cash from:
Accounts receivable, net (55,357) (45,758) (56,921)
Inventory and other current assets (90,684) (83,734) (37,477)
Other assets 1,462 (4,415) (702)
Accounts payable 6,064 6,471 12,574
Accrued liabilities 55,676 37,904 26,000
Income taxes payable (2,470) 12,663 11,572
Other long-term liabilities 4,010 14,769 4,400
Total adjustments to net income 28,501 26,750 31,215
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 208,875 161,244 93,895
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Business acquisitions (25,099) (1,491) (46,242)
Purchases of property and equipment (208,696)  (192,351) (96,027)
Dispositions of property and equipment 6,941 6,826 3,011
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (226,854) (187,016) (139,258)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Net proceeds from revolving credit, net of expenses 25,561 40,000 31,828
Payments of 6.72% Senior Notes (20,000) (20,000) -
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 5,277 8,320 23,062
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation 8,023 7,372 -
Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 18,861 35,692 54,890
Net increase (Decrease) in Cash
and Cash Equivalents 882 {(80) 9,527
Cash and Cash Equivalents — Beginning of Period 26,228 26,308 16,781
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Period $ 27110 $ 26,228 $ 26,308

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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OCEANEERING INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Accumulaied Cther
Compraherrive lncome: (Loss)
Common Stock Addebonal Uneamed Fodl Valoe Curmency
kssund Pag-n Compen- Troasury Retaned of inlerest Transigbon
{n thousands) Shares Amounts, Capetal 20N Slock Eamngs Rate Hodge  Adustments Pension Tod
Balance, December 31, 2004 54,840 $ 12910 140,398 3 w47 % - $ 285351 $ - $ 18360 (2331 § 454437
Comprehensie Income.
Nel Income - - - - £2.580 - . - 62,660
Chanpe n far valua of wnberest rate hadge,
netoflaz - . - - 518 - - 518
Pansion-related acuetments, neLol s . - . . - . - . [P2%5) 217y
Translation adjustments - - - - - - {14,269) - [14.260)
Total Comprehansrva InComa - . - . - 62,830 518 {14.269) 217 45712
Restricted stock axpenss 156 39 3,584 228 - . - - - 38
Resincted stock forfartures - - 78 - {76} - - : - -
Siock opbons exenzsed 1692 423 21,118 - 50 - - - - 21,589
Tax banefits from stock ptans - . 8177 - - - - - - 8,177
Common siock isaued 16 Compaeny benefit plan 70 18 1336 - - - - - 1,344
Troasury stock msued 16 company
berefit plan, al avarags cosl - - - - 28 - - - - 23
Balance, December 31, 2005 53,558 13,300 172,858 19y 348,051 518 4,201 (2,549) 530,118
Comprehensive Incorma.
Nat Income - - 124 494 - - - 174,484
Change ) lax value of imarest rale hadge
et of tax - - - . {185) - - (165)
Pension-ralated sdusiments, net of lax - - - - - - Lk 843
Tranalation adjustments - - - - - - 17,262 - 17.282
Tolal Comprehansive Incoma - . - - 124, 484 (165) 17,282 843 142,454
Adjustment 10 naally apply SFAS No. 158,
et of Lax - . - . - - - - {1.501) {1.501)
Rasincted stock experna 228 57 2.604 1,060 - - - - . 31z
Rastncied stock forfertrte. - - 73 - T3 - - - -
Restrictad stock grant 2 8 B55 917y - . - - - {53)
Slock options exercisad 822 155 8,092 - 73 - - . 8.320
Silock optiona expanse - - 333 - . - 333
Tax benefits from stock plans. - - 7.212 - - - - - 7.37%
Balance, Decembar 31, 2000 54,0 N 199,588 {75) - 472,528 a3 na 3.207) 298,784
Comprahensive Income:
Adustment 1o inualty apply FIN No 48,
ot of tax - - - - 1.595) - - (1.529)
Nat income - - - 180,374 - - . 180,374
Changa in lair valus o intarest rate hedge,
nef of lax - - - - - 2rn - - 2m
Pension-relaiad sgpiments, net of tax - - - - - - 358 396
Transtation acdjsaments - - - - - 21.011 - 21.011
Total Camprehensiva Income - . - - 178,778 2y 24011 E) 198,000
Resinciad stock expensa 228 k74 3.885 1.281 - - - - 5333
Restncted stock forferturas - - . - . - - - -
Restrictad stock grant kT a 1,306 {1,314} - . - . -
Stoek options exencived 375 [ 5,183 - - - - . - 5277
Sioch options expensae - L] - - - - 4
Tax benafits from stock plans - . B.023 - - . - - - 3023
Batancs, December 31, 2007 55075 3 IATE9 $ 230497 H 109§ = 3 65134 3 5§ 43384 % {280 3 915310

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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NOTES TQO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. SUMMARY OF MAJOR ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Oceaneering International, Inc. and our
50% or mare owned and controlled subsidiaries. We also consolidate entities that are determined to be
variable interest entities as defined in Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") Interpretation

No. ("FIN") 46R, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, if we determine that we are the primary
beneficiary; otherwise, we account for these entities using the equity method of accounting. We use the
equity method to account for our investments in unconsolidated affiliated companies of which we own an
equity interest of between 20% and 50% and as to which we have significant influence, but not control,
over operations. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

On May 12, 2006, our Board of Directors declared a two-for-one stock split to be effected in the form of a
stock dividend of our common stock to our shareholders of record at the close of business on

May 25, 2006. The stock dividend was distributed on June 19, 2006. All historical share and per share
data in these financial statements reflect this stock split. Our total number of authorized shares of
common stock and the par value of our common stock were unchanged by this stock split. We have
restated shareholders' equity to give retroactive recognition of the stock split for all periods presented by
reclassifying an amount equal to the par value of the additional shares issued through the stock dividend
from additional paid-in capital to common stock.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include demand deposits and highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less from the date of the investment.

Accounts Receivable — Alfowances for Doubtful Accounts

The following table sets forth the activity of our allowances for doubtful accounts receivable:

Additions
Balanceat Chargedto  Charged to Balance at
beginning of  Costs and Other end of
(in thousands) Period Expenses Accounts Deductions Period
For the year ended
December 31, 2005 $ 2,763 $ - $ 112 $ 2,763 $ 112
For the year ended
December 31, 2006 $ 112§ - % 2 % - 8 114
For the year ended
December 31, 2007 $ 114 $ 964 $ 49 $ 103 $ 1,024

We determine the need for allowances for doubtful accounts using the specific identification method. We
do not generally require collateral from our customers.
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Inventory and Other Current Assels
Inventory and other current assets consisted of the following:

December 31,

{in thousands) 2007 2006

Inventory of parts for remotely operated vehicles $ 84,467 $ 61,763
Other inventory, primarily raw materials 140,943 78,130
Deferred income taxes 13,576 18,618
Other 33,861 23,651
Total $ 272,847 $ 182,162

Inventory is valued at lower of cost or market. We determine cost using the weighted-average method.

N

Property and Equipment

We provide for depreciation of property and equipment on the straight-line method over estimated useful
lives of three to 20 years for marine services equipment, up to 12 years for maobite offshore production
equipment and three to 25 years for buildings, improvements and other equipment.

We charge the costs of repair and maintenance of property and equipment to operations as incurred,
while we capitalize the costs of improvements. In September 20086, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position
No. AUG AIR-1, Accounting for Planned Major Maintenance Activities. This Staff Position prohibits
companies from recognizing planned major maintenance costs by accruing a liability over several
reporting periods before the maintenance is performed — the accrue-in-advance method. We previously
used the accrue-in-advance method for anticipated drydocking of our vessels. This Staff Position was
effective for us beginning January 1, 2007, and we have since charged drydocking expenses to the
income statement as incurred. There was no material effect on our financial statements from the change.

The following table sets forth the activity of our accruals for drydocking for the periods presented:

Additions
Balance at Chargedto  Charged to Balance at
beginning of  Costs and Other end of
(in thousands) Period Expenses Accounts Deductions Period
For the year ended
December 31, 2005 $ 1,207 $ 1,022 $ (48) % 900 $ 1.281
for the year ended
December 31, 2006 $ 1,281 $ 833 § 27§ 1,971 $ 170

We capitalize interest on assets where the construction period is anticipated to be more than three
months. In 2007, 2006 and 2005, we capitalized $1.0 million, $0.1 million and $0.1 million of interest,
respectively. We do not allocate general administrative costs to capital projects. Upon the disposition of
property and equipment, the related cost and accumulated depreciation accounts are relieved and any
resulting gain or loss is included as an adjustment to cost of services and products.

Our management periodically, and upon the occurrence of a triggering event, reviews the realizability of
long-lived assets, excluding goodwill and indefinite-lived intangibles, which are held and used by us, to
determine whether any events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the asset
may not be recoverable. For long-lived assets to be held and used, we base our evaluation on
impairment indicators such as the nature of the assets, the future economic benefit of the assets, any
historical or future profitability measurements and other external market conditions or factors that may be
present. If such impairment indicators are present or other factors exist that indicate that the carrying
amount of the asset may not be recoverable, we determine whether an impairment has occurred through
the use of an undiscounted cash flows analysis of the asset at the lowest level for which identifiable cash
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flows exist, or quoted market prices. If an impairment has occurred, we recognize a loss for the
difference between the carrying amount and the fair value of the asset. For assets held for sale or
disposal, the fair value of the asset is measured using quoted market prices less cost to sell. Assets are
classified as held-for-sale when we have a plan for disposal of certain assets and those assets meet the
held for sale criteria. In 2005, we recorded $6.1 million of additional depreciation in our ROV segment,
based on net realizable value. These provisions related to the retirement of four vehicles and obsolete
ROV components.

Business Acquisitions

In June 2005, we acquired Grayloc Products L.L.C. and subsidiary (together, "Grayloc"), an oil and gas
industry supplier of clamp connectors, for approximately $42 million. We accounted for this acquisition
using the purchase method of accounting, with the purchase price being allocated to the net assets
acquired based on their fair market values at the date of acquisition. Our goodwill, all nondeductible,
associated with the Grayloc acquisition was $22 million and other intangible assets were $14 million. The
results of operations of Grayloc are included in our consolidated statements of income from the date of
acquisition.

In Juty 2007, we acquired Ifokus Engineering AS (“Ifokus”), a designer and manufacturer of specialty
subsea products based in Norway, for $20 million. We accounted for this acquisition using the purchase
method of accounting, with the purchase price being allocated to the net assets acquired based on their
fair market values at the date of acquisition. We have made the purchase price allocation based on
information currently available to us, and the allocations are subject to change when we obtain final asset
and liability valuations. Our goodwill, all nondeductible, associated with the acquisition was $18 million,
and other intangible assets were $2 million. The results of operations of |fokus are included in our
consolidated staterments of income from the date of acquisition.

We also made several smaller acquisitions during the periods presented.

The above acquisitions were not material. As a result, we have not included pro forma information
related to those acquisitions in this report.

Goodwill and intangibie Assets

in accordance with the requirements of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 142,
Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, we tested the goodwill attributable to each of our reporting units for
impairment as of December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 and concluded that there was no impairment. Our
reporting units are the operating units one level below our business segments, except for Inspection,
which is tested as a single reporting unit. We estimated fair value using discounted cash flow
methodologies and market comparable information.

Within our balance sheet caption Other Assets: Other, at December 31, 2007 and 2006, we have

$15.7 million and $14.9 million, respectively, of intangible assets, primarily acquired in connection with
business combinations. These intangible assets include trade names, intellectual property and customer
relationships, and are being amortized over a weighted average remaining life of approximately 11 years.

Revenue Recognition
We recognize our revenue according to the type of contract involved. On a daily basis, we recognize

revenue under contracts that provide for specific time, material and equipment charges, which we bill
periodically, ranging from weekly to monthly.
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We account for significant fixed-price contracts, which we enter into mainly in our Subsea Products and
Advanced Technologies segments, and occasionally in our Subsea Projects segment, using the
percentage-of-completion method. In 2007, we accounted for 14% of our revenue using the percentage-
of-completion method. In determining whether a contract should be accounted for using the percentage-
of-completion method, we consider whether:

. the customer provides specifications for the construction of facilities or production of
goods or for the provision of related services;

. we can reasonably estimate our progress towards completion and our costs;

. the contract includes provisions as to the enforceable rights regarding the goods or
services to be provided, consideration to be received and the manner and terms of
payment;

. the customer can be expected to satisfy its cbligations under the contract; and

. we can be expected to perform our contractual obligations.

Under the percentage-of-completion method, we recognize estimated contract revenue based on costs
incurred to date as a percentage of total estimated costs. Changes in the expected cost of materials and
labor, productivity, scheduling and other factors affect the total estimated costs. Additionally, external
factors, including weather or other factors outside of our control, may also affect the progress and
estimated cost of a project's completion and, therefore, the timing of income and revenue recognition.
We routinely review estimates related to our contracts and refiect revisions to profitability in earnings
immediately. If a current estimate of tota! contract cost indicates an ultimate loss on a contract, we
recegnize the projected loss in full when we determine it. Although we are continually striving to improve
our ability to estimate our contract costs and profitability, adjustments to overall contract costs could be
significant in future periods.

We recognize the remainder of our revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery
has accurred or services have been rendered, price is fixed or determinable and collection is reascnably
assured.

Revenue in Excess of Amounts Billed is classified as accounts receivable and relates to recoverable
costs and accrued profits on contracts in progress. Billings in Excess of Revenue Recognized on
uncompleted contracts are classified in accrued liabilities.

Revenue in Excess of Amounts Billed on uncompleted fixed-price contracts accounted for using the
percentage-cf-completion method is summarized as follows:

December 31,

{in thousands) 2007 2006

Revenue recognized $ 193473 $ 175,155
Less: Billings to customers (171,070) {167,309)
Revenue in excess of amounts billed $ 22403 § 7,846

Billings in Excess of Revenue Recognized on uncompleted fixed-price contracts accounted for using the
percentage-of-completion method are summarized as follows:

December 31,

{(in thousands) 2007 20086

Amounts billed to customers § 56,434 $ 14,073
Less: Revenue recognized {46,022) (8,734)
Billings in excess of revenue recognized $ 10412 $§ 5339
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Stock-Based Compensation

As permitted under SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, through

December 31, 2005, we used the intrinsic value method of accounting established by Accounting
Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, to account for our stock-
based compensation programs. Accordingly, we did not recognize any compensation expense when the
exercise price of an employee stock option was equal to the Common Share market price on the grant
date and all other provisions were fixed. The following illustrates the pro forma effect on net income and
earnings per share for 2005 if we had applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123:

Year Ended
December 31,
(in thousands, except per share amounts) 2005
Net income:
As reported $ 62,680

Employee stock-based compensation

expense included in net income, net

of income tax benefit 5,727
Pro forma compensation

expense determined under fair

value methods for all awards, net

of income tax benefit (8,779)
Pro forma $ 59628
Pro forma earnings per commen share:

Basic $ 1.14

Diluted s 1.1
Reported earnings per common share:

Basic $ 1.20

Diluted $ 117

For purposes of these pro forma disclosures, the fair value of each option grant was estimated on the
date of grant using a Black-Scholes option pricing model. The following assumptions for the year ended
December 31, 2005 were computed on a weighted average basis: expected volatility of 32.7%; risk-free
interest rate of 3.65%; expected average life of 3.0 years; and no expected dividends. The weighted
average fair values of the options granted in the year ended December 31, 2005 was $9.02. The
estimated fair value of the options was amortized to pro forma expense over the vesting periods of the
options.

Subsequent to December 31, 2005, we have accounted for share-based compensation in accordance
with SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), Share-Based Payment ("SFAS No. 123R"). SFAS No. 123R requires
all share-based payments to directors, officers and employees, including grants of stock options, to be
recognized over their vesting periods in the income statement based on their estimated fair values. SFAS
No. 123R applies to all awards granted after December 31, 2005 and to awards modified, repurchased or
canceled after that date, as well as the unvested portion of awards granted prior to December 31, 2005.
We believe the pro forma expense for the period presented above provides a reasonable approximation
of the share-based compensation expense that would have been recorded in our Consolidated Statement
of Income in the year ended December 31, 2005 under SFAS No. 123R. Existing option grants caused
us to recognize an additional amount of less than $0.01 per diluted share of share-based compensation
expense for 2006, under the modified prospective transition alternative that we elected.

In light of the accounting expense recognition requirements established by SFAS No. 123R, the
Compensation Committee of our Board of Directors has expressed its intention to refrain from using stock
options as a component of compensation for our executive officers and other employees for the
foreseeable future. Additionally, our Board of Directors has expressed its intention to refrain from using
stock options as a component of nonemployee director compensation for the foreseeable future. No

OCEANEERING INTERNATIONAL




stock optiens were granted in 2006 or 2007. For more information on our employee benefit plans, see
Note 8.

Income Taxes

We provide income taxes at appropriate tax rates in accordance with our interpretation of the respective
tax laws and regulations after review and consultation with our internal tax department, tax advisors and,
in some cases, legal counsel in various jurisdictions. We provide for deferred income taxes for
differences between carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial and tax reporting purposes.
QCur policy is to provide for deferred U.S. income taxes on foreign income only to the extent such income
is not to be invested indefinitely in the related foreign entity. We provide a valuation allowance against
deferred tax assets when it is more likely than not that the asset will not be realized.

In June 2006, the FASB issued FIN 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes. This interpretation
clarifies the criteria for recognizing income tax benefits under SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income
Taxes, and requires financial statement disclosures about uncertain tax positions. Effective

January 1, 2007, we adopted FIN 48. Under FIN 48, the financial statement recognition of the benefit for
a tax position depends on the benefit being more likely than not to be sustainable upon audit by the
applicable taxing authority. If this threshold is met, the tax benefit is then measured and recognized at the
largest amount that is greater than 50 percent likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement. We
account for any applicable interest and penalties on uncertain tax positions as a component of our

- provision for income taxes on our financial statements. We rmade an adjustment of $1.6 million to reduce
our retained earnings as of January 1, 2007 to record the effect of our adoption of this interpretation.

Foreign Currency Translation

The functional currency for several of our foreign subsidiaries is the applicable local currency. Results of
operations for foreign subsidiaries with functional currencies other than the U.S. dollar are translated into
U.S. dollars using average exchange rates during the period. Assets and liabilities of these foreign
subsidiaries are translated into U.S. dollars using the exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date,
and the resulting translation adjustments are accumulated as a component of shareholders' equity. All
foreign currency transaction gains and losses are recognized currently in the Consolidated Statements of
Income. We recorded (30.3 million), ($2.5 million) and $0.2 million of foreign currency gains (losses) in
2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively, and such amounts are included as a component of Other income
{expense), net.

Earnings Per Share

Basic and diluted earnings per share are computed by dividing net income by the weighted average
number of common shares and the weighted average number of common shares plus common share
equivalents, respectively. The weighted average number of common shares and equivalents for 2005
excluded 132,000 stock options, which were antidilutive.

Financial Instruments

We recognize all derivative instruments as either assets or liabilities in the balance sheet and measure
those instruments at fair value. Subsequent changes in fair value are reflected in current earnings or
other comprehensive income, depending on whether a derivative instrument is designated as part of a
hedge relationship and, if it is, the type of hedge relationship.

Use of Estimales

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
U.S. requires that our management make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenue and expense during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.
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Pension and Post Retirement Benefits

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension
and Qther Postretirement Plans. SFAS No. 158 requires us to recognize the funded status of the pension
and postretirement plans in our balance sheet, along with a corresponding noncash, after-tax adjustment
to shareholders’ equity. Funded status is determined as the difference between the fair value of plan
assets and the projected benefit obligation. Changes in the funded status will be recognized in other
comprehensive income (loss). We adopted SFAS No. 158 at the end of 2006, as required.

New Accounting Standards

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements. SFAS No. 157 defines
fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 applies under
other accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair value measurements. This statement will be
effective for us beginning January 1, 2008. We are evaluating the impact of this standard on our
consolidated financial statements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities — Including an Amendment of SFAS 115. SFAS No. 159 allows companies to
measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value that are not otherwise required
to be measured at fair value under generally accepted accounting principles. A company that elects the
fair value option for an eligible item will be required to recognize in current earnings any changes in that
item’s fair value in reporting periods subsequent to the date of adoption. SFAS No. 159 will be effective
for us beginning January 1, 2008. We are evaluating the impact of this standard on our consolidated
financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (revised 2007), Business Combinations ("SFAS No.
141R"). SFAS No. 141R still requires purchase accounting in business combinations, but it:

. requires an acquirer to recognize all assets and liabilities acguired at the acquisition date,
measured at their fair values as of that date, with limited exceptions;

. requires the expensing of all transaction costs and restructuring charges;

. requires the acquirer in a business combination achieved in stages to recognize the

identifiable assets and liabilities at the full amounts of their fair market values at the
acquisition date; and

. requires the acquirer to recognize contingent consideration, including earn-out
arrangements, at the acquisition date, measured at its fair value at that date, with
subsequent changes to be recognized in earnings.

SFAS No. 141R will apply to any acquisitions we complete on or after January 1, 2009, and earlier
adoption is not allowed.

OCEANEERING INTERNATIONAL




In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, Noncontrolling interests in Consolidated Financial
Staterments, an amendment of ARB No. 51. SFAS No. 160 requires that revenue, expenses, gains,
losses, net income or loss and other comprehensive income be reported in the consolidated financial
statements at the consolidated amounts, and that the amount of net income attributable to the
noncontrolling interest {commonly called minority interest) be reported separately in the consclidated
staternent of income. SFAS No. 160 alsc requires that the minority ownership interest in subsidiaries be
separately presented in the consolidated balance sheets within equity. We currently report the net
income attributable to minority interests within our consolidated statements of income below operating
income, and we report minority interest ownership on our consolidated balance sheets in other long-term
liahilities. These items have not been material to us to date. SFAS No. 160 requires prospective
application for us effective January 1, 2009, and earlier adoption is not allowed; however, presentation
and disclosure are retroactively required.

2, INVESTMENTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED AFFILIATES
Our investments in unconsolidated affiliates consisted of the following:

December 31,

(in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Medusa Spar LLC $ 63,183 $ 63,149 $ 57440
Other 1,472 1,347 4,158

$ 64,655 $ 64,496 $ 61,598

In December 2003, we purchased a 50% equity interest in Medusa Spar LLC for $43.7 million. Medusa
Spar LLC owns a 75% interest in a production spar platform. Medusa Spar LLC's revenue is derived
from processing oil and gas production for a fee based on the volumes processed (throughput}. The
majority working interest owner of the Medusa field, the spar’s initial location, has committed to deliver a
minimum throughput, which we expect will generate sufficient revenue to repay Medusa Spar LLC's bank
debt. Medusa Spar LLC financed its acquisition of its 75% interest in the production spar platform using
approximately 50% debt and 50% equity from its equity holders. We believe our maximum exposure to
loss from our investment in Medusa Spar LLC is our $63 million investment. Medusa SparLLC is a
variable interest entity. As we are not the primary beneficiary under FIN 46(R), we are accounting for our
investment in Medusa Spar LLC under the equity method of accounting. Summarized 100% financial
information relative to Medusa Spar LLC and a reconciliation of the underlying equity in net assets to our
carrying value follows.
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December 31,

(in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Medusa Spar LLC

Condensed Balance Sheets

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 18,181 $ 18,932 $ 8,267
Other current assets 879 1,487 4,402
Property and Equipment, net 128,983 138,461 147,938
Other Non-Current Assets 378 979 1,575
Total Assets $ 148,421 $ 159,859 § 162,182
LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY

Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt $ 8,810 $ 11,499 $ 13,744
Other Current Liabilities 16 24 21
Total Current Liabilities 8,826 11,523 13,765
Long-Term Debt, net of current maturities 12,928 21,738 33,237
Other Comprehensive Income 233 1,097 1,594
Members’ Equity 126,434 125,501 113,586
Total Liabilities and Members' Equity $ 148,421 $ 159,859 $ 162,182
Condensed Statements of Operations

Revenue $ 18839 $ 34216 $ 32,500
Depreciation (9.478) (9.477) (9.478)
General and Administrative {(112) (109) (83)
Interest {1,451) {1,935) (2,286)
Net income $§ 7798 $§ 22695 § 20,653
Reconciliation of the Carrying Value of the Investment to Underlying

Equity in Net Assets:

Underlying Equity in Net Assets - 50% $ 63217 $ 62,751 $ 56,793
Basis Differences (34) 398 647
Carrying Value of investment in Medusa Spar LLC in

the Consolidated Financial Staterments $ 63,183 $§ 63,148 $ 57,440

We are amortizing the basis differences on the straight-line method over six to 15 years.

Our 50% share of the cumulative undistributed earnings of Medusa Spar LLC was $21.4 and

$20.9 million at December 31, 2007 and 20086, respectively.
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3. INCOME TAXES

Effective January 1, 2007, we adopted FIN 48. This interpretation clarifies the criteria for recognizing
income tax benefits under SFAS No. 109, and requires disclosures about uncertain tax positions. Under
FIN 48, the financial statement recognition of the benefit for a tax position depends on the benefit being
more likely than not to be sustainable upon audit by the applicable taxing authority. If this threshold is
met, the tax benefit is then measured and recognized at the largest amount that is greater than 50
percent likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement. We made an adjustment of $1.6 million to our
retained earnings account as of January 1, 2007 to record the effect of our adoption of this interpretation.

We account for any applicable interest and penalties on uncertain tax positions as a component of our
provision for income taxes on our financial statements. We charged $0.4 million to income tax expense in
2007 for penalties and interest taken on our financial statements on uncertain tax positicns, which
brought our total liabilities for penalties and interest on uncertain tax positions to $2.8 million on our
balance sheet at December 31, 2007. Including associated foreign tax credits and penalties and interest,
we have accrued a total of $5.8 million in the caption "other long-term liabilities” on our balance sheet for
unrecognized tax benefits. All additions or reductions to those liabilities affect our effective income tax
rate in the periods of change.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of gross unrecognized tax benefits, not including
associated foreign tax credits and penalties and interest, is as follows {in thousands):

Balance at January 1, 2007 $ 7.001
Additions based on tax positions related to the current year 1,392
Reductions for expiration of statutes of limitations (587)
Settlements (356)
Balance at December 31, 2007 § 7,450

We do not believe that the total of unrecognized tax benefits will significantly increase or decrease in the
next 12 months.

We file a consolidated U.S. federal income tax return for Oceaneering International, Inc. and our domestic
subsidiaries, including acquired companies from their respective dates of acquisition. We conduct our
international operations in a number of locations that have varying faws and regulations with regard to
income and other taxes, some of which are subject to interpretation. Cur management believes that
adequate provisions have been made for all taxes that will ultimately be payable, although final
determination of tax liabilities may differ from our estimates. Income (loss) before income taxes
attributable to the U.S. was $184 million, $108 million and $43 million for 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. The following table sets forth our provisions for income taxes.

Year Ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
U.S. federal and state $ 54,040 $ 37,384 $ 11,930
Foreign 43,084 29,017 19,840
Total provision $ 97124 $ 66,401 $ 31,770
Current $ 86,859 $ 70,661 $ 32,071
Deferred 10,265 {4,260) {301)
Total provision $ 97124 $ 66,401 $ 31,770
Cash taxes paid $ 82171 $ 49876 $§ 19,372
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As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, our worldwide deferred tax assets, liabilities and net deferred tax
liabilities were as follows:

December 31,

{in thousands) 2007 2006
Deferred tax assets:

Deferred compensation $ 26,297 $ 19,988
Foreign tax credit carryforwards 3,236 6,815
Accrued expenses 7,009 9,648
Deferred income 3,557 3,412
Net aperating loss carryforwards 1,483 1,483
Other 12,067 10,902
Gross deferred tax assets 53,649 52,248
Valuation allowance - -
Total deferred tax assets § 53649 § 527248

Deferred tax liabilities:

Property and equipment $ 37664 F 34211
Basis difference in equity investments 15,059 13,794
Unremitted foreign earnings 7.509 4,151
Other 6,398 2,874
Total deferred tax liabilities $ 66,630 $ 55,030
Net deferred income tax liability $ 12,981 $ 2782

Qur net deferred tax liability is reflected on our balance sheet as follows:

December 31,

{in thousands) 2007 2006

Deferred tax liabilities $ 26,557 $ 21,400
Current deferred assets (13,576} (18,618)
Net deferred income tax liability $ 12981 $ 2,782

We have $17 million of earnings of our Swiss subsidiary, Oceaneering Internationat AG, that we consider
indefinitely reinvested outside the U.S. and that we do not expect to repatriate. None of our foreign tax
credits are scheduled to expire before December 31, 2014.

We currently have no valuation allowances for deferred tax assets. We conduct business through several
foreign subsidiaries and, although we expect our consolidated operations to be profitable, there is no
assurance that profits will be earned in entities or jurisdictions that have NOLs available. Income taxes,
computed by applying the federal statutory income tax rate of 35% to income before income taxes and
minority interests, are reconciled to the actual provisions for income taxes as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Computed U.S. statutory expense $ 97124 $ 66,862 $ 33,077
State and tocal taxes and other, net - {461) {1,307)
Total provision for income taxes $ 97,124 $ 66,401 $ 31,770

Included in the line for state and local taxes and other, net, for 2007, 2006 and 2005 are credits of
$1.1 million, $1.3 million and $1.8 million, respectively, from resolution of tax contingencies related to
certain tax liabilities we recorded in prior years.
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The following lists the earliest tax years open to examination by tax authorities where we have significant
operations;

Jurisdiction Periods
United States 2004
United Kingdom 2004
Norway 2000
Angola 2003
Nigeria 2002
Brazil 2001
Australia 2004
Canada 2004
4, DEBT

Long-term Debt consisted of the following:

December 31,

(in thousands) 2007 2006

6.72% Senior Notes $ 60,000 $ 80,000
Revolving credit facility 140,000 114,000
Long-term Debt $ 200,000 3 194,000

We have $60 million aggregate principal amount of 6.72% Senior Notes outstanding and scheduled to be
paid in three remaining equal annual installments each September through 2010.

As of December 31, 2007, we had a $300 million revolving credit facility under an agreement (the "Credit
Agreement”) that currently extends to January 2012, We have to pay a commitment fee ranging from
0.125% to 0.175% on the unused portion of the facility, depending on our debt-to-capitalization ratio.
Under the Credit Agreement, we have the option to borrow at the London Interbank Offered Rate
("LIBOR") plus a margin ranging from 0.50% to 1.25%, depending on our debt-to-capitalization ratio, or at
the agent bank's prime rate. At December 31, 2007, we had $140 million of borrowings outstanding
under the Credit Agreement and $160 million available for borrowing. The weighted average interest
rates on all our outstanding borrowings were 6.2% and 6.2% at December 31, 2007 and 20086,
respectively.

The 6.72% Senior Notes contain restrictive covenants as to minimum net worth, debt-to-capitalization
ratio, fixed charge coverage, interest coverage and restricted payments. Restricted payments, which
include dividends and treasury stock purchases, are limited from April 1, 1998, on a net basis, to the sum
of $25 million plus 50% of our consolidated net income after April 1, 1998, plus cash proceeds from any
sales of our common stock. The Credit Agreement contains restrictive covenants as to debt-to-
capitalization ratio and interest coverage.

Scheduled maturities of Long-term Debt outstanding as of December 31, 2007 were as follows:

6.72% Revolving

(in thousands) Notes Credit Total

2008 $ 20,000 $ - $§ 20,000
2009 20,000 - 20,000
2010 20,000 - 20,000
2011 - - -
2012 - 140,000 140,000
Total $ 60,000 $ 140,000 $ 200,000
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Maturities in 2008 are not classified as current as of December 31, 2007, since we are able and intend to
extend the maturity by reborrowing under the revolving credit facility with a maturity date after one year.

We made cash interest payments, net of amounts capitalized, of $15.2 million, $13.2 million and
$10.2 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

5. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Lease Commitments
At December 31, 2007, we occupied several facilities under noncancellable operating leases expiring at

various dates through 2025. Future minimum rentals under all of our operating leases, including vessel
rentals, are as follows:

fin thousands)

2008 $ 31124
2009 37,676
2010 25,211
201 23,708
2012 22,778
Thereafter 46,964
Total Lease Commitments $ 187,461

The above table includes $79 million related to the five-year time charter of a vessel and crew, which we
anticipate will start in the third quarter of 2008. Rental expense, which includes hire of vessels,
specialized equipment and real estate rental, was approximately $82 million, $34 million and $38 million
for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Insurance

We self-insure for workers' compensation, maritime employer's liability and comprehensive general
liability claims to levels we consider financially prudent, and carry insurance for exposures beyond the
self-insurance levels, which can be by occurrence or in the aggregate. We determine the level of
accruals by reviewing our historical experience and current year claim activity. We do not record accruals
on a present-value basis. We review larger claims with insurance adjusters and establish specific
reserves for all known liabilities. We establish an additional reserve for incidents incurred but not
reported to us for each year using management estimates and based on prior experience. We believe
that we have established adequate accruals for uninsured expected liabilities arising from those
obligations. However, it is possible that future earnings could be affected by changes in our estimates
relating to these matters.

Litigation

Various actions and claims are pending against us, most of which are covered by insurance. Although
we cannot predict the ultimate outcome of these matters, we believe the ultimate liability, if any, that may
result from these actions and claims will not materially affect our results of operations, cash flow or
financial pesition.

Letters of Credit

We had $21 million and $17 million in letters of credit outstanding as of December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively, as guarantees in force for self-insurance requirements and various performance and bid
bonds, which are usuaily for the duration of the applicable contract.

Financial Instruments and Risk Concentration

In the normal course of business, we manage risks associated with foreign exchange rates and interest
rates through a variety of strategies, including the use of hedging transactions. As a matter of policy, we

OCEANEERING INTERNATIONAL




do not use derivative instruments unless there is an underlying exposure. We do not use derivative
instruments for trading or speculative purposes. At December 31, 2007, we did not have any derivative
financial instruments in place.

At December 31, 2007, our unconsolidated affiliate, Medusa Spar LLC, had an interest rate swap in place
related to its outstanding debt. The notional amount of the interest rate swap is equal to the outstanding
principal amount of the loan throughout the term of the debt agreement. Qur share of the fair value of the
interest rate swap is deferred in accumulated other comprehensive income and is subsequently
reclassified into equity earnings from unconsolidated affiliates in the periods in which the hedged interest
payments on the variable rate debt affect earnings.

Other financial instruments that potentially subject us to concentrations of credit risk are principally cash
and cash equivalents and accounts receivable. The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents and
bank borrowings approximate their fair values due to the shart maturity of those instruments or the short-
term duration of the associated interest rate periods. Accounts receivable are generated from a broad
group of customers, primarily from within the energy industry, which is our major source of revenue. Due
to their short-term nature, carrying values of our accounts receivable and accounts payable approximate
fair market value.

We estimated the fair value of our $60 million of 6.72% Senior Notes to be $62 million as of
December 31, 2007. We arrived at this estimate by computing the present value of the future principal
and interest payments using a yield-to-maturity interest rate for securities of similar quality and term.

6. OPERATIONS BY BUSINESS SEGMENT AND GEOGRAPHIC AREA
Business Segment Information

We are a global oilfield provider of engineered services and products primarily to the offshore oil and gas
industry, with a focus on deepwater applications. Through the use of our applied technology expertise,
we also serve the defense and aerospace industries. Qur Oil and Gas business consists of Remotely
Operated Vehicles ("ROVs"), Subsea Products, Subsea Projects, Mobile Offshore Production Systems
and Inspection. Our ROV segment provides submersible vehicles operated from the surface to support
offshore oil and gas exploration, production and construction activities. Our Subsea Products segment
supplies a variety of built-to-order specialty subsea hardware. Qur Subsea Projects segment provides
multiservice vessels, oilfield diving and support vessel operations, which are used primarily in inspection,
repair and maintenance activities. Our Mobile Offshore Production Systems segment provides offshore
production facilities through three mobile cffshore production systems that we own and a 50%-owned
entity, which owns 75% of another system. Our Inspection segment provides customers with a wide
range of third-party inspection services to satisfy contractual structural specifications, internal safety
standards and regulatory requirements. Qur Advanced Technologies business provides project
management, engineering services and equipment for applications in non-oilfield markets. Unallocated
Expenses are those not associated with a specific business segment. These consist of expenses related
to our incentive and deferred compensation plans, including restricted stock and bonuses, as well as
other general expenses, including corporate administrative expenses.
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The table that follows presents Revenue, Income from Operations, Depreciation and Amortization
Expense and Equity Earnings of Unconsolidated Affiliates by business segment:

Year Ended December 31,

{(in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Revenue
Oil and Gas
Remotely Operated Vehicles $ 531,381 $ 410,256 $ 315,178
Subsea Products 521,937 364,510 239,039
Subsea Projects 257,752 155,046 121,628
Inspection 219,686 169,014 154,857
Mobile Offshore Production Systems 50,103 52,931 50,091
Total Qil and Gas 1,580,859 1,151,757 880,793
Advanced Technologies 162,221 128,441 117,750
Total $ 1,743,080 $1,280,198 $ 998,543
income from Operations
Qil and Gas
Remotely Operated Vehicles $ 144242 $ 111022 $ 68962
Subsea Products 92,804 53,645 13,941
Subsea Projects 92,841 59,585 26,219
Inspection 22,749 14,946 7,946
Mobile Offshore Production Systems 11,048 16,001 16,796
Total Oil and Gas 363,684 255,199 133,864
Advanced Technologies 14,458 11,585 12,539
Unallocated Expenses {88,519) (72,448) {52,334)
Total $ 289623 $ 194,336 $ 94069
Depreciation and Amortization Expense
Qil and Gas
Remotely Operated Vehicles $ 46305 $ 40,357 $ 39,837
Subsea Products 17,201 12,307 11,992
Subsea Projects 9111 6,642 6,938
Inspection 3,137 2,449 5,100
Mobile Offshore Production Systems 13,510 13,168 11,612
Total Oil and Gas 89,264 74,923 75,479
Advanced Technologies 1,438 2,167 2,305
Unallocated Expenses 3,074 3,366 1,829
Total $ 93,776 § 80456 $ 79613
Equity Earnings of Unconsolidated Affiliates
Oil and Gas
Remotely Operated Vehicles $ - § - % 38
Mobile Offshore Production Systems 3,779 11,213 10,082
Total Oil and Gas 3,779 11,213 10,120
Advanced Technologies 251 838 290
Total $ 4,030 $ 12,051 $ 10410

We determine income from operations for each business segment before interest income or expense,
other income (expense), minority interests and provision for income taxes. We do not consider an

allocation of these items to be practical.
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For the year ended December 31, 2007, revenue from one customer, BP plc and subsidiaries, in our oil
and gas business segments accounted for 14% of our total consolidated revenue. No individual customer
accounted for more than 10% of our consolidated revenue in either of the years ended

December 31, 2006 or 2005.

The following table presents Assets and Goodwill by business segment as of and for the periods
indicated:

December 31,

{in thousands) 2007 2006
Assets
Oil and Gas
Remotely Operated Vehicles $ 550,040 § 431,688
Subsea Products 518,790 351,865
Subsea Projects 140,870 102,826
Inspection 69,996 71,309
Mobile Offshare Production Systems 128,969 142,017
Total Qil and Gas 1,408,665 1,099,705
Advanced Technologies 42,185 45,585
Corporate and Other 80,590 96,732
Total $ 1,531,440 3 1,242,022__
Goodwill
Qil and Gas
Remotely Operated Vehicles $ 27,734 $ 26547
Subsea Products 56,783 37,504
Inspection 16,980 12,426
Totat Oil and Gas 101,497 76,477
Advanced Technologies 10,454 10,454
Total $ 111,951 $ 86,931

All assets specifically identified with a particular business segment have heen segregated. Cash and
cash equivalents, certain other current assets, certain investments and other assets have not been
allocated to particular business segments and are included in Corporate and Other.

The following table presents Capital Expenditures by business segment as of and for the periods
indicated:

Year Ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Capital Expenditures
Oil and Gas
Remotely Operated Vehicles $ 121643 $ 112,838 $ 56,102
Subsea Products 65,727 38,000 64,680
Subsea Projects 27,901 23,620 4,671
Inspection 14,801 3,353 5675
Maobile Offshore Production Systems 650 13,614 3,071
Total Qil and Gas 230,722 191,425 134,199
Advanced Technologies 621 1,137 3,067
Corporate and Other 2,452 1,280 5,003
Total $ 233795 § 193,842_ $ 142,269

Capital expenditures in the table ahove include the cost of business acquisitions.
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Geographic Operating Areas
The following table summarizes certain financial data by geographic area:

Year Ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Revenue
Foreign:
United Kingdom $ 242,680 $ 156,328 $ 162,138
West Africa 225,879 151,580 130,799
Norway 176,467 105,373 129,250
Asia 90,223 55,481 66,459
Brazil 78,662 46,925 37,804
Australia 25,619 42,074 30,266
Canada 19,935 24,593 16,092
Other 21,195 17,483 15,444
Total Foreign 880,660 599,837 588,252
United States 862,420 680,361 410,291
Total $ 1,743,080 $1,280,198 $ 998,543
Long-Lived Assets
Foreign:
Europe $ 180,911 $ 120,321 $ 7544
West Africa 81,647 69,230 55,069
Australia 40,091 47,589 55,171
Brazil 25,447 22,133 21,641
Asia 37,380 14,319 12,141
Other 7,551 8,844 17,795
Total Foreign 373,027 282,436 237,258
United States 462,109 408,979 336,381
Total $ 835136 $ 691,415 $ 573,639

Revenue is based on location where services are performed and products are manufactured.
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Additional Income Statement Detail
The following schedule shows our revenue, costs and gross margins by services and products:

' Year Ended December 31,
(in thousands) 2007 2006 2005

Revenue:
Services $ 1,193,797 $ 893,335 $ 749,645
Products 549,283 386,863 248,898
Total revenue 1,743,080 1,280,198 998,543
Cost of Services and Products:
Services B60,582 634,243 575,347
Products 405,115 304,028 209,736
Unallocated expenses 64,098 45,806 34,180
Total cost of services and products 1,329,795 984,077 819,263
Gross margin:
Services 333,215 259,092 174,288
Products 144,168 82,835 39,162
Unallocated expenses {64,098) {45,806) (34,180)
Total gross margin § 413,285 $ 296,121 $ 179,280
7. ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Accrued liabilities and other long-term liabilities consisted of the following:

December 31,

{in thousands) 2007 2006
Accrued Liabilities:

Payroll and related costs $ 126,051 $ 86,128
Accrued job costs 48,814 43,475
Deferred revenue, including billings in excess of revenue recognized 28,770 17,119
Self-insurance reserves for claims expected to be paid within one year 1,775 6,414
Other 30,338 26,937
Total Accrued Liabilities S 235,748 $ 180,073
Other Long-Term Liabilities:

Deferred income taxes $ 26557 $ 21,400
Self-insurance reserves not expected to be paid within one year 7,019 5,632
Accrued post-employment benefit obligations 13,396 11,656
Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan 22,444 26,349
Other 7,739 6,515
Total Other Long-Term Liabilities - $ 77155 § 71,552
8. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS AND SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS PLAN

Retirement Investment Plans

We have several employee retirement investment plans that, taken together, cover most of our full time
employees. The Oceaneering Retirement Investment Plan is a 401(k) plan in which U.S. employees may
participate by deferring a portion of their gross monthly salary and directing us to contribute the deferred
amount to the plan. We match a portion of the employees’ deferred compensation. Qur contributions to
the 401(k) ptan were $9.6 million, $7.6 million and $5.8 million for the plan years ended

December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
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We also make matching contributions to other foreign employee savings plans similar in nature to a
401(k) plan. In 2007, 2006 and 2005, these contributions, principally related to plans associated with
U.K. and Norwegian subsidiaries, were $3.8 million, $3.5 million and $2.7 million, respectively.

The Oceaneering international, Inc. Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan covers selected key
management employees and executives, as approved by the Compensation Committee of our Board of
Directors (the "Compensation Committee”). Under this plan, we accrue an amount determined as a
percentage of the participant's gross monthly salary and the amounts accrued are treated as if they are
invested in one or more investment vehicles pursuant to this plan. Expenses related to this plan during
the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 were $2.9 million, $3.2 million and $2.0 million,
respectively.

We have defined benefit plans covering some of our employees in the U.K. and Norway. There are no
further benefits accruing under the U.K. plan, and the Norway plan is closed to new participants. In
accordance with SFAS No. 158, in 2006 we recognized the funded status of the Norwegian plan by
recording an adjustment to accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) of ($1.5 million), net of tax of
$0.8 million. The projected benefit obligations for both plans were $24 million and $21 million, at
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, and the projected fair values of the plan assets for both plans
were $16 million and $14 million at December 31, 2007 and 2008, respectively.

Incentive and Stock Option Plans

Under our 2005 Incentive Plan (the “Incentive Plan"), a total of 2,400,000 shares of our common stock
was made available for awards to employees and nonemployee members of cur Board of Directors.

The Incentive Plan is administered by the Compensation Committee; however, the full Board of Directors
makes determinations regarding awards to nonemployee directors under the Incentive Plan. The
Compensation Committee or our Board of Directors, as applicable, determines the type or types of
award(s) to be made to each participant and sets forth in the related award agreement the terms,
conditions and limitations applicable to each award. Stock options, stock appreciation rights and stock
and cash awards may be made under the Incentive Plan. Options outstanding under the Incentive Plan
and prior plans vest over a six-month, a three-year or a four-year period and are exercisable over a
period of five, seven or ten years after the date of grant or five years after the date of vesting. Under the
Incentive Plan, a stock option must have a term not exceeding seven years from the date of grant and
must have an exercise price of not less than the fair market value of a share of our common stock on the
date of grant. The Compensation Committee may not: (1) grant, in exchange for a stock option, a new
stock option having a lower exercise price; or (2) reduce the exercise price of a stock option. In light of
the expense recognition requirements established by SFAS 123R, which we adopted effective as of
January 1, 2006, the Compensation Committee has expressed its intention to refrain from using stock
options as a component of employee compensation for our executive officers and other employees for the
foreseeable future. Additionally, the Board of Directors has expressed its intention to refrain from using
stock options as a component of nonemployee director compensation for the foreseeable future.

In 2007 and 2008, the Compensation Committee granted awards of performance units under the
Incentive Plan to certain of our key executives and employees. In 2007, our Board of Directors granted
awards of performance units under the Incentive Plan to our Chairman of the Board. The performance
units awarded are scheduled to vest in full on the third anniversary of the award date, or pro rata over
three years if the participant meets certain age and years of service requirements. The Compensation
Committee and the Board of Directors have approved specific financial goals and measures based on our
cumulative cash flow from operations, and a comparison of return on invested capital and cost of capital
for the three-year periods January 1, 2007 through December 31, 2009 and January 1, 2006 through
December 31, 2008 for the awards granted in 2007 and 20086, respectively, to be used as the basis for
the final value of the performance units. The final value of each performance unit may range from $0 to
$125. Upon vesting and determination of value, the value of the performance units will be payable in
cash. As of December 31, 2007, there were 168,567 performance units outstanding.

Through 2005, we recognized no compensation cost for stock options as we issued no options at an
option price below the fair market value of the stock at the date of the grant. See Note 1 —"Summary of
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Major Accounting Policies — Stock-Based Compensation” for fair market values and pro forma financial
effects had compensation cost for these stock options been determined based on fair value.

The following is a summary of our stock option activity for the three years ended December 31, 2007:

Weighted
Shares Average
under Exercise Aggregate
Option Price Intrinsic Value
Balance at December 31, 2004 3,018,100 $ 1314
Granted 84,000 16.90
Exercised (1,694,950) 12.74
Forfeited (93,700) 13.05
Balance at Decemnber 31, 2005 1,313,450 13.91
Granted - -
Exercised (624,300) 13.24 $ 14,589,000
Forfeited {25,200) 12.20
Balance at December 31, 2006 663,250 14.61
Granted - -
Exercised (374,850) 14.08 $15,125,000
Forfeited (2,400) 1158
Balance at December 31, 2007 286,000 3 15.32 $ 14,880,000

The following table provides information about the opticns outstanding at December 31, 2007.

Qutstanding Exercisable
Weighted
Number of Average Weighted Number of Weighted

Range of Shares at Remaining Average Shares at Average
Exercise December 31, Contractual Exercise December 31, Exercise
Prices 2007 Life (years) Price 2007 Price
$11.18-13.04 82,250 0.70 $ 11.46 82,250 $ 11.46
$13.05-16.77 81,600 1.10 $ 15.14 81,600 $ 15.14
$16.78 — 18.64 122,150 1.67 3 18.05 122,150 $ 18.05

The aggregate intrinsic value of our exercisable stock options was $14.9 million at December 31, 2007.
We received $5.3 million and $8.3 million from the exercise of stock options in 2007 and 2006,
respectively. The excess tax benefit realized from tax deductions from stock options for 2007 and 2006
was $4.6 million and $4.2 million, respectively. SFAS No. 123R requires that excess tax benefits from
share-based compensation be classified as a cash outflow in cash flows from operating activities and an
inflow in cash flows from financing activities in the statement of cash flows.

Restricted Stock Plan Information

During 2007 and 2006, the Compensation Committee granted restricted units of our common stock to
certain of our key executives and employees. During 2007, our Board of Directors granted restricted
units of our common stock to our Chairman of the Board of Directors and restricted common stock to our
other nonemployee directors. During 2006, our Board of Directors granted restricted common stock to
our nonemployee directors. No restricted common stock units or shares of restricted common stock were
granted in 2005. Over 80% of the grants made in 2007 and 2006 to our employees vest in full on the
third anniversary of the award date, conditional upon continued employment. The remainder of the grants
made to employees in 2007 and 2006 and all the grants made to our Chairman of the Board of Directors
in 2007 and 2006 can vest pro rata over three years, provided the participant meets certain age and i
years-of-service requirements. For the grants to each of the participant employees and the Chairman of

our Board of Directors made in 2007 and 2006, the participant will be issued a share of our common

“stock for the participant’s vested common stock units at the earlier of three years or, if the participant
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vested earlier after meeting the age and service requirements, at termination of employment or service.
The grants made in 2007 and 2006 to our nonemployee directors vest in full on the first anniversary of the
award date conditional upon continued service as a director. Pursuant to grants of restricted common
stock units to our employees made prior to 2005, at the time of each vesting, a participant receives a tax-
assistance payment. Our tax-assistance payments were $7.0 million in 2007 and $7.3 million in 2006.
The excess tax benefit realized from tax deductions in excess of financial statement expense was

$3.4 million and $3.2 million in 2007 and 20086, respectively.

The following is a summary of our unvested restricted stock and restricted stock units for the years ended
December 31, 2007 and 2006:

Weighted
Average Aggregate
Fair Value Intrinsic
Shares at Grant Date Value
Balance at December 31, 2005 1,016,700 $ 9.47
Granted 233,900 28.67
Vested (304,800) 9.03 $ 13,131,000
Forfeited (28,550) 10.81
Balance at December 31, 2006 917,250 14.47
Granted 245,750 41.05
Vested (259,933) 12.02 $ 13,770,000
Forfeited (17,617) 25.44
Balance at December 31, 2007 885450 & 22.35

Each grantee of shares of restricted common stock is deemed to be the record owner of those shares
during the restriction period, with the right to vote and receive any dividends on those shares. The
restricted stock units granted in 2007 and 2006 carry no voting rights, but they carry a dividend right
should we pay dividends on our common stock.

Prior to December 31, 2005, we had accounted for our grants of restricted stock units as variable awards,
until the associated performance criteria had been met. Effective with our adoption of SFAS No. 123R,
the unvested portions of these grants have been valued at their estimated fair values as of their
respective grant dates. We used a Black-Scholes methodology to produce a Monte Carlo simulation
model, which allows for the incorporation of the performance criteria that had to be met before the awards
were earned by the holders. The valuations allowed for variables, such as volatility, the risk-free interest
rate, dividends and performance hurdles. The assumptions used for grants prior to 2006 were: expected
volatility of 50% (based on historic analysis}), risk-free interest rate of 2% and no dividends. The grants in
2007 and 2006 were subject only to vesting conditioned on continued employment; therefore, these
grants were valued at the grant date fair market value as of the close on the New York Stock Exchange.

Compensation expense under the restricted stock plans was $25.0 million, $17.0 million and $8.8 million
for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. As of December 31, 2007, we had
$7.8 million of future expense to be recognized related to our restricted stock unit plans over a weighted
average remaining life of 1.7 years.

Shareholder Rights Plan

We adopted a Stockholder Rights Plan on November 20, 1992, which was amended and restated as of
November 18, 2001. Each Right initially entitles the holder to purchase from us a fractional share
consisting of one two-hundredth of a share of Series B Junior Participating Preferred Stock, at a purchase
price of $30 per fractional share, subject to adjustment. The Rights generally will not become exercisable
until ten days after a public announcement that a person or group has acquired 15% or more of our
common stock (thereby becoming an "Acquiring Person") or the commencement of a tender or exchange
offer that would result in a person or group becoming an Acquiring Person (the earlier of such dates being
called the "Distribution Date"). Rights were issued and will cantinue to be issued with all shares of our
common stock that are issued until the Distribution Date. Until the Distribution Date, the Rights will be
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evidenced by the certificates representing our common stock and will be transferable only with our
common stock. Generally, if any person or group becomes an Acquiring Person, each Right, other than
Rights beneficially owned by the Acquiring Person {which will thereupon become void), will thereafter
entitle its holder to purchase, at the Rights’ then current exercise price, shares of our common stock
having a market value of two times the exercise price of the Right. At any time until ten days after a
public announcement that the Rights have been triggered, we will generally be entitled to redeem the
Rights for $0.01 and to amend the Rights in any manner other than certain specified exceptions. Certain
subsequent amendments are also permitted. The Rights expire on November 20, 2011.

Post-Employment Benefit

In November 2001, we entered into an agreement with our Chairman (the "Chairman") who was also then
our Chief Executive Officer. That agreement was amended in 2006. Pursuant to the amended
agreement, the Chairman relinquished his position as Chief Executive Officer in May 2006 and began his
post-employment service period on December 31, 2006. The agreement provides for a specific service
period ending no later than August 15, 2011, during which the Chairman, acting as an independent
contractor, has agreed to serve as nonexecutive Chairman of our Board of Directors for so long as our
Board of Directors desires that he shall continue to serve in that capacity. The agreement provides the
Chairman with post-employment benefits for ten years following his services to us. The amendment
included a lump-sum cash buyout, paid in 2007, of the Chairman’s entitlement to perquisites and
administrative assistance during that ten-year period (expected to run from 2011 to 2021). As a result,
we recorded $2.8 million of associated expense in the fourth quarter of 2006. The agreement also
provides for medical coverage on an after-tax basis to the Chairman, his spouse and children during his
service with us and thereafter for their lives. We are recognizing the net present vaiue of the post-
employment benefits over the expected service pericd. If the service period is terminated for any reason
{other than the Chairman's refusal to continue serving}, we will recognize all the previously unaccrued
benefits in the period in which that termination occurs. Our total accrued liabilities, current and long-term,
under this post-employment benefit were $4.8 million and $10.5 million at December 31, 2007 and 20086,
respectively.

As part of the arrangements relating to the Chairman’s post-employment benefits, we established an
irrevocable grantor trust, commonly known as a "rabbi trust,” to provide the Chairman greater assurance
that we will set aside an adequate source of funds to fund payment of the post-retirement benefits under
this agreement, including the medical coverage benefits payable to the Chairman, his spouse and their
children for their lives. In connection with establishment of the rabbi trust, we contributed to the trust a life
insurance policy on the life of the Chairman, which we had previously obtained, and we agreed to
continue to pay the premiums due on that policy. When the life insurance policy matures, the proceeds of
the policy will become assets of the trust. If the value of the trust exceeds $4 million, as adjusted by the
consumer price index, at any time after January 1, 2012, the excess may be paid to us. However,
because the trust is irrevocable, the assets of the trust are generally not available to fund our future
operations until the trust terminates, which is not expected to be during the lives of the Chairman, his
spouse or their children. Furthermore, no tax deduction will be available for our contributions to the trust;
however, we may benefit from future tax deductions for benefits actually paid from the trust (although
benefit payments from the trust are not expected to occur in the near term, because we expect to make
direct payments of those benefits for the foreseeable future).
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SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)
(in thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended December 31, 2007

Quarter Ended March 31 June 30 Sept. 30 Dec. 31 Total
Revenue $344,004 $432,041 $485424 $481611 $1,743,080
Gross profit 79,602 106,010 117,513 110,160 413,285
Income from operations 53,536 76,298 85,605 74,184 289,623
Net income 33,166 47,873 53,853 45,482 180,374
Diluted earnings per share $ 060 $ 08 $ 09 $ 081 $ 3.24
Weighted average number of

commoan shares and equivalents 55,474 55,678 55,821 55,934 55,755

Year Ended December 31, 2006

Quarter Ended March 31 June 30 Sept. 30 Dec. 31 Total
Revenue $289,509 $311,063 $337,263 $342,363 $1,280,198
Gross profit 60,317 71,957 88,225 75,622 296,121
Income from operations 37,964 47,899 60,591 47,882 194,336
Net income 25,502 30,601 38,547 29,844 124,494
Diluted earnings per share $ 047 $ 056 $ 070 $§ 054 § 2.26

Weighted average number of
common shares and equivalents 54,776 55,088 55,283 55,349 54,991
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gDirectors & Key Management

DIRECTORS

T. Jar Corrins
. President and Chief Executive Qfficer of
:Oeeaneering International, Inc,

EJr‘.nm.m J. DesRocHE
:Partner and a Director of National Power Company

Davip 5. Hooker

:Chairman of Ocean Hover Limited and Avoco Secure Lid,
iand a Director of Aminex pic and a Director of Eleuthera
Capital Ltd.

Jou~ R, Hurr

‘Chairman of Oceanecring International, Inc., a Director of Bf
iServices Company, a Director of KBR, Inc., a Director of Rowan
i Companies, Inc., and a Director of Suncer Erergy Ine.

‘D. Micnaes HucHes
Ouwner of The Broken Arrow Ranch and Affiliated Businesses

‘Hagrzis ). Papras
i President of Pappas Restaurants, fnc. and a
:Director of Lubys. Inc.

‘CorRPORATE MANAGEMENT

°T. Jay CoLrins

i ‘resident and Chief Executive Officer

M. Kevin McEvoy

‘Executive Vice President

‘Marvin ], Micuza

*Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Georce R. HausengrEICH, JR.
‘Senior Fice President, General Counsel, and Secretary

;E. Ricuarp Friseie
i8enior Vice President Deepoater Teehnologies

iStepHEN E. Brapsuaw
“Vice President Business Development

JANET G. CHARLES
i Vice President Human Resources

EGnncc K. Farris
:Wice President Information Technology

‘W, Carpon GERNER
Wite President and Chief Arcounting Officer

“Topo HoerLER
Vice President Supply Chain Management

RoerT P. MinGola
" Vice President and Treasurer

:RoBERT P. MOSCHETTA
“Vice President Health Safety Environment

Jack JurkosHEK
\Diirectar Investor Relations

iDavip K. LAWRENCE
tAssistant General Counsel

:Davio M. Leunc
iManager Insurance

iRoserT H. STEVENSON
i Munager Taxation

Hn L. Zacuary
irector Financial Business Systems

‘ADMINISTRATIVE MANAGEMENT
11\A\IER]CAS

Jerry A. GAUTHIER
{Vice President & General Manager, Americas Region

iCrarLEs A. RovcE
: Viee President, Sales & Marketing

iScoTT A. WAGNER
:Vice President & General Manager, Country Manager Brazil
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‘Duane Lanory
“Region Controller

‘Duane LobpricuE
Region Human Resources Manager

-ErnEsTO Marcos

Country Manager, Mexito

Bruce McDowEeLL
Manager, Global Sourcing

‘PEc NEwWMAN
‘Manager, Marketing

‘Warne A. REep
Manager, HSE Americas

'EASTERN HEMISPHERE

ALeEx WESTWOOD
Senior Vice President

ALan Davibpson
“Supply Chain Manager
‘Dave Evans

HSE Manager

%COLIN ForBEs
iRegional Legal Counsel

Frona INKSTER
"Director, Human Resonrces

;BI LL KirrTon
i Regional Manager, IT

ICHANDRU LALWANI
-Region Controller

‘Berwnt Aace Lie
General Manager, Commercial & Administration, Norway

IANDREW MACKIE

Marager, Tux

AMmir THURAISINGHAM
i Controller, Asia

ROV

‘Kevin Kerins
Vice President &8 General Munager WW ROV

‘Davip KevLsaro
“Business Manager

Magrk Puivie
- Technical Manager

‘DELL D. Dobson
{Manager, WW ROV SCM

‘BretrT EvCcHNER
General Manager Operational Engineering and Installations

;Tom HavLican
‘Manager, WW ROV Equipment Maintenance

J. Davir MacNaMara
Manager, Horldwide ROV Materials

‘AMERICAS

RosErT “PAaT” MANNINA
Vice President £ General Manager, Americas ROV

Terr Harnis
-Commercial Manager

“Tia LawreNcE
Manager, Canada

Crris NicuoLsoN
General Manager, Decp Sea Systems International

‘BRAZIL

Damon Hickey
Operations Manager

UK.

;ESPEN INGERRETSEN
ROV Manager

NORWAY

Erix H. Saestap
General Manager

AFRICA, MIDDLE EAST, AND CASPIAN SEA

Marminy McDonaLp
General Manager

Joxarnonr E. Pravrorp

:Commercial Manager

‘Harowp RoBERTS

Angola Country Manager

NEIL WELLAM

Manager, Business Development, Nigeria

ASIA

ANDREW ATKINSON
General Manager

Frep KiLcore

Operations Manager

Sussea PronpucTs

PuiLie 1. GarpNER
Senior Vice President, Subsea Products

GROUP MANAGEMENT

Rosert C. BurNeTT
Contracts Group Manager

Aran CurTis
Controfler, Subsea Products

ANTHONY FRANKLIN

Director, Subsea Products Business Development

STacey GREENE

Manager, Subsea Products HSE

‘Russert W, TaLsor
i Difrector, Subsea Products Quality Assurance

MULTIFLEX

Peter WorMaN
Vice President, Engineering

CrarLys W. Davison
Vice President, Manuafacturing

Craic QUENSTEDT
Controfler, Multifiex

Jerrrey M. WraiTE
Vice President, Sales ' Marketing

CHARLIE BACKHOUSE
General Manager, Multiffex UK.

Jurio Damiao
General Manager, Multiffex Brazil

CARLOs NIEMEYER
Commercial Manager, Multiflex Brazil

AvraN STEVENSON
Sales Manager, Multiflex UK.

LiNDA WAINRIGHT
General Manager, Multiflex U.S.

Duke Warson
Sales Manager, Multifiex U.S.
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ENGINEERING

Maak GALAGAZA
Vice President, OIE

Drew TrenT
Vice President, Decpuwater Technical Solutions

CHap BLancHARD
Manager, IWVOCS Service/Rental

Ross BoxLEITNER
Manager, MIMIC

CHaRrLEs Eric Brown
.General Manager, OIE UK.

Joun CHARALAMBIDES
Manager, Pipeline Repair Systems

Mrcuael T. CoNNINGHAM
Manager, Sales &8 Marketing

Jouxn Davis
Manager, Intervention Engineering

Paur A. FrixsTap
General Manager, Rotator

Bruce T. GarTHWAITE
Vice President, Explorasion (& Production Suppert

CHarLes B. Hansexn
General Manager, DTS Norway

CurTis HENSLEY
Manager, DTS Supply Chain & Manufacturing Operations

Michaer Hesser, Je,
“Manager, High Performance Cable

Patrick Hiwl
Controller, GIE

Dave McKecHunte
Manager, Eastern Hemispbere DTS

PeTeER A. MoLes
Chief Engineer, Special Projects

Ricnarp Parker
Manager, OIE Supply Chain & Manufacturing Operations

‘Micnere Reep
Manager, U.S. DTS Operations

GrAEME REVYNOLDS
Manager, BOP Controls

Mixe Roseins
General Manager, Grayloc Products

Van VanDeCaPELLE
Manager, Technical Services

Sussea ProjecTs/Diving

Nors D. Goamax
Vice President (& Genera! Manager, Oilfield Projects & Diving

PROJECTS

RanparL G. Kire
Manager, IMR Profects

‘Warren KLINGLER
Manager, Dive/Marine

Mike ELuis
Manager, Installatian Projects

Lanny L. Farcour
Cemmercial Manager

‘Braine LeCompTE
-Manager, Business Development

‘Tommy Lorp
-Manager, Shore Base Logistics

PaTRICK MATTHEWS
Manager, Survey

Dave Mepeiros
AMR Projects Manager

‘StTeve Ormos
Profects Group Manager

KirRK SCHUMACHER
Muanager, Engineering

Mixe Toop
Nlunger, Operatiam

DIVING

STeEvEN HaLL
Manager, Diving

Jack Coucn
Munager, Special Projects

‘Gerawp Kuein
Munager, Operations

MARINE

Darrin McGuire
Manager, Marine

INsPECTION

Eric JouNsTON
Vice President, Inspection

Jeun Dergnan
CQI Manager

Marcorm Gray
Pipelines Manager

Joun McMEenEmY
Internatisnal Commercial Manager

James McNas
Global Techrology Manager

Frances MiLne
Business Manqger

C. Anpre OLIvIER
Inspection Manager, Americas

Neie RippLe
Inspection Manager, Asia, Afvica, & Middle East

NigEL SMiTH
ACET Software Development Manager

Joun Warkinson
Inspection Manager, UK. NDT

MosiLe OFrsHoRrRE PropucTiON
SYSTEMS

CuypeE HewrLeTT
Vite President & General Manager

Eric Apams
Viee President, Bustness Development

Mike CHERRY
Operations Manager, Angola

Anpy HENDERSON
Munager, Subsea Tiebacks

Max KATTNER
Hngineering Manager

Ep Lives
Project Manager

Bex NewTton
Managing Director, Australia

Rick SeoTTswoon
Construction Manager

‘Ricnard J. THomesoN
Manager of Operations

ADvaNCED TECHNOLOGIES

Joun R. KreIDER
Senior Vice President

CuarLes B. Younc
Vice President, Strategic Business Planning

‘Ronerr Brown

: Controller

RENAULD WASHINGTON
Manager, HSE

MARINE SERVICES

Tom STOoWELL
Vice President & Gem ral Manager

Chuck Dory
Director, Submarine a 1d Surface Ship Programs

MarTIN MERZWY, Sr.
Directer, Business Dew topment

Jou~n RiTZO
Director, Production § ipport Group

JeFEREY ScHMID
Director, Submarine § tfety

Tom VANPETTEN
Director, Deep Subme gence and Special Projects Programs

OCEANEERINC SPACE SYSTEMS (0SS)

Mars M. GrrriiMan
Vice President & Gem ral Manager

James F. Buchrt
Director, Strategic Pla ining

Kent CopLann
Program Manager, Ri botics 8 Automation Proyrams

Jim Kuine
Manager, Product Ass wance/HSE

Rov KLusexpogl
Director, Business Det slopment

Frank SaceR
Pragram Manager, O; erations & Services / NBL

Dave WaLLack
General Manager, The mal & Military Systzms

Micnael WiTHL ¢
Sr. Program Marager, Human Space Flight Programs

OCEANEERINC TECHNOLOGIES (OTECH)

Duncan McLEean
Vice President €3 Gen ral Manager

Prir BeiErL
Manager of Programs Marine Projects

Jonx Hamsmonp
Manager, OTECH $in Diega

Larry KanrL
Manager, Marine Sys. 2my

Jim KeLoy
Manager of Programs Marine Systzms

Georce KotuLa
Manager, Operations

Craic McLavcnuuin
Munager, OTECH N witicos

Dave WeavEg
Manager, Marine Pre ects

ENTERTAINMENT SYSTEMS

Dave Mauck
Manager, Entertainm nt Systems

Mixe BosnEars
Manager, Business De yelopment

BRrian ScHwaTks
Manager, Engineeriny Services

Nick TrnomMarEa:
Manager, Business Ad ninistration Services

Ron Ganreex
Manager of Programs
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{THE ENTIRE FoRM 10K, AS FILED WITH THE Al statements in this report that express a belief,

‘SECURITIES ; - . :
Secu anD Excance COMMISSION, MAY BE texpectation, or infention, as well as those that

{ACCESSED THROUGH THE OCEANEERING WEBSITE, : L .
: ) iare not historical fact, are forward-looking
IWWW.OCEANEERING.COM, BY SELECTING “INVESTOR

‘ReLations.” THEN “SEC FINANCIAL REPORTS." {statements made pursuant to the safe harbor
: » 5 .
“THEN SELECTING THE DESIRED REPORT, OR MAY BE  provisions of the Private Securities Litigation

EOBTA]NED BY WRITING TO! Reform Act of 1995, These forward-looking

iGeorce R. HAUBENREICH, JR., SECRETARY istatements are based on current information at

{OceaNEERING INTERNATIONAL, INC. “the time this report was written and expectations
:P.O. Box 40494 ithat involve a number of visks, uncertainties,

EHOUSTON'TWS 7714070494 ‘and assumptions. Among the factors that could

cause the actual results to differ materially from
those indicated in the forward-looking statements
are.! industry conditions; prices of crude oil and
natural gas; Oceaneering’s ability fo obtain and
the timing of new projects; operating risks; changes
.in government regulations; technological changes;
iami changes in competitive factors. Should one or
more of these risks or uncertainties materialize, or
gsbould the assumptions underlying the forward-
élooking statements prove incorrect, actual oulcomes
could vary materially from those indicated. These
-and other risks are  fully described in Oceancering’s
‘annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended

: December 31, 2007 and other periodic filings with

ithe Securities and Exchange Commission.

"The use in this report of such terms as Oceaneering,
Company, group, organization, we, us, our, and its, or
references to specific entities, is not intended to be a
precise description of corporate relationships.
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OCEANEERING INTERNATIONAL, INC,

11911 FM 529, Houston, Texas 77041-3000

April 11, 2008
Dear Shareholder:

You are cordially invited to attend the 2008 Annual Meeting of Shareholders of Oceaneeri)ig International, Inc.
The meeting will be held on Friday, May 16, 2008, at §:30 a.m., local time, at our regional office lo :ated at
5004 Railroad Avenue, Morgan City, Louisiana 70380.

On the following pages, you will find the Notice of Annual Meeting of Shareholders and P:oxy Statement
giving information concerning the matters to be acted on at the meeting. Our Annual Report to Sha eholders describing
Oceaneering’s operations during the year ended December 31, 2007 is enclosed.

We hope you will be able to attend the meeting in person. Whether or not you plan to attes d, please take the
time to vote. In addition to using the enclosed paper proxy card to vote, which you may sign, date aad return in the
enclosed postage-paid envelope, you may vote your shares via the Internet or by telephone by follovsing the instructions
included in this package.

Thank you for your interest in Oceaneering.

John R. Huff T. Jay Collins
Chairman of the Board President and Chief Executive Oificer




Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to Be
Held on May 16, 2608, '

The proxy statement and annual report are available on the Internet at www.oceaneering.com/InvestorRelations.asp at
“Annual Reports and Proxies.”

The following information applicable to the Annual Meeting may be found in the proxy statement and accompanying
proxy card:

» the date, time and location of the meeting;
¢ alist of the matters intended to be acted on and our recommendations regarding those matters;

* any control/identification numbers that you need to access your proxy card; and

» information about attending the meeting and voting in person.




OCEANEERING INTERNATIONAL, INC.

11911 FM 529, Houston, Texas 77041-3000

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

To Be Held May 16, 2008

To the Shareholders of Oceaneering International, Inc.:

The Annual Meeting of Shareholders of Oceaneering International, Inc., a Delaware corpoi ation
(“Oceaneering™), will be held on Friday, May 16, 2008, at 8:30 a.m., local time, at our regional offic e located at
5004 Railroad Avenue, Morgan City, Louisiana 70380, to consider and take action on the following:

s election of two Class I directors as members of the Board of Directors of Cceaneering to serve until the
2011 Annual Meeting of Shareholders or until a successor has been duly elected and q 1alified (Proposal 1);

s approval of an amendment of the Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Oceaneering to increase the
number of authorized shares of common stock (Proposal 2);

» ratification of the appointment of Emst & Young LLP as independent auditors of Oceaneering for the year
ending December 31, 2008 (Proposal 3); and

« transaction of such other business as may properly come before the Annual Meeting of Shareholders or any
adjournment or postponement thereof. .

The Board of Directors recommends a vote in favor of Proposal 1, Proposal 2 and Proposal 3.

The close of business on March 24, 2008 is the record date for the determination of sharehc lders entitled to
notice of, and to vote at, the meeting or any adjournment thereof.

Our Board welcomes your personal attendance at the meeting, Whether or not you expect 1o attend the meeting,
please submit a proxy as soon as possible so that your shares can be voted at the meeting. You may submit your proxy
by filling in, dating and signing the enclosed proxy card and returning it in the enclosed postage-paic| envelope. Please
refer to page 1 of the Proxy Statement and the proxy card for instructions for proxy voting by telephine or over the
Internet.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

e el

George R. Haubenreich, Jr.
Senior Vice President, General Counsel
and Secretary

April 11, 2008

YOUR VOTE IS IMPORTANT

WHETHER OR NOT YOU PLAN TO ATTEND THE MEETING, PLEASE SIGN, DATE AND MAIL
YOUR PROXY PROMPTLY IN THE ENCLOSED POSTAGE-PAID ENVELOPE, OR VOTI. BY
TELEPHONE OR OVER THE INTERNET IN ACCORDANCE WITH INSTRUCTIONS IN [HIS PROXY
STATEMENT AND ON YOUR PROXY CARD.




Revocability of Proxies

If you have one or more stock certificates issued in your own name, and you vote by proxy, mail, the Internet or
telephone, you may later revoke your proxy instructions by:

« sending a written statement to that effect to our Corporate Secretary at 11911 FM 529, Houston, Texas
77041-3000, the mailing address for the executive offices of Oceancering;

»  submitting a proxy card wrth a later date signed as your name appcars on the stock certificate(s);

( . i

+  voting at a later nme by telephone or the Internet; or  *

' . . -

+  voting in person at the Annual Mectmg 3 oo
If you have shares held through a brokcrage firm, bank or othér custodian, and you vote by proxy, you may later
revoke your proxy instructions only by informing the custodian in accordance with any procedures it sets forth.

PROPOSAL 1
Electron of Dlrectors - e
1 oo St 1 ™ . '
Our Ceftificate of Incorporation divides our Board into three classes; each consisting as nearly as possible of”
one-third of the members of thie whole Board. There are currently two members of each class. The members of each class
serve for three years following their election, with one class being elected each year: : L
Two Class I directors are to be elected at the 2008 Annual Meeting. In accordance with our bylaws, directors are
elected by a plurality of the votes cast. Accordingly, abstentions and broker “non-votes” marked on proxy cards will not
be counted in the election. ‘The Class I directors will serve until the 2011 Annual Meeting of Shareholders or until a
successor has been duly elected and qualified. The directors of Classes II and III will continue to serve their terms of
office, which w111 explre at the Annual Meetmgs of Shareholders to be held in 2009 and 2010, respectrvely e d

3

The persons named in the accCOmpanying proxy mtend to vote all proxies recewed in favor of the electron of the
nominees named below, éxcept in'any case where authority to vote for the directors is withheld. Although we-have no !
reason to believe that the nominees will be unable to serve as directors, if either nominee withdraws or otherwise becomes
unavailable to serve, the persons nanted as proxies will vote for any substitute nominee our Board designates.

Set forth below is mformatlon (ages are as of May 16, 2008) wrth respect to the nominees for election as
directors of Oceaneering. e ¢ L,
. i B o v A

Nominees ”

"« - 2008 - Claslerrectors

' b - o1

T. Jay Collins

'
- - N * . . -
4 - N - i - * ' )

Mr. Céllins, 61, has been Chief Executive Officer of Oceaneering since Mdy 2006 and President of Oceaneering since
1998. He previously served as Chief Operating Officer of Oceaneering from 1998 until 2006. He also served as )

Executive Vice President — Qilfield Marine Services of Oceaneering from 1995 to 1998 and as Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer of Oceaneering from 1993 until 1995. Mr. Collins has been a director of Oceaneering since 2002.

D. Michael Hughes

Mr. Hughes, 69, has been owner of The Broken Arrow Ranch and affiliated businesses, which harvest, process and
market wild game meats, since 1983. He has been associated with Oceaneering since its incorporation, serving as
Chairman of the Board from 1970 to 1980 and from 1984 to 1990. He is Chairman of the Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committee of Oceaneering’s Board and a member of the Audit Committee of Oceaneering’s Board. Mr.
Hughes has been a director of Oceaneering since 1970.




Continuing Directors

Information below (ages are as of May 16, 2008) is for those directors whose terms will expire in 200 and 2010.

2009 - Class 11 Directors

Jerold J. DesRoche

Mr. DesRoche, 71, has been a partner and a director of National Power Company, a privately owned company that owns
and operates power generation facilities using waste fuels and renewable enerpy, since 1991. He serv:d as President and
Chief Executive Officer of ABB Combustion Engineering Canada, Inc. from 1988 to 1991. He is a m2mber of the
Compensation Committee and the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee of Oceaneering's Board. Mr.
DesRoche has been a director of Oceaneering since 2003.

John R. Huff

Mr. Huff, 62, has been Chairman of Oceaneering’s Board of Directors since August 1990. He served as Chief Executive
Officer of Oceancering from 1986 to May 2006. Mr. Huff also serves as a director of BJ Services Coinpany, Rowan
Companies, Inc., KBR, Inc. and Suncor Energy, Inc. Mr. Huff has been a director of Oceaneering sin:e 1986.

2010 - Class ITII Directors
David S. Hooker

Mr. Hooker, 64, has been Chairman of Avoco Secure Ltd., a software development and distribution c¢ mpany which
principally focuses on applications providing document content security and authentication, since November 2006, and
Chairman of Ocean Hover Limited, an oilfield hovercraft marketing organization, since January 2004. Previously, he
served as Chairman of Goshawk Insurance Holdings PLC, an insurance company, from January 1996 o October 2003.
He is also a director of Aminex plc, an oil and gas exploration and production company, and a directos of Eleuthera
Capital Ltd., a helium exploration company. He is Chairman of the Audit Committee of Oceaneering’s Board and a
member of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee of Oceaneering’s Board. Mr. Hool er has been a
director of Oceaneering since 1973.

Harris J. Pappas

Mr. Pappas, 62, has been President of Pappas Restaurants, Inc., a privately owned multistate restauran group, since 1983
and Chief Operating Officer and director of Luby’s, Inc., a publicly owned restaurant company, since .vlarch 2001. He
also serves on the Advisory Boards of Frost National Bank in Houston and the Boys & Girls Clubs of Sreater Houston,
He is Chairman of the Compensation Committee of Oceaneering’s Board and a member of the Audit (jommittee of
Oceanecring’s Board. Mr. Pappas has been a director of Oceaneering since 1996. -




Security Ownership of Management and Certain Beneficial Owners

The following table sets forth the number of shares of Common Stock beneficially owned as of March 24, 2008
by each director and nominee for director, each of the executive officers named in the Summary Cempensation Table in
this Proxy Statement and all directors and executive officers as a group. Except as otherwise indicated, each individual
named has sole voting and dispositive power with respect to the shares shown.

Shares Underlying
Number of | Restricted Stock

Name Shares (1) Units (2) Total

T. Jay Collins 36,000 147,500 183,500

Jerold J. DesRoche 16,000| - 16,000

Philip D. Gardner 40,200 34,500 74,700

George R, Haubenreich, Jr. 18,420 60,800 79,220

David S. Hooker 64,000 - 64,000

John R. Huff 123,100 171,500 294,600

D. Michael Hughes 24,600 - 24,600

M. Kevin McEvoy 27,786 68,000 95,786

Marvin J. Migura 18,000 62,200 80,200

Harris J. Pappas 112,390 -- 112,390

All directors and executive officers as a group (11 persons) 480,630 551,500 1,032,130
n Includes the following shares subject to stock options exercisable as of March 24, 2008: Mr. Gardner — 27,500; Mr. Hooker —

40,000; Mr. Pappas ~ 60,000; and all directors and executive officers as a group — 127,500. There are no other outstanding
stock options for directors and executive officers. Also includes the following shares granted pursuant to restricted stock
award agreements, as to which the recipient has sole voting power and no dispositive power: Mr. DesRoche ~ 8,000; Mr.
Hooker - 8,000; Mr. Hughes — 8,000; Mr. Pappas — 8,000 and all directors and executive officers as a group ~ 32,000. Also
includes the foltowing share equivalents, which are fully vested but are held in trust pursuant to the Oceaneering Retirement
Investment Plan (the “401(k) Plan™), as to which the individual has the right to direct the plan trustee on how to vote: Mr.
McEvoy - 9,786; and all directors and executive officers as a group — 9,920. At withdrawal, the share equivalents are settled
in shares of Common Stock. Each executive officer and director owns less than 1% of the outstanding Common Stock; all
directors and executive officers as a group own (1) less than 1% of the outstanding Common Stock and (2) approximately
1.9% of the total of the outstanding shares of Commeon Stock and the shares underlying restricted stock units owned by

directors and executive officers.

) Includes shares of Common Stock that are represented by restricted stock units of Oceancering that are credited to the
accounts of certain individuals and are subject to vesting. The individuals have no voting or investment power over these

restricted stock units.




Listed below is the only person who, to our knowledge, may be deemed to be a beneficial owr er as of

March 24, 2008 of more than 5% of the outstanding shares of Common Stock. This information is bas::d on staterents
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”}. .

Amount and Nature of Percent
Name and Address of Beneficial Owner Beneficial Ownership of Class (1)
FMR LLC :
82 Devonshire Street
Boston, MA 02109 6,183,082 (2) ' 11.2

(1
(2}

The percentage is based on the total number of issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock as »f March 24, 2008.
The amount beneficially owned of 6,183,082 shares as shown, is as reported by FMR LLC (“FMR”} in a Schedule 13G
filed with the SEC on February 15, 2008. Includes 4,367,437 shares beneficially owned by Fidelity Management &
Research Company (“Fidelity"), a wholly owned subsidiary of FMR, as a result of its acting as an ilivestment advisor to
various investment companies (the “Funds™). FMR and Edward C. Johrson 11, Chairman of FMR, through FMR’s
control of Fidelity and the Funds, each has sole power to dispose of the 4,367,437 shares owned by the Funds. Neither
FMR nor Edward C. Johnson 11T has the sole power to vote or direct the voting of the shares owned directly by the
Funds, which power resides with the Funds’ Boards of Trustees. Fidelity carries out the voting of te shares under
written guidelines established by the Funds’ Boards of Trustees. Strategic Advisors, Inc., 82 Devot shire, Boston MA
02109, a wholly owned subsidiary of FMR and an investment advisor beneficially owns 100 shares Pyramis Global
Advisors, LLC (“PGALLC?”), 53 State Street, Boston, MA 02109, an indirect wholly owned subsid ary of FMR, is the
beneficial owner of 2,900 shares. Edward C. Johnson III and FMR, through its control of PGALLC; each has sole
dispositive power over 2,900 shares and sole power to vote or to direct the voting of 2,900 shares ofvned by the
institutional accounts or funds advised by PGALLC. Pyramis Global Advisors Trust Company (“P'JATC™), 53 State
Street, Boston, MA 02109, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of FMR and a bank as defined in S:ction 3{a)(55) of the
Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, is the beneficial owner of 447,600 shares as a result of its ser ring as an investment
manager of institutional accounts owning such shares. Edward C. Johnson 111 and FMR, through FiAR’s control of
PGATC, each has sole dispositive power over 447,600 shares and sole power to vote or to direct thi: voting of 392,100
shares owned by the institutional accounts managed by PGATC. Fidelity International Limited (“F L"), Pembroke Hall,
42 Crow Lane, Hamilton, Bermuda, and various foreign-based subsidiaries provide investment advisory and
management services to a number of non-U.S. investment companies and certain institutional inves ors. FIL is the
beneficial owner of 1,365,045 shares.




Corporate Governance \

During 2007, our Board of Directors held six meetings of the full Board and 23 meetings of the comrmittees of
the Board. Each director attended at least 75% of the aggregate number of meetings of the Board and mectings of the
committees of the Board on which he served. In addition, we have a policy that directors are encouraged to attend the
annual meeting. Last year, all of our directors attended our annual meeting. In 2007, the nonemployee directors met in
regularly scheduled executive sessions without management present, and similar sessions are scheduled for 2008. The
chairmen of the Audit Committee, Compensation Committee and Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee
chair these executive sessions on a rotating basis. Interested parties may communicate directly with the nonemployee
directors by sending a letter to the “Board of Directors (independent members),” ¢/o Corporate Secretary, Oceaneering
International, Inc., 11911 FM 529, Houston, Texas 77041-3000.

Under rules adopted by the New York Stock Exchange, our Board of Directors must have a majority of
independent directors. A director qualifies as independent only if the Board affirmatively determines that the director has
no material relationship with us. In evaluating each director’s independence, the Board considered relationships and
transactions between each director, his family members and any business, charity or other entity in which the director has
an interest, on the one hand, and us and our senior management, on the other hand. As a result of this review, the Board
affirmatively determined that all our directors are independent, except for Mr. Huff, who had served as our Chief
Executive Officer until May 2006, and Mr. Collins, who is our President and Chief Executive Officer.

We have three standing committees of our Board of Directors: the Audit Committee, the Compensation
Committee; and the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee. Cur Board of Directors has determined that each
member of these committees is independent in accordance with the requirements of the New York Stock Exchange. Our
Board has also determined that each member of the Audit Committee meets the independence requirements for service on
an audit committee that the SEC has established.

The Audit Committee

The Audit Committee, which is comprised of Messrs. Hooker (Chairman), Hughes and Pappas, held 13 meetings
during 2007. Our Board of Directors determined that all members of the Audit Committee are audit committee financial
experts as defined in the applicable rules of the SEC. For information relating to the background of each thember of the
Audit Committee, see the biographical information under “Proposal 1 — Election of Directors” and “Continuing
Directors.” The Audit Committee is appointed by our Board of Directors, on the recommendation of the Nominating and
Corporate Governance Commnittee, to assist the Board in its oversight of:

e the integrity of our financial statements;

Q. our compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

¢ the independence, qualifications and performance of our independent auditors;

¢ the performance of our internal audit functions; and

¢ the adequacy of our internal control over financial reporting.

Our inanagement is responsible for our internal controls and preparation of our consolidated financial statements.
Our independent auditors are responsible for performing an independent audit of the consolidated financial statements and
issuing a repott thereon. The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the conduct of these activities and, subject to
sharcholder ratification, appointing our independent auditors. As stated above and in the Audit Committee Charter, the

Audit Committee’s responsibility is one of oversight. The Audit Committee is not providing any expert or special
assurance as to Oceaneering’s financial statements or any professional certification as to the independent auditor’s work.




In discharging its duties, the Audit Committee reviews and approves the scope of the annual a idit, non-audit
services to be performed by the independent auditors and the independent auditors’ audit and non-audit fees; reviews and
discusses with management (including the senior internal auditor) and the independent auditors the annual audit of our
internal control over financial reporting; recommends to our Board of Directors that the audited financial statements be
included in the Annual Report on Form 10-K for filing with the SEC; meets independently with our int:rnal auditors,
independent auditors and management; reviews the general scope of our accounting, financial reportiny;, annual audit and
internal audit programs and matters relating to internal control systems, as well as the results of the anr ual audit and
interim financial statements, auditor independence issues and the adequacy of the Audit Committee chi rter; and reviews
with management and the independent auditors any correspondence with regulators or governmental ajencies and any
published reports that raise material issues regarding our financial statements or accounting policies. 2. copy of the Audit
Committee charter is attached to this Proxy Statement as Appendix A and available on the Corporate C overnance page of
our Web site (www.oceaneering.com). Any sharcholder who so requests may obtain a written copy of the charter from
us. The report of the Audit Committee is included in this Proxy Statement under the heading “Report «f the Audit
Committee.”

The Compensation Committee

The Compensation Committee, which is comprised of Messrs. Pappas (Chairman) and DesRa che, held six
meetings during 2007. The Compensation Committee is appointed by our Board of Directors to:

»  assist the Board in discharging its responsibilities relating to (1) compensation of our exe::utives, other key
employees and nonemployee directors and {2) employee benefit plans and practices; and

* produce or assist management with the preparation of any reports that may be required from time to time by
the rules of the NYSE or the SEC to be included in our proxy statements for our annual neetings of
sharcholders or annual reports on Form 10-K. ‘

Specific duties and responsibilities of the Compensation Committee include: general oversiglt of our executive
and key employee compensation plans and benefit programs; reviewing and approving objectives relesant to the
compensation of executives and key employees, including administration of annual bonus plans, long-1erm incentive
plans, suppletnental executive retirement plan and severance, termination and change-of-control arrang ements; approving
employment agreements for key executives; reviewing and making recommendations to the Board reg: rding the director
and officers’ indemnification and insurance matters; evaluating the performance of executives and key employees,
including our Chief Executive Officer; recommending to the Board the compensation for the Board an1 committees of the
Board; and annually evaluating its performance and its charter.

Since 2004, the Compensation Committee has engaged Mercer, formerly known as Mercer Hitman Resource
Consulting (“Mercer”), to assist the Compensation Committee in its administration of compensation for our executives
and other key employees. Mercer assisted the Compensation Committee in the design and particulars 1+ our 2007 long-
term incentive program. Mercer performed a market analysis of total direct compensation (the sum of salary, annual
incentive bonus, and long-term incentive compensation) and retirement plan value for our executives aad other key
employees and compensation for nonemployee directors among peer group companies and other surve  data, see
“Compensation Discussion and Analysis — The Role of the Compensation Consultant ” in this Proxy S atement. The
Compensation Committee approved the form and amounts of our 2007 long-term incentive program ar d compensation for
our executive officers and other key employees, and recommended to the Board the forms and amount:! of compensation
for nonemployee directors.

A copy of the Compensation Committee charter is available on the Corporate Governance paje of our Web site
(www.oceaneering.com). Any shareholder who so requests may obtain a written copy of the charter fr ym us. The report
of the Compensation Committee is included in this Proxy Statement under the heading “Report of the (_ompensation
Commiftee.”



The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, which is comprised of Messrs. Hughes {Chairman),
DesRoche and Hooker, held four meetings during 2007. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee is
appointed by our Board of Directors to:

¢ identify individuals qualified to become directors of Oceaneering;

» recommend to our Board candidates to fill vacancics on our Board or to stand for election to the Board by
our shareholders; ’

¢ recommend to our Board a director to serve as Chairman of the Board;

¢ recommend to our Board committee assignments for directo.rs;

¢ periodically assess the performance of our Board and its committees;

¢ evaluate related-person transactions in accordance with our policy regarding such transactions; and
« periodically review and assess the adequacy of our corporate governance policies and procedures.

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee operates under a written charter adopted by our Board of
Directors. A copy of this charter and a copy of our Corporate Governance Guidelines are available on the Corporate
Governance page of our Web site (www.oceaneering.com). Any sharcholder who so requests may obtain a written copy
of each of these documents from us.

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee solicits ideas for potential Board candidates from a
number of sources, including members of our Board of Directors and our executive officers. The Committee also has
authority to select and compensate a third-party search firm to help identify candidates, if it deems it advisable to do so.

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will also consider nominees recommended by
shareholders in accordance with our bylaws. In assessing the qualifications of all prospective nominees to the Board, the
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will consider, in addition to criteria set forth in our bylaws, each
nominee’s personal and professional integrity, experience, skills, ability and willingness to devote the time and effort
necessary to be an effective board member, and commitment to acting in the best interests of Oceanecring and its
shareholders. Consideration also will be given to the Board’s having an appropriate mix of backgrounds and skills. A
shareholder who wishes to recommend a nominee for director should comply with the procedures specified in our bylaws,
as well as applicabie securities laws and regulations of the New York Stock Exchange. The Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committee will consider all candidates identified through the processes described above, whether identified
by the Committee or by a shareholder, and will evaluate each of them on the same basis. .

As to each person a shareholder proposes to nominate for election as a director, our bylaws provide that the
nomination notice must:

» include the name, age, business address and principal occupation or employment of that person, the number
of shares of Common Stock beneficially owned or owned of record by that person and any other information
relating to that person that is required to be disclosed under Section 14 of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act™), and the related SEC rules and regulations; and

s be accompanied by the written consent of the person to be named in the proxy statement as a nominee and to
serve as a director if elected.




The nomination notice must algo include, as to that shareholder and the beneficial owner, if any, of Common
Stock on whose behalf the nomination or nominations are being made:

» the name and address of that shareholder, as they appear on our stock records and the nam e and address of
that beneficial owner;

o the number of shares of Common Stock which that shareholder and that beneficial owner >wn beneficially
or of record;

o adescription of all arrangements and understandings between that shareholder or that ben *ficial owner and
each proposed nominee of that shareholder and any other person or persons (including their names) pursuant
to which the nomination(s) are to be made by that shareholder;

»  arepresentation by that shareholder that he or she intends to appear in person or by proxy at that meeting fo
nominate the person(s) named in that nomination notice;

arepresentation as to whether that shareholder or that beneficial owner, if any, intends, ot is part of a group,
as Rule 13d-5(b) under the Exchange Act uses that term, which intends (1) to deliver a proxy statement
and/or form of proxy to the holders of shares of Common Stock having at least the percenlage of the total
votes of the holders of all outstanding shares of Common Stock entitled to vote in the elec tion of each
proposed nominee of that shareholder which is required to elect that proposed rominee ar d/or (2) otherwise
to solicit proxies in support of the nomination; and

«  any other information relating to that shareholder and that beneficial owner that is required to be disclosed
under Section 14 of the Exchange Act and the related SEC rules and regulations.

To be timely for consideration at our 2009 Annual Meeting, a sharcholder’s nomination notice must be received
at our principal executive offices, 11911 FM 529, Houston, Texas 77041-3000, addressed to our Corporate Secretary, no
earlier than November 17, 2008 and no later than the close of business on January 16, 2009,

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

No member of the Compensation Committee has served as one of our officers or employees a' any time. None
of our executive officers serve as a member of the compensation committee of any other company that has an executive
officer serving as a member of our Board. None of our executive officers serve as a member of the bo: rd of directors of
any other company that has an executive officer serving as a member of our Compensation Committee.

Code of Ethics

Our Board of Directors adopted a code of ethics that applies to our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial
Officer, Chief Accounting Officer and Treasurer, and a code of business conduct and ethics that applie.; to our officers,
directors and employees. Each is available on the Corporate Governance page of our Web site (www.( ceaneering.com).
Any shareholder who so requests may obtain a printed copy of these codes from us. Any change in or waiver of these
codes of ethics will be disclosed on our Web site.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires our directors, executive officers and persons who ywn more than
10% of our Common Stock to file with the SEC and the New York Stock Exchange initial reports of o'vnership and
reports of changes in ownership of Common Stock. Based solely on a review of the copies of such reparts furnished to us
and representations that no other reports were required, we believe that all our directors and executive »fficers complied
on a timely basis with all applicable filing requirements under Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act during 2007.




REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of Oceancering International, Inc.’s Board of Directors is comprised of the three directors
named below. Each member of the Audit Committee is an independent director as defined by applicable Securities and
Exchange Commission rules and New York Stock Exchange listing standards. The Committee met 13 times during the
year ended December 31, 2007. The Committee reviewed with management and Ernst & Young LLP, Oceaneering’s
independent registered publlc accounting firm, the interim financial information included in Ocecancering’s quarterly
reports on Form 10-Q for the periods ended March 31, 2007, June 30, 2007 and September 30, 2007, prior to their being
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission. In addmon the Comm]ttee reviewed all of Oceaneering’s earnings
releases in 2007 with management and Ermnst & Young prior to the public release of those earnings releases.

The Committee reviewed and discussed with management and Ernst & Young Oceaneering’s consclidated
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2007. Members of management represented to the Committee that
Oceaneering’s consolidated financial statements were prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. The Committee discussed with Emst & Young matters required to be discussed by Statement on Auditing
Standards No. 61, Communication with Audit Committees, as amended. The Committee also reviewed and discussed with
management and Ernst & Young management’s report and Emst & Young’s report on internal control over financial
reporting in accordance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. ~

Emst & Young provided to the Committee the written disclosures required by Independence Standards Board
Standard No. 1, Independence Discussions with Audit Committees, as amended, and the Committee discussed with Emnst
& Young their independence. The Committee conciuded that Ernst & Young's provision of non-audit services to
Oceaneering and its affiliates is compatible with Emst & Young’s independence.

Based on the Committee’s discussion with management and the independent auditors and the Committee’s
review of the representations of management and the report of the independent auditors, the Committee recommended to
Oceaneering’s Board of Directors that Oceaneering’s audited consolidated financial statements as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2007 be included in the Form 10-K for the vear ended December 31, 2007 filed with the SEC.

Audit Committee

David S. Hooker, Chairman
D. Michael Hughes

Harris J. Pappas
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COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following discussion and analysis contains statements regarding future individual and company pe formance goals
and measures. These goals and measures are disclosed in the limited context of Oceaneering’s comper sation programs
and should not be understood to be statements of management's expectations or estimates of results or other guidance.
Oceaneering specifically cautions investors not to apply these statements to other contexts.

The following Compensation Discussion and Analysis, or “CD&A,” provides information regirding the
compensation programs in place for our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and three othir most highly
compensated executive officers during 2007. We refer to these five individuals in this CD&A as the “T{amed Executive
Officers.” This CD&A includes information regarding, among other things, the objectives of our comg ensation program,
the achievements that the compensation program is designed to reward, the elements of the compensati »n program
(including the reasons why we employ each element and how we determine amounts paid) and how eac h element fits into
our overall compensation objectives.

Compensation Philosophy and Objectives

Our executive compensation program is designed to attract and retain key executives, motivat: them to achieve
our short-term and long-term objectives, and reward them for superior performance. We use several different
compensation elements in the executive compensation program which are geared to both our short-terniand long-term
performance. The following principles influence the design and administration of our executive compe nsation program.

Compensation Should Be Related to Performance

The Compensation Committee of our Board of Directors (the “Committee”), and our Board oi Directors believe
that a significant portion of a Named Executive Officer's direct compensation should be tied to overall sompany
performance, measured against financial goals and objectives.

Under the performance-based portions of our compensation arrangements, our basic philosoply is that, in years
when performance is better than the objectives established for the relevant performance period, Named Executive Officers
should be paid more than the target awards and, when our performance does not meet planned objectiv s, incentive award
payments should be less than such targets, in the absence of unusual circumstances.

Compensation Pragrams Should Motivate Executives to Remain With Us

We believe that there is significant value to our shareholders for Named Executive Officers ta remain with our
company over time. Qur business is built significantly by executives who can develop and maintain cvstomer
relationships over time. Also, value is built by executives'who understand the unique business and teclinical aspects of
our industry. For these reasons, a significant clement of our historical executive compensation arrange ments has been
long-term incentive compensation arrangements, with awards that have provided for vesting over seveial years. In
addition, we provide several of our executive officers with some financial security in the event of a chz nge of control, to
promote long-term retention. .We also provide for long-term benefits through retirement plans (see ~ “ ?ost-Employment
Compensation Programs” below). . '

Incentive Compensation Should Represent a Significant Part of an Executive's Total Direct Compensaiion

We believe that the portion of a Named Executive Officer's total compensation that varies wit our overall
performance objectives should increase as the scope and level of the individual's business responsibilit es and role in the
organization increase. We believe that more than one-half of the total direct compensation (the sum of salary, annual
incentive bonus, and long-term incentive compensation) of the Named Executive Officers should be at risk against short-
and long-term performance goals and the Chief Executive Officer-should be subject to a greater amour ¢ of such risk than
other Named Executive Officers. :
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Incentive Compensation Should Balance Short-Term and Long-Term Performance

We strive to maintain an ¢xecutive compensation program that balances short-term, or annual, results and long-
term success. To reinforce the importance of this balancing we regularly provide the Named Executive Officers both
annuai and long-term incentives. The value for participants in our long-term incentive plans generally increases at higher
levels of responsibility, as executives in these leadership roles have the greatest influence on our strategic direction and
results over time.

Beginning in 2006, the Committee adopted our current approach to long-term incentives, in which awards of
service-based restricted stock units and performance units are made to our executive officers and other key employees.
Assuming restricted stock value based on grant date value established by the Financial Accounting Standards Board's
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised 2004), Share-Based Payment (“SFAS 123R”), and
performance units notionally valued at $100 per unit for achievement of performance goals at target level, the Committee
believes that the performance units should account for more than one-half of the total annual long-term incentive
compensation of the Named Executive Officers and the service-based restricted stock units should account for the
balance. The Committee believes that this approach promotes our philosophy of rewarding executives for growing
shareholder value over time. Upon vesting, settlement of the restricted stock units will be made in shares of cur common
stock. Upon vesting, the value of the performance units will be paid in cash.

Compensation Levels Should Be Competitive

The Committee reviews competitive compensation information as part of its process in establishing total direct
compensation and retirement plan values that are competitive. In making compensation decisions, the Committee
considers all elements of compensation when setting each element of compensation. The Committee assesses each
element of base salary, annual incentive bonus, long-term incentive compensation and retirement plan values against a
combination of available information from the most recent proxy statements of a peer-group of publicly traded companies
and survey data from the energy and general industries.

The Role of the Compensation Committee

The Committee has the primary authority to establish compensation for the Named Executive Officers and other
key employees and administers all our executive compensation plans and agreements. The Committee annually reviews.
corporate goals and objectives and sets the compensation levels for Named Executive Officers based on the Committee's
evaluation. Our Chief Executive Officer assists the Committee by providing annual recommendations regarding the
compensation of the Named Executive Officers and other key employees, excluding himself. The Committee can -
exercise its discretion in modifying or accepting these recommendations. The Chief Executive Officer attends
Committee meetings. However, the Commitiee also meets in executive session without the Chief Executive Officer (or
other members of management) present when discussing the Chief Executive Officer’s compensation.

The Committee reviews comparative compensation information compiled by a compensation consultant as
described in “Role of the Compensation Consultant” below; however, the Committee does not base its decisions on
targeting compensation to specific benchmarks. Comparative compensation is one factor used by the Committee in
making its compensation decisions. Overall, however, our compensation program for Named Executive Officers is
intended to create a total compensation opportunity that, on average, is equal to approximately the S0® percentile in the
aggregate of appropriate competitive comparative compensation for a Named Executive Officer. For additional
information regarding the role and responsibility of the Committee, see “Proposal 1 — Election of Directors — The
Compensation Committee” above.

The Role of the Compensation Consultant

In 2007, the Committee retained Mercer (the “Compensation Consultant”) to: (1) conduct a review of our total
direct compensation (the sum of base salary, annual incentives bonus and long-term incentive compensation) and
retirement plan programs for the Named Executive Officers and other key employees; (2) identify and evaluate a peer
group of companies and survey data for compensation cormparison purposes; (3) conduct a pay-for-performance analysis
to assess the correlation of executive pay and company performance for Oceaneering and the peer group of companies
identified; and (4) assist in our assessment of whether payments made pursuant to change of control agreements could
result in excise taxes pursuant to Section 4995 of the Internal Revenue Code, assuming a change of control occurred on
December 31, 2007 (see * — Post-Employment Compensation Programs — Change of Control Agreements” and
“Potential Payments on Termination or Change of Control” below). The Compensation Consultant’s only work for
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Oceaneering in 2007 was at the direction of the Committee, except for some accounting-related assistat ce and non-
executive compensation advice provided in 2007, for which the Compensation Consultant was paid apf roximately
$3,200.

The Compensation Consultant assessed the continuing validity of the peer group of companies used for
comparison purposes in the review it conducted for the Committee in 2006 and recommended a list of 2.3 publicly traded
companies as the peer group for comparison purposes (collectively the “Compensation Peer Group”). " ’he Compensation
Peer Group is comprised of the same cornpanies identified as the peer group in 2006, except that one cc mpany that was
acquired by another was deleted and the successor by merger of a company in the peer group was subst ituted.

The companies included in the Compensation Peer Group were approved for inclusion by the Committee,
primarily due to their operational focus broadly within the oilfield service industry and the belief that we compete with
these companies for talent and for stockholder investment. The Committee reviews the companies con prising the
Compensation Peer Group at least every two years. The companies comprising the Compensation Peer Group used for
2007 comparison purposes were:

BJ Services Company GlobalSantaFe Corporation Pride Internaional, Inc.
Bristow Group Inc. Grant Prideco, Inc. Rowan Comy anies, Inc.
Cameron International Corporation Helix Energy Solutions Group, Inc.  Smith Intern: tional Inc.
Diamond Offshore Drilling, Inc. - Key Energy Services, Inc. Superior Ene gy Services, [nc.
ENSCO International Incorporated McDermott International, Inc. Tidewater In::.

Exterran Holdings, Inc. National Oilwell Varco, Inc. Transocean Lic.

FMC Technologies, Inc. . Noble Corporation Weatherford Internationai Ltd.
Global Industries, Ltd. Qil States International, Inc. :

The sources of the survey data used by the Compensation Consultant were (1) the 2007 U.S. Energy
Compensation Survey and 2007 U.S. Americas-Executive Remuneration Database, which combines al. of the
Compensation Consultant’s survey data as well as client data submissions for approximately 570 execytive-level positions
in which approximately 2,200 organizations participated and which were prepared by the Compensatio 1 Consultant, and
(2) a 2007 Survey Report on Top Management Compensation prepared by Watson Wyatt Data Service;, which features
data across multiple industries and geographies in which approximately 2,300 organizations participate (collectively, the
“Compensation Surveys”). :

The Compensation Consultant identified the 25%, 50" and 75" percentile for base salary, annual bonus incentive,
long-term incentive compensation and retirement plan value, individually and in the aggregate for the < omparable position
of each of our Named Executive Officers from a blend of compensation information identified for the (Compensation Peer
Group from the most recent proxy statements filed with the SEC by the companies comprising the Conpensation Peer
Group (weighted at 50%) and from the Compensation Surveys (weighted at 50% with each component weighted equally),
except that the Compensation Peer Group information was used exclusively for evaluating retirement ¢ lan value, as
retirement plan value information was not available in the Compensation Surveys.

2007 Executive Compensation Components

For 2007, the primary components of our compensation program for Named Executive Officess were:

*  base salary;

 annual incentive award paid in cash;

« long-term incentive programs comprised of restricted stock units and performance units; :1nd

» retirement plan.
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Base Salary

The Committee considers salary levels annually in November, for changes to be effective the first day of the
following year, as well as upon a promotion or significant change in job responsibility. Each year, our Chief Executive
Officer recommends base salaries for the other Named Executive Officers based on historical levels of base salaries, with
adjustments he subjectively deems appropriate based on the overall performance of the Named Executive Officer,
including a review of contributions and performance, over the past year. In reviewing the Chief Executive Officer’s
recommendations and in deciding base salaries for all Named Executive Officers, the Committee considers each officer’s
level of responsibility, experience, tenure, performance and the comparative compensation information provided by the
Compensation Consultant. The Committee’s evaluation of each Named Executive Officer also takes into account an
evaluation of Oceaneering’s overall performance. In November 2006, the Committee approved a salary increase of 10%
for Mr. Collins and, as recommended by Mr. Collins, salary increases ranging from 7% to 12% for the other Named
Executive Officers. :

Annual Incentive Awards Paid in Cash

In March of each year, the Committee approves a performance-based annual cash bonus award program under a
shareholder approved Incentive Plan for the persons listed as named executive officers in the summary compensation
table of our proxy statement for that year. These cash bonus award opportunities have been based on a comparison of our
net income for the year to target net income for that year. For each other participating employee in the program, the cash
bonuses are based upen the level of achievement of a combination of our net income, financial and non-financial goals of
our applicable profit center for that employee and individual goals. For each participant, the maximum award achievable
1s a percentage of the participant's annual salary as of March 1st of the year of the program. In March of each year, the
Committee also approves the final bonus amounts under the cash bonus award program for the previous year.

In March 2007, the Committee approved a cash bonus award program for 2007. For the Named Executive
Officers, bonuses were determined by a comparison of our net income in calendar year 2007 to target net income for that
year. The maximum cash pay-out under the program for each Named Executive Officer is a specified percentage of that
executive's base salary as of March 1, 2007. As recommended by our Chief Executive Officer and approved by the
Committee (1) the target amount for our net income in 2007 was $155 million, an amount 25% higher than the net income
we achieved in 2006 (which was almost twice the amount of net income achieved in 2005) and equated to the mid-point
of our then-published earnings per share guidance range for 2007 and (2) the net income amount in 2007 necessary to
achieve the maximum bonuses under the program was 110% of the target amount or $170.5 million.. Under the program,
attainment of the target amount would have resulted in a payout of 90% of the maximum amount payable to the Named
Executive Officer. For any award in the program to be payable, more than 70% of the target net income for 2007 had to
be achieved. The Named Executive Officers in the program for 2007 and their respective maximum payouts as a
percentage of base salary were: Mr. Collins - 150%; Messrs. McEvoy, Migura and Haubenrreich - 100%; and Mr. Gardner
— 80%, which reflects no change in the maximum percentage of base salary from 2006.
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The following table notes the percentage of maximum payout to a Named Executive Officer under the program
for the percentage of target net income achieved. The Committee has the discretion to award an amour t less than that

calculated. :
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In March 2008, the Committee approved the final bonuses under the 2007 Cash Bonus Awar¢ Program. Due to
our achieving a record level of net income in 2007, which was in excess of 110% of the performance gaal for 2007, the
Committee awarded maximum bonuses payable to Messrs. Collins, McEvoy, Migura and Haubenreich under the program.
The Committee also approved additional merit bonuses to those Named Executive Officers based on Cceaneering’s
performance (the fourth consecutive year of record net income, a 45% increase in the amount of net in:ome achieved in
2006) and the outstanding contributions to Oceaneering’s performance by these officers. The Commit ee exercised its
discretion to award an amount to Mr. Gardner less than the maximum award payable under the prograin, as a resuit of the
failure of the Oceaneering Multiflex division of Subsea Products to achieve planned financial results ir. 2007.

Awards made to the Named Executive Officers for performance in 2007 are reflected in the “’3onus” and “Non-
Equity Incentive Plan Compensation” columns of the “Summary Compensation Table” below.

Long-Term Incentive Compensation

Historically, we granted stock options annually and restricted stock or stock unit awards ever three years to our
executive officers and other key employees. However, the Committee decided that, in light of the expr:nse recognition
requirements established by SFAS 123R and effective beginning in 2006, to refrain from using stock aptions as an
employee compensation element for our executive officers and other employees for the foreseeable future and to instead
use annual grants of service-based restricted stock unit awards and performance unit awards. Accordingly, no stock
options were awarded in 2007.
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In deciding upon a methodology for determining changes to our long-term incentive program, we established the
following objectives:

s deliver competitive economic value;
s reduce annual share utilization;

«  preserve the alignment of the executive's financial and shareholding interest with those of our shareholders,
generally;

¢  attract and retain executives and other key employees;

+ focus management attention on specific performance measures that have a strong correlation with the
creation of shareholder value; and

s provide that a majority of an executive’s total direct compensation is performance-based.

In order to achieve these objectives, the Committee decided upon a long-term incentive program to deliver value
would be through two vehicles, restricted stock unit awards and performance unit awards. The Committee expects to
consider these long-term incentive awards in late February of each year. Such awards to new employees or in connection
with other events such as promotions will be considered at the next scheduled Committee meeting after the hire date or
after the event occasioning the consideration of the award.

In February 2007, performance units and service-based restricted stock unit awards, each comprising an
estimated 55% and 45%, respectively, of the estimated grant date total long-term incentive value were awarded to the
Named Executive Officers. These restricted stock units are scheduled to vest in full on the third anniversary of the award
date, subject to earlier vesting if the employee meets certain age or age and years of service requirements; the termination
or constructive termination of an employee's employment in connection with a change of control of Oceaneering or due to
death or disability. No part of the awards to Named Executive Officers vested during 2007 by reason of any of the early
vesting provisions. Each restricted stock unit represents the equivalent of one share of our common stock. Upon vesting,
settlement of the restricted stock units will be made in shares of our common stock. The grant date value of restricted
stock units awarded to Named Executive Officers is reflected in the “Grant Date Fair Value of Stock and Stock Option
Awards” column of the “Grants of Plan-Based Awards” table below.

The performance units awarded in February 2007 are scheduled to vest in full on the third anniversary of the
award date, subject to similar early vesting terms as are applicable to the restricted stock units. The Committee approved
specific financial goals and measures based on cumulative cash flow from operations and a comparison of return on
invested capital and cost of capital for the three-year period January 1, 2007 through December 31, 2009 to be used as the
basis for the final value of the performance units. The measures were selected because of our belief that they have a
strong correlatton with the creation of shareholder value. The amount of cumulative cash flow from operations during
this three-year performance period necessary to achieve the target level goal for this measure is $1 billion. This amount
was selected because it is three times the annual cash flow from operations expected to be achieved in 2007, which
exceeded the record amount achieved in 2006. The amounts to be achieved by Oceaneering to reach the threshold and
maximum are $100 million less and more, respectively, than the target level amount. Qceaneering’s return on invested
capital must exceed its cost of capital over this three-year performance period by 50% for the target level goal to be
achieved for this performance measure. For the threshold level to be achieved, the return on invested capital must be 30%
in excess of the cost of capital and for the maximum level to be achieved it must be 70% in excess of the cost of capital.
The final value of each performance unit may range from $0 to $125 with the threshold, target and maximum levels of
achievement of goals valued at $75, $100 and $125, respectively. If the calculated unit value exceeds $100, the
Committee retains discretion to reduce such value to any amount above or equal to $100. Upon vesting, the value of the
performance units will be payable in cash.
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The determination of the final value of each performance unit is based on the application of tt e following grid

(with interpolation between the specified levels):

Unit Values

Mazximum $62.50 $100.00 $112.50 $125.00
=
(]
-]
o Target $50.00 $87.50 $100.00 $112.50
2k
S & Threshold $37.50 $75.00 $87.50 $100.00
E
=
& Below

Threshold $0.00 $37.50 $50.00 $62.50

Below Threshold Target Maximum
Threshold

Return on Invested Cépital/Cost of Caital

The estimated future payout of the performance unit awards to Named Executive Officers if ¢ 1ich of the
performance measures is achieved at the threshold, target or maximum level is reflected in the “Estimated Future Payouts
Under Non-Equity Incentive Plan Awards” column of the “Grants of Plan-Based Awards™ table below.

For 2007, approximately 57% of the total direct compensation of Mr. Collins, our Chief Execiitive Officer, was
at risk against short- and long-term performance goals and approximately 51-53% was at risk for each >f the other Named
Executive Officers.

Post-Employment Compensation Programs
Retirement Plans

We maintain a 401(k) plan and a Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (“SERP™). All of vur employees who
meet the eligibility requirements may participate in our 401¢(k) plan. The Named Executive Officers h: ve elected not to
participate in our 401(k) plan. Participation in our SERP includes Named Executive Officers and other key employees
selected for participation by the Committee. Our SERP was established to provide a benefit to our exe :utives and other
key employees in excess of Internal Revenue Code limits for our 401(k) plan, in order to attract and motivate participants
to remain with us and provide retirement plan values that are competitive with those provided by compnies within the
Compensation Peer Group. Under our SERP, we credit a participant’s notional account with a percenti,ge determined by
the Committee of each of the participant’s base salary, subject to vesting. A participant may elect to d¢ fer a portion of
base salary and annual bonus for accrual pursuant to our SERP. Amounts accrued under our SERP are adjusted for
earnings and losses as if they were invested in one or more investment vehicles selected by the participint from those
designated as alternatives by the Committee, A participant’s interest in the plan is generally distributat le upon
termination. The percentage of base salary credited for Named Executive Officers in 2007 was: Mr. Collins - 50%; Mr.
McEvoy — 50%; Messrs. Migura and Haubenreich - 40% each; and Mr. Gardner — 20%. Please see the “Non-Qualified
Deferred Compensation” table and accompanying narrative for further information about our SERP ant| contributions to
the Named Executive Officers™ accounts.

Change of Control Agreements

In November 2001, we entered into Change of Control Agreements (each, a “Change of Control Agreement”)
with Messrs. Collins, McEvoy, Migura and Haubenreich, each of whom are Named Executive Officers replacing each of
their respective prior senior executive severance agreements. The payment and benefits under our Change of Control
Agreements did not influence and were not influenced by the other elements of compensation, as the ctange of control
payments and benefits serve different objectives and due to the fact that a change of control or other trijtgering event may
never occur. We limit eligibility for change of control agreement participation to those Named Executive Officers whose
full support and sustained contribution would be important to the successful completion of a change of :ontrol. We
believe the benefits provided by the Change of Control Agreements help promote long-term retention by providing some
financial security to these Named Executive Officers against the risk of loss of employment which could result following
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a change of control of our company. The Change of Control Agreements entitle the individual to receive a severance
package, described below, in the event of the occurrence of both a change of control and a termination of the executive’s
employment by us without cause (as defined below) or by the executive for good reason (as defined below) during a
period of time beginning a year prior to the occurrence or, in some cases, the contemplation by the Board of a change in
control (the “Effective Date”) and ending two years following the Effective Date. For purposes of the Change of Control
Agreements, a change of control is defined as occurring if:

s any person is or becomes the “beneficial owner” (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act), directly
or indirectly, of our securities representing 20% or more of the combined voting power of our outstanding
voting securities, other than through the purchase of voting securities directly from a private placement by
us;

« the current members of our Board, or subsequent members approved by at least two-thirds of the current
members, no longer comprise a majority of our Board,

»  our company is merged or consolidated with another corporation or entity, and our shareholders own less
than 60% of the outstanding voting securities of the surviving or resulting corporation or entity;

+ atender offer or exchange offer is made and consurnmated by a person other than us for the ownership of
20% or more of our voting securities; or

¢ there has been a disposition of ali or substantially all of our assets.

As defined in each Change of Control Agreement, cause for termination by Oceaneering means conviction by a
court of competent jurisdiction, from which cenviction no further appeal can be taken, of a felony-grade crime involving
moral turpitude related to service with us.

As defined in each Change of Control Agreement, good reason to terminate includes:

s any adverse change in status, title, duties or responsibilities;

»  any reduction in annual base salary, SERP contribution level by us, annual borus opportunity or aggregate
long-term compensation, all as may be increased subsequent to date of the Change of Control Agreements;

e  any relocation;
o the failure of a successor to assume the Change of Control Agreement;

¢ any prohibition by us against the individual engaging in outside activities pem‘litted by the Change of
Control Agreement;

e  any purported termination by us that does not comply with the terms of the Change of Control Agreement;
or .

s  any default by us in the performance of our obligations under the Change of Control Agreement,

The severance package provided for in each such executive’s Change of Control Agreement consists of an
amount equal to three times the sum of:

¢ the executive’s highest annual rate of base salary during the then-current year or any of the three years
preceding the year of termination;

« anamount equal to the maximum award the executive is eligible to receive under the then-current fiscal year
bonus plan; and

* anamount equal to the maximum percentage of the exccutive’s annual base salary contributed by us for him
in our SERP for the then-current year multiplied by the executive’s highest annual rate of base salary.
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A minimum aggregate amount payable for these items is stated in each such executive’s agree nent, which
amount was calculated using the year-end December 31, 2001 amounts for each component.

The severance provisions also provide that, for each applicable individual:

«  any outstanding stock options would vest immediately and become exercisable or the individual may elect to
be paid an amount equal to the spread between the exercise price and the higher market vilue for the shares
of our common stock underlying those options;

» the benefits under all compensation plans, including restricted stock agreements and restri:ted stock unit
agreements, would be paid as if all contingencies for payment and maximum levels of per‘ormance had been
met; and '

» the applicable individual would receive benefits under all other plans he then participates in for three years.

The Change of Contro] Agreements provide that, if any payments made thereunder would cause the recipient to
be liable for an excise tax because the payment is a “parachute payment” (as defined in the Internal Rev :nue Code), then
we will pay the individual an additional amount to make the individual whole for that tax liability.

Perquisites

We provide our Named Executive Officers with perquisites and other benefits that we believe :re reasonable and
consistent with our overall compensation program to enable us to attract and retain employees for key pusitions. The
Committee periodically reviews the levels of perquisites and other personal benefits provided to our exe :utive officers.
The perquisites provided to the Named Executive Officers in 2007 and our incremental cost to provide tiose perquisites
are set forth in the “All Other Compensation” column of the “Summary Compensation Table” below an! the related
footnotes to that table.

Stock Ownership Guidelines

Ta align the interests of our directors, executive officers and shareholders, we believe our direciors and executive
officers should have a significant financial stake in Oceaneering. To further that goal, our Board adopte! stock ownership
guidelines on November 30, 2007, requiring that our nonemployee directors, chief executive officer, exe rutive vice
president and senior vice presidents maintain minimum ownership interests in Oceaneering. Our nonemy loyee directors
are generally expected to own not less than a fixed number of shares equal to five times the annual cash i1etainer generally
paid to nonemployee directors divided by the closing price of our stock on November 30, 2007, the date >f adoption of the

policy.

Our chief executive officer, executive vice president and senior vice presidents are generally expected to own not
less than a fixed number of shares equal to a multiple of their annual base salary divided by the closing pice of our stock
on the date of adoption of the policy. The multiple of annual base salary used to determine the fixed nun ber of shares is
as provided in the following table.

Level Base Salary Multiple
Chief Executive Officer 5
Executive Vice President

3
Corporate Senior Vice Presidents 3
Other Senior Vice Presidents 2

The following forms of ownership are recognized in determining the number of shares of our stozk owned by a
nonemployee director or executive officer for purposes of satisfying the stock ownership guidelines:

s  direct ownership of shares;

s indirect ownership of shares, including stock or stock equivalents held in our retirement plar;; and

e vested and unvested shares of restricted stock or stock units held under our long-term incentive programs.
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A nonemployee director or executive has three years from the date of adoption of the policy or the initial date of
election or appointment to comply with stock ownership guidelines. The time period for satisfying such ownership
requirement may be extended at the discretion of our chief executive officer for an additional period of up to two years.

In the event that a nonemployee director or executive does not meet the stock ownership level within the specified time
period, he or she will be prohibited from selling any stock acquired through vesting of restricted stock or restricted stock
units or upen exercise of stock options, except to pay for applicable taxes or the exercise price, until he or she satisfies the
requirements. Each of our current nonemployee directors and Named Executive Officers is covered by this policy and
currently satisfies the stock ownership guidelines applicable to him.

Tax Deductibility of Pay

Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code generally disallows a deduction to public companies to the extent
of excess annual compensation over 31 million paid to certain executive officers, except for qualified performance-based
compensation. Our 2007 annual cash bonus program and 2007 performance unit program are intended to qualify as
performance-based compensation under Section 162(m). Our general policy, where consistent with business objectives,
is to preserve the deductibility of compensation to executive officers. We may autharize forms of compensation that
might not be deductible if we believe they are in the best interests of Oceaneering and its shareholders. Our 2007 service-
based restricted stock unit awards are not considered performance-based under Section 162(m) and, accordingly, are
subject to the $1 million limit on deductibility. All or a portion of the value, when vested, of these restricted stock unit
awards may not be deductible. We had no nondeductible compensation paid to executive officers in 2007 and do not
anticipate any in 2008,

Compliance With Internal Revenue Cede Section 409A

Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code, which was enacted in 2004 and generally became effective in 2005,
can impose significant additional taxes on the recipient of “nonqualified deferred compensation” arrangements that do not
meet specified requirements regarding both form and operation. Some of the arrangements between Oceaneering and its
executive officers and other employees provide, or might be considered to provide, nonqualified deferred compensation,
The Committee believes that changes to some of these arrangements will be appropriate, so that our employees will not be
subject to the additional Section 409A taxes. The Committee has already adjusted some of our compensation
arrangements to comply with Section 409A and anticipates that it will take further action in 2008, in accordance with
guidance recently issued by the Internal Revenue Service, to amend arrangements to comply with Section 409A. These
adjustments may include changing the timing and form of payments to be made under nonqualified deferred
compensation arrangements. The arrangements that are likely to be changed include outstanding restricted stock,
restricted stock unit and performance unit awards, the SERP and Change of Control Agreements,

REPORT OF THE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

The Compensation Committee has reviewed and discussed the Compensation Discussion and Analysis included
in this Proxy Statement with the management of Oceaneering International, Inc., and, based on such review and
discussions, the Compensation Committee recommended to the Board of Directors of Oceaneering that the Compensation
Discussion and Analysis be included in this Proxy Statement.

!
Compensation Committee

Harris J. Pappas, Chairman
Jerold J. DesRoche

COMPENSATION OF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The following table summarizes compensation of our Chief Executive Qfficer, our Chief Financial Officer, and our
three most highly compensated executive officers other than our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer for the
years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006.
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Summary Compensation Table

Change in
Pension Value
and
Non-Equity | Nonquslified
Stock | Option |Incentive Plan| Deferred All Other
Name and Principal Salary | Bonus | Awards |Awards|Compensation Compensation | Compensaiion
Position Year| (8) ($)1) (5)(2) ($) (3)(3) Earnings (§) (Y 4)(S Total ($)
T. Jay Collins 2007 550,000|  175,000|2,085,307 - 825,000 -- 1,437,180 5,072,387
President & Chief 2006| 457,000  281,000] 1,434,336 - 469,000 - 1,440,195 4,081,631
Executive Officer
M. Kevin McEvoy 2007] 350,000 100,000 932,277 - 350,000 - 754,148 2,487,025
Executive Vice President | 20067 310,000 60,000| 700,395 - 290,000 -- 744,138 2,104,633
Marvin J. Migura 2007 315,000 85,000 861,655 - 315,000 - 662,115 2,239,570
Senior Vice President & 2006| 281,000 44,0001 648,708 -- 281,000 -- 691,189 1,946,097
Chief Financial Officer
George R. Haubenreich, Jr.| 2007| 295,000 55,000 904,550 - 295,000 - 656,81 2,206,031
Senior Vice President, 2006] 275,000 35,000 648,708 - 275,000 - 686,471 1,920,379
General Counsel &
Secretary
Philip D. Gardner 2007| 230,000 -1 403,031 - 150,000 - 248,833 1,031,864
Senior Vice President - 2006 215,000 -1 284,697 - 100,000 - 203,081 802,778
Subsea Products
(4} The amounts represent merit bonuses awarded to the indicated Named Executive Officers, apart from ihe bonuses

awarded under the 2007 Cash Bonus Award Program which are reflected in the “Non-Equity Incentiv¢ Plan
Compensation” column of this table. For further information, see “Compensation Discussion and Analysis — Annual
Incentive Awards Paid in Cash™” above.

(2) The amounts represent the compensation cost recoghized by us in 2007 and 2006 related to stock optiaas, restricted
stock and restricted stock unit awards made prior to 2006 and restricted stock unit awards made in 2007 and 2006 in
accordance with SFAS 123R. The compensation cost for 2007 is comprised of the following:

Awards Prior to 2007 Awards in 2007 i
Restricted Stock Units Restricted Stock Units
Name Stock Options () ® Ity Total (§)
T. Jay Collins - 1,574,214 511,093 2,085,307
M. Kevin McEvoy - 767,997 164,280 932,277
Marvin J. Migura - 711,065 150,590 |  B61,655
George R. Haubenreich, Jr. - 711,065 193,485 904,550
Philip D. Gardner 3,653 303,548 95,830 403,031

For a discussion of valuation assumptions see Note 8 to our consolidated financial statements included in our Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Excluded from the 2007 and 2006
amounts are the costs we recognized in 2007 and 2006, respectively for tax-assistance payments made i 2007 and 2006
to Named Executive Officers associated with restricted stock and restricted stock units awarded prior to 2006, because
the actual tax-assistance payments made in 2007 and 2006 for such awards are reported in the “*All Othe; Compensation™
column of this table.
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A3)

C)

()

The amounts reflect cash awards to the Named Executive Officers pursuant to our 2007 Cash Bonus Award Program,
see “Compensation Discussion and Analysis — Annual Incentive Awards Paid in Cash™ above.

The amounts shown for each attributable perquisite or benefit does not exceed the greater of $25,000 or 10% of the total
amount of perquisites received by any Named Executive Officer except as quantified for a Named Executive Officer in
the footnotes below.

The amounts shown in “All Other Compensation™ column for 2007 and 2006 are attributable to the following:

Mr. Collins: $275,000 and $229,167 for our 2007 and 2006 contribution to his notional SERP account,
respectively; 81,132,973 and $1,186,039 for tax gross-up payments associated with vestings of restricted stock and
stock units in 2007 and 2006, respectively; perquisites and other personal benefits in 2007 and 2006 totaling
$29,107 and 525,089, respectively, comprised of in each year: provision of excess liability insurance; tax advice
and tax return preparation; club membership; sporting event tickets; medical premium and cost reimbursements
for supplemental medical insurance plan; and personal use of company-provided automobile.

Mr. McEvoy: $175,000 and $142,667 for our 2007 and 2006 contribution to his notional SERP account,
respectively; $566,486 and $593,020 for tax gross-up payments associated with vestings of restricted stock and
stock units in 2007 and 2006, respectively; perquisites and other persenal benefits in 2007 and 2006 totating
513,262 and 38,551, respectively, comprised of in each year: provision of excess liability insurance; tax advice
and tax return preparation; club membership; sporting event tickets; medical premium and cost reimbursements
for supplemental medical insurance plan; and personal use of company-provided automobile.

Mr. Migura: $126,000 and $112,320 for our 2007 and 2006 contribution to his notional SERP account,
respectively; $528,721 and $563,369 for tax gross-up payments associated with vestings of restricted stock and
stock units in 2007 and 2006 respectively; perquisites and other personal benefits in 2007 and 2006 totaling
$8,194 and 515,700, respectively, comprised of in each year: provision of excess liability insurance; tax advice
and tax return preparation; club membership; sporting event tickets; and medical premium and cost
reimbursements for supplemental medical insurance plan.

Mr. Haubenreich: $118,000 and $110,000 for our 2007 and 2006 contribution to his notional SERP account;
respectively; $528,721 and $563,369 in tax gross-up payments associated with vestings of restricted stock and
stock units in 2007 and 2006, respectively; perquisites and other personal benefits totaling $9,760 and $13,302,
respectively, comprised of in each year: excess liability insurance; tax advice and tax return preparation; club
membership; sporting event tickets; and medical premium and cost reimbursements for supplemental medical
insurance plan.

Mr. Gardner: $46,000 and $43,000 for cur 2007 and 2006 contribution to his notional SERP account, respectively;
$201,417 and $158,139 in tax gross-up payments associated with vestings of restricted stock and stock units in
2007 and 2006, respectively; perquisites and other personal benefits in 2007 and 2006 totaling $1,416 and $1,942,
respectively, comprised of in each year excess liability insurance.
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The following table provides information about the equity and non-equity awards to the Name 1 Executive

Officers under our 2005 Incentive Plan during the year ended December 31, 2007.

Grants of Plan-Based Awards

Estimated Future Payouts Under Estimated Future Payouts All Other | All Other Grant
Non-Equity Incentive Plan Under Equity Incentive Plan Stock Option | Exercise | Date Fair
Awards(l) Awards Awards: Awards: | or Base | Value of
Number of |Number of| Price of |Stock and
Shares of | Securities | Option | Option
Grant |Threshold Target Maximum | Threshold Target Maximum] Stockor Underlyint| Awards | Awards
Name Date (S) ($) ) ) &) #) Units (#)(2) [Options ()| (8/Sh) | (9
T. lay
Collins 2/23/07 | 1,050,000 1,400,000 1,750,000 - - - 28,000 - - 1,149,960
M. Kevin
McEvoy 2/23/07 | 450,000 600,000 750,000 - - - 12,000 - - 492,840
Marvin J.
Migura 2/23/07 | 412,500 550,000 687,500 - - - 11,000 - - 451,770
George R.
Haubenreich, Jr. | 2/23/07 | 397,500 530,000 662,500 - - - 10,600 - - 435,342
Philip D.
Gardner 2/23/07 | 262,500 350,000 437,500 - - - 7,000 - - 287,490

(1) These columns show the potential value of the payout for each Named Executive Officer under the perfonnance units
awarded in 2007 if the threshold, target or maximum goals are satisfied for each of the performance measizes. The potential
payouts are performance-driven and therefore completely at risk. For a description of the awards, including business
measurements for the three-year performance period and the pesformance goals for determining the payout see '
“Compensation Discussion and Analysis — Long-Term Incentive Compensation” above.

(2) The amounts reflect the number of restricted stock units awarded to the Named Executive Officers in 2007. For a description
of the awards see “Compensation Discussion and Analysis — Long-Term Incentive Compensation” above.

(3) The amounts reflect the full grant date value of restricted stock units under SFAS 123R awarded to the Named Executive
Officers in 2007. For a discussion of valuation assumptions, see Note 8 to our consolidated financial statements included in
our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007. For a description of the awards, see “Compensation
Discussion and Analysis -~ Long-Term Incentive Compensation™ above.
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The following table provides information on the current holdings of stock options and unvested restricted stock units
for each of the Named Executive Officers as of December 31, 2007.

Qutstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End

Option Awards Stock Awards
Equity Equity Equity
Incentive Incentive Plan | Incentive Plan
Plan Market Awards: Awards:
Awards: Number | Valueof | Number of Market or
Number of | Number of | Number of of Shares or| Sharesor | WUnearned |Payout Value of
Securities Securities Securities Units Units of | Shares, Units Unearped
Underlying ] Underlying | Underlying of Stock [Stock That] or Other |Shares, Units or
Unexercised| Unexercised | Unexercised | Option Option | That Have | Have Not | Rights That | Other Rights
Options (#) | Options(#) Unearned | Exercise |Expiration| Not Vested | Vested Have Not | That Have Not
Name Exercisable | Unexercisable | Options (#) | Price ($) Date 8 ($)(2) Vested (#) Vested (§)
T. Jay
Collins - - - -- - 128,000 | 8,620,800 - -
M. Kevin
McEvoy - - - - -- 60,000 | 4,041,000 - -
Marvin J.
Migura - - - - - 55,2001 3,717,720 - -
George R.
Haubenreich, Jr. - - - - - 54,800 | 3,690,780 - -
Philip D. 20,000 - - 14.58| 3/25/09
Gardner 7,500 - - 18.64| 12/26/09 30,000 | 2,020,500 - -

(l)' Reflects unvested restricted stock units pursuant to the 2002, 2006 and 2007 Restricted Stock Unit Agreements for the Named
Executive Officers. The vesting schedule for these restricted stock units is as follows:

2

2002 Agreement (# of Units) 2002 2006 2007
Agreement | Agreement | Agreement
Total (# of Units) | (# of Units) Total

Name 7/4/08 7/3/09 72110 | (# of Units) 2/2/09 2/23/10 {(# of Units

T. Jay Collins 36,000 24,000 12,000 72,000 28,000 28,000 128,000

M. Kevin McEvoy 18,000 12,000 6,000 36,000 12,000 12,600 60,000
Marvin J. Migura 16,800 11,200 5,600 33,600 10,600 11,000 55,200
George R. Haubenreich, Jr. 16,800 11,200 5,600 33,600 10,600 10,600 54800  «
Philip D. Gardner 6,400 6,400 3,200 16,000 7,000 7,000 30,000

Market value of unvested restricted stock units assumes a price of $67.35 per share of our Common Stock as of
December 31, 2007. The estimated value of the tax-assistance payment that would be provided pursuant to the 2002
Restricted Stock Unit Agreement for the market value of these restricted stock units is as follows:

- Mr. Collins

- Mr. McEvoy

- Mr. Migura

- Mr. Haubenreich
- Mr. Gardner

$2,781,501
$1,390,751
$1,298,034
$1,298,034
$ 618,111
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The following tabé provides inf(;rmaﬁon for the Named Exécutive Officers on (1) stock option exercises duripg
2007, including the number of sharcs acquired upon excreise and the value realized, and (2) the number of shares acquired
upon vesting of stock awards in the form of restricted stock and restricted stock unit awards and the value realized.

Option Exercises and Stock Vested

Option Awards Stock Awards
Number of Shares Value Realized Number of Shares Value Realized on
Name Acquired on Exercise (#) _on Exercise (%) | Acquired on Vesting (#) Vesting (3)(1)
T. Jay Collins . - - 36,000 1,975,320
M. Kevin McEvoy - - 18,000 987,660
Marvin J. Migura - - 16,800 921,816
George R. Haubenreich, Jr. - - 16,800 921,816
Philip D. Gardner - - 6,400 351,168

(1) The amount reflects the value realized for restricted stock vested pursuant to our 2002 Restricted Stock Unit Program.
Pursuant to these programs, a tax-assistance payment was provided in the following amounts: Mr. Collins - $1,132,973; Mr.
McEvoy - $566,486; Mr. Migura - §528,721; Mr. Haubenreich - $528,721; and Mr. Gardner - $201,417. The amount of these
tax-assistance payments is included for each Named Executive Officer in the amount shown in the “All Other Compensation”
column of the “Summary Compensation Table” above.

We do not provide a Pension Benefits Table because we have no qualified pension plan or other plan that would
be reportable under the SEC’s rules applicable to Pension Benefits Tables.

Nonqualified Deferred Compensation

Our SERP is an unfunded, defined contribution plan for selected executives and key employees of Oceaneering,
including the Named Executive Officers. Pursuant to our SERP, U.S. participants, including the Named Executive
Officers, may defer up to 85% of their base salaries and 90% of their annual cash bonus amounts. We credita
participant’s notional account with a determined percentage of the participant’s base salary, subject to vesting. Benefits
under our SERP are based on the participant’s vested portion of his or her notional account balance at the time of
termination of employment. A participant vests in our credited amounts at the rate of 33% each year, subject to
accelerated vesting upon the soonest to occur of (1) the date the participant has completed ten years of participation, (2)
the date that the sum of the participant’s age and years of participation equals 65, (3) the date of termination of
employment by reason of death or disability, and (4) within two years following a change of control. Messrs. Collins,
McEvoy, Migura and Haubenreich are fully vested in their SERP accounts. All participants are fully vested in deferred
base salary and bonus.
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The table below shows the investment options available to all participants and the a
investment for the year ended December 31, 2007, as reported by the administrator of our- 8EKP.

mer o -

,ﬁual rate of return for each

Rate of Rate of
Return Return
Name of Fund (%) Name of Fund (%)

Alger Smali-Cap Growth 15.10| AllianceBernstein International Value 6.24
American Funds Growth 11.93| American Funds Growth-Income 4.66
Batterymarch International Small-Cap 4.73| BlackRock Equity Index 523
BlackRock Small-Cap Index (2.02)} Capital Guardian Diversified Research 1.19
Capital Guardian Equity 6.27| Clearbridge Large-Cap Value 3.54
Columbia Technology 23.03] Gotdman Sachs Shott Duration Bond 4.47
Highland Capital-Floating Rate Loan (1.86)| Janus Growth LT 15.63
JP Morgan Diversified Bond 1.32] Lazard Mid-Cap Value (215
Loomis, Sayles Large-Cap Growth 21.63| MFS International Large Cap 9.26
NFJ Small Cap Value 3.14| Oppenheimer Emerging Market 33.09
Oppenheimer Main Street Core 4.40( Oppenheimer Multi-Strategy 434
Pacific Life High Yield Bond 2.44| Pacific Life Money Market 4,99
PIMCO Inflation Managed 10.14| PIMCO Managed Bond 853
Van Kampen Comstock - (3.01)| Van Kampen Mid-Cap Growth 22.92
Van Kampen Real Estate (16.16)| Vaughan Nelson Small Cap Equity 6.04

The following table providés information on our non-qualified deferred compensation plan.

entirely attributable to our SERP,

Amounts shown are

2

Executive Registrant Aggregate
Contributions | Contributions in | Aggregate Earnings Withdrawals/ Aggregate Balance
Name in 2007 (8) 2007 ($)(1) in 2007 ($)(2) Distributions (3) at 12/3107 ($)(3)

T. Jay Collins ' 24,000 275,000 70,012 “- 2,736,738
M. Kevin McEvoy - 175,000 61,272 .- 1,341,248
Marvin J. Migura 225,000 126,000 71,116 - 2,608,107
George. R. Haubenreich, Jr. - 118,000 (73,019) - 1,763,360
Philip D. Gardner 50,000 50,600 11,735 - 317,212

{1 Amounts reflect the credited contributions we made to the account of the Named Executive Officer in 2007. All of the

contributions shown are included in the *All Other Compensation™ column of the “Summary Compensation Table”
above.

Amounts shown reflect hypothetical accrued gains (or losses) in 2007 on the aggregate of contributions by the Named
Executive Officer and us on notional investments designed to track the performance of the funds selected by the Named
Executive Officers as follows:

Aggregate Earnings in 2007
Executive- Company
Name Contributions ($) Contributions (§) Total ($)
T. Jay Collins 16,359 53,653 70,012
M. Kevin McEvoy 2,714 58,558 61,272
Marvin J. Migura 35,652 35,464 71,116
George R. Haubenreich, Jr. (7.960) {65,059) {73,019)
Philip D. Gardner 4,576 7,159 11,735
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{3) Amounts reflect the accumnulated account values (including gains and losses) of contributions by the Named Exccutive
Officers and us as of December 31, 2007 as follows:

Aggregate Balance at 12/31/07
Executive Company
Name Contributions ($) Contributions ($)] Total (3
T. Jay Collins 561,673 2,175,065 2,736,738
M. Kevin McEvoy 51,225 1,290,623{ 1,341,248
Marvin J. Migura 1,325,641 1,282,466| 2,608,107
George R. Haubenreich, Jr. 533,091 1,230,269 1,763,360
Philip D. Gardner 118,133 195,079 317.212

Potential Payments on Termination or Change of Control

As described in the “Compensation Discussion and Analysis” above, Messrs. Collins, McEvoy, Migura and
Haubenreich have Change of Control Agreements. Upon a change of control of Oceaneering, each of them may be
subject to certain excise taxes pursuant to Section 4999 of the Internal Revenue Code. We have agreed to reimburse those
Named Executive Officers for all such excise taxes that may be imposed and any income taxes and excise taxes that may
become payable as a result of the reimbursement. Based on the amounts shown in the “Change of Control” column in the
following tables, none of the Named Executive Officers would be subject to an excise tax liability. However, whether an
excise tax liability will arise in the future will depend on the facts and circumstances in existence at the time a change of
control payment becomes payable. All of the outstanding long-term incentive agreements of the Named Executive
Officers have provisions for settlement in the event of death, disability or a change of control, except the 2002 restricted
stock unit agreements of Messrs. Collins, McEvoy, Migura and Haubenreich have no provision for settlement in the event
of a change of control.

Assuming a December 31, 2007 termination date and, where applicable, using the closing price of our Common
Stock of $67.35 as reported by the New York Stock Exchange, the tables below show potential payments to each of the
Named Executive Officers in the existing contracts, agreements, plans or arrangements, whether written or unwritien in
the event of a termination of such executive’s employment, including amounts payable pursuant to benefits or awards in
which the Named Executive Officers are vested. As used in the agreements referenced in the table below, the term
“Change of Control” has the same meaning as the Change of Control agreements define that term. For a summary of that
definition, see “Compensation Discussion and Analysis — Change of Control Agreements” above.

T. Jay Collins
Yoluntary or
involuntary
Payments upen termination termination Death and Disability Change in Control
Severance Payments $0 £0 $4,950,000 (1)
Benefit Plan Participation 50 $0 $83,657 (2)
Restricted Stock Units
(unvested & accelerated) $0 $11,402,301 (3) $3,771,600 (4)
Performance Units (unvested & accelerated) $0 50 (5) $2,800,000 (&)
Accrued Vacation/Base Salary $84,615 $84,615 £84,618
SERP (vested) $2,736,738 (7) $2,736,738 (7) $2,736,738 (7)
TOTAL $2,821,353 $14,223,654 $14.426,610

27




M. Kevin McEvoy

Voluntary or

inveluntary
Payments upon termination termination Death and Disability Change in Control

Severance Payments 50 50 $2,625,000 (1)
Benefit Plan Participation $0 80 $77,301 (2)
Restricted Stock Units

(unvested & accelerated) $0 $5,431,751 (3} $1,616,400 (9)
Performance Units {(unvested & accelerated) $0 $0 (5) $1,200,000 (6)
Accrued Vacation/Base Salary $17,759 $17,759 $17,759
SERP (vested) $1,341,248 (7 51,341,248 (7) $1,341,248 (7)

TOTAL

$1,359,007

$6,790,758

$6,877,708

Marvin J. Migura

Voluntary or
involuntary "

Payments upon termination termination Death and Disability Change in Control
Severance Payments $0 $0 $2,268,000 (1)
Benefit Plan Participation 50 $0 $63,242 (2)
Restricted Stock Units
(unvested & sccelerated) £0 $5,015,754 (3) $1,454,760 (4)
Performance Units {unvested & accelerated) $0 $0 (5) $1,080,000 (6)
Accrued Vacation/Base Salary $438,462 $4%,462 $48,462

SERP (vested)
TOTAL

$2,608,107 (7)

$2,608,107 (7)

$2.608,107 (7)

$2,656,569

$7.672,323

$7,522,571

George R. Haubeareich, Jr.

Yoluntary or

involuntary
Payments upon terminstion termination Death and Disability Change in Control

Severance Payments $0 $0 $2,124,000 (1)
Benefit Plan Participation £0 $0 $58,327 (2)
Restricted Stock Units

(unvested & accelerated) %0 $4,988.814 (3) $1,427,820 (4)
Performance Units (unvested & accelerated) $0 $0 (5) $1,060,000 (6}
Accrued Vacation/Base Salary $45385 $45,385 $45 385
SERP (vested) $1,763,360 (7) $1,763,360 {7) $1,763,360 (7)

TOTAL

$1,808,745

$6,797,55%

$6,478,892




Philip D. Gardner

Voluntary or
involuntary
Payments upon termination termination Death and Disability Change in Control
Severance Payments $0 $0 $0
Restricted Stock Units
611 (8 638,611
(unvested & accelerated) : 50 $2,638,611 (8) 52,638,611 (8)
Performance Units {(unvested & accelerated) $0 $0 (5) $700,000 (9)
SERP {unvested & accelerated} $0 ’ $71,942 (10) $71,942 (10)
Accrued Vacation/Base Salary $19,019 $19,019 819019
SERP (vested) $317,212 (7) $317,212 (T) TSNz
Stock Options (vested) $1,420,725 (11) $1,420,725 (11) $1,420,725 {11}
TOTAL 51,756,956 $4,467,509 $5,167,509

8y

€

(3}

(4)

(5)

©

@)

(8)

&)

Amount reflects an amount equaling three times the sum of: a) his highest annual rate of base satary for the prior three years;
b) the maximum award he is eligible to receive under the annual cash bonus program for the current year; and ¢) maximum
percentage of base salary contribution level by us for him in our SERP for the current year multiplied by his highest annual
rate of base salary in effect during the current year or any of the prior three years that is payable pursuant to the executive’s
Change of Control Agreement.

Amount reflects the estimated value of the benefit to the executive to receive the same level of medical, life insurance, and
disability benefits for a period of three years after termination that is payable pursuant to the executive’s Change of Control
Agreement.

Amount reflects: (a) the value of shares of Common Stock that would be delivered for each outstanding restricted stock unit
pursuant to the executive's 2002, 2006 and 2007 Restricted Stock Unit Agreements and Change of Control Agreement; and
(b) the value of the tax-assistance payment that would be provided pursuant to the executive's 2002 Restricted Stock Unit
Agreement and Change of Control Agreement.

Amount reflects the value of shares of Common Stock that would be delivered for each outstanding restricted stock unit
pursuant to the executive’s 2006 and 2007 Restricted Stock Unit Agreements and Change of Control Agreement.

Upon death or disability, the performance units awarded pursuant to the 2006 and 2007 Performance Unit Agreements would
vest; however, the amount payable, if any, will not be known until the completion of the three-year performance periods
January 1, 2006 — December 31, 2008 and January 1, 2007 — December 31, 2009, respectively, at which time the performance
will be measured. For information about goals and measures and amounts payable, see “Compensation Discussion and
Analysis — Long-Term Incentive Compensation” above.

Amount reflects cash payment for outstanding performance units at the target goal level of $100 per unit pursuant to the
executive’s 2006 and 2007 Performance Unit Agreements and Change of Control Agreements. ’

Vested SERP amounts include the aggregate of Oceaneering and executive contributions and earnings. For more information
on vested SERP amounts, see “Nonqualified Deferred Contributions ~ Aggregate Balance at December 31, 2007 above.

Amount reflects: (a) the value of shares of Common Stock that would be delivered for each outstanding restricted stock unit
pursuant to Mr., Gardner's 2002, 2006 and 2007 Restricted Stock Unit Agreements; and (b} the value of the tax-assistance
payment that would be provided pursuant to Mr. Gardner's 2002 Restricted Steck Unit Agreement.

Amount reflects cash payment for outstanding performance units at the target level of $100 per unit pursuant to Mr.
Gardner’s 2006 and 2007 Performance Unit Agreements.

(10) Amount reflects unvested accrued amount in our SERP for Mr. Gardner. Accrued amounts in our SERP for all other Named

Executive Officers are fully vested at December 31, 2007.

(11) Amount reflects the value of vested stock options.
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Director Compensation

During 2007, we paid our nonemployee directors, on a quarterly basis, an annual retainer of $40,000 with an
additional annual retainer of $15,000 to the Chairman of the Audit Committee and an additional annual retainer of 38,000
to the Chairmen of the Compensation Committee and the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee. We pay our
nonemployee directors $1,000 for each Board meeting attended, $1,000 for each committee meeting attended (if the
meeting is on a day other than the date of the Board meeting) and a fee of $125 per hour, up to a maximum of $1,000 per
day, for any other services directly related to activities of the Board or a Committee of the Board. Mr. Huff, the Chairman
of the Board, did not receive the above board and meeting fees in 2007, nor will he receive such fees 2008, pursuant to the
terms of his Amended Service Agreement. For a description of Mr. Huff’s compensation as a nonemployee director, see
“Service Agreement and Change of Control Agreement with Mr. Huff” below.

Besides payment of annual retainers and meeting fees, our nonemployee directors may also participate in our
basic medical plans. Nonemployee directors may elect to participate in our health care plan without payment of any
monthly premium and participate in a supplemental medical plan at no cost to the director. We pay the Medicare
premium for Mr. Hughes. Mr. Huff’s Amended Service Agreement, as did his prior employment agreement, provides for
medical coverage on an after-tax basis to Mr. Huff, his spouse and children for their lives. All directors are provided a
group personal excess liability insurance policy at no cost to the directors and they are reimbursed for their travel and
other expenses involved in attendance at Board and committee meetings and activities.

In 2007, our nonemployee directors participated in our shareholder-approved 2005 Incentive Plan. Under this
plan in 2007, our nonemployee directors, Messrs. DesRoche, Hooker, Hughes and Pappas, were each awarded 8,000
shares of restricted stock. The restricted stock awards are scheduled to vest in full on the first anniversary of the award
date, subject to (1) earlier vesting on a change of control or the termination of the director’s service due to death, and (2)
such other terms as are set forth in the award agreement, Under this plan in 2007, Mr. Huff was awarded 28,000 restricted
common stock units and 14,000 performance units in accordance with Mr. Huff's Amended Service Agreement described
in “Service Agreement and Change of Control Agreement with Mr. Huff” below. This is an award level equal to and
upon terms and conditions substantially the same as that granted in 2007 to our Chief Executive Officer, except as
“described below. For more information on these restricted common stock unit and performance unit awards, see
“Compensation Discussion and Analysis — Long Term Incentive Compensation.”

The table below summarizes the compensation we paid to our nonemployee directors during the year ended
December 31, 2007.

Director Compensation Table

Non-Equity Change in Pension
Fees Earned or Incentive Plan Value and All Other
Paid in Cash Stock Option | Compensation| Nonquatified Deferred | Compensation
Name ($)}(1) Awards (8)(2) | Awards (3) ($) Compensation Earnings|  ($)(3)(4) Total (§)
John R. Huff 400,000 2,667,936 - -- - 2,431,990 5.499,926.
Jerold J. DesRoche 61,000 320,290 - - - 14,838 396,128
D. Michael Hughes 71,000 T 320290 - - - 24,488 415,778
David S. Hooker 75,000 _ 320,290 - - - 1,666 396,956
Harris J. Pappas 67,000 320,290 - - -- 1,666 338,956

(1} Amounts shown are attributable entirely to fees for attendance at meetings of the Board and committees of the Board, and
annual retainers as described in “Director Compensation™ above and “Service Agreement and Change of Contrel Agreement
with Mr. Huff” below.

(2) The amounts represent the compensation costs recognized by us in 2007 related to restricted stock and stock unit awards to
nonemployee directors computed in accordance with SFAS 123R. For Mr. Huff, the compensation cost is comprised of
awards prior to 2007 - $1,965,183, at which time he also served as Chief Executive Officer, and in 2007 - §702,753. The
grant date fair market value of awards made in 2007 computed in accordance with SFAS 123R is $328,560 for each of
Messrs. DesRoche, Hughes, Hooker and Pappas; and $1,149,960 for Mr, Huff. For a discussion of valuation assumptions,
see Note 8 to our consolidated financial statements inciuded in our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December
31, 2007. The aggregate number of restricted shares or units of stock outstanding for each of Messrs. DesRoche, Hooker,
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Hughes and Pappas is 8,000, and for Mr. Huff is 152,000. The aggregate number of shares subject to outstanding stock
options is: Mr. Hocker — 40,000; and Mr. Pappas — 60,000.

(3) The amounts shown for each attributable perquisite or benefit does not exceed the greater of $25,000 or 10% of the total
amount of perquisite received by any director except as quantified for a director in the foomotes below.

{4) The amounts shown in “All Other Compensation” column are attributable to the following:

s Mr. Huff: $1,573,020 and $10,556 for tax gross-up payments associated with vestings of restricted stock units and Mr.
Huff's medical coverage described above, respectively for 2007; $765,000 for lump-sum cash buyout in licu of the
perquisites to which Mr. Huff would have been entitled during his Post-Employment Service Period as described in
“Service Agreement and Change of Contrel Agreement with Mr. Huff” below; perquisites and other personal benefits
totaling $83,414 comprised of: provision of excess liability insurance; tax advice and tax return preparation ($335,852);
personal use of company-owned fishing camp, annual premiums and reimbursement of medical costs for health care,
including medical premium and costs for a supplemental medical insurance plan ($40,585).

¢  Mr. DesRoche: perquisites and other personal benefits totaling $14,838 comprised of: provision of excess liability
insurance, personal use of a company-owned fishing camp and premium and costs reimbursed for a supplemental
medical insurance plan.

e  Mr. Hughes: perquisites and other personal benefits totaling $24,488 comprised of: provision of excess liability
insurance, personal use of a company-owned fishing camp, annual premium for basic health care provided by us,
Medicare premium paid by us and premium and medical costs reimbursed for a supplemental medical insurance ptan.

s Mr. Hooker and Mr. Pappas: perquisites and other personal benefits totaling $1,666 cach comprised of provision of
excess liability insurance and premium for a supplemental medical insurance plan.

Service Agreement and Change of Control Agreement With Mr. Huff

As we previously disclosed, we entered into a Service Agreement with Mr. Huff in November 20¢1 (the “Service
Agreement™), when Mr. Huff was serving as our Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. The Service
Agreement replaced Mr. Huff’s prior employment agreement. As did the prior employment agreement, the Service
Agreement provided medical coverage on an after-tax basis to Mr. Huff, his spouse and children during his employment
with us and thereafter for their lives. The Service Agreement provided for a specific employment period (which, as
subsequently amended, extended through December 30, 2006), followed by a specific service period ending no later than
August 15, 2011 (the “Post-Employment Service Period”), during which time it was contemplated that Mr. Huff, acting as
an independent contractor, would serve as nonexecutive Chairman of our Board of Directors.

The Service Agreement provided that, following the completion of Mr. Huff’s employment period, we could
request that he serve as Chairman of the Board during the Post-Employment Service Period, and if he refused to serve and
we were fulfilling our obligations under the Service Agreement, no salary or benefits not previously vested as of the time
of his refusal would have been payable to him under the Service Agreement. If Mr. Huff was not requested to serve as
Chairman of the Board or if he did serve as Chairman of the Board for any portion of the Post-Employment Service
Period and his service as Chairman of the Board thereafier terminated at any time and for any reason (other than his
refusal to serve during the Post-Emiployment Service Period), including by reason of his death or disability, or our failure
to fulfill our obligations under the Service Agreement, he would be entitled to receive various severance benefits. During
the Post-Employment Service Period under the Service Agreement, for so long as Mr. Huff was serving as Chairman of
the Board, his annual rate of cash compensation would have been equal to 50% of his highest annual base salary during
the employment period (or $400,000 per year). In addition, throughout that period, Mr. Huff would have continued to
receive certain perquisites and administrative assistance, and he would have continued to participate in various benefit
plans; however, he would not have been eligible for subsequent grants or contributions made under any such plan after the
completion of his employment period.

In 2006, the Compensation Committee of our Board of Directors determined that it would approve timely
modifications to the Service Agreement to address changes in the tax law and anticipated additional guidance from the
Internal Revenue Service regarding “nonqualified deferred compensation arrangements™ under Section 409A of the
Internal Revenue Code. In the absence of appropriate modifications, the impact of these tax law changes could have
resulted in a 20% additional tax payable by Mr. Huff, at least some of which would have been recoverable by Mr. Huff
from us under tax reimbursement provisions of the Service Agreement. On December 21, 2006, acting pursuant to a
recommendation of the Compensation Committee, our Board of Directors approved an amendment and restaternent of the
Service Agreement (the “Amended Service Agreement”). Although the principal purpose for entering into the Amended
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Service Agreement was to address issues arising under Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code, the Amended Service
Agreement also clarified or resolved other issues that existed under the Service Agreement.

The Amended Service Agreement, among other things, provides for:
¢  the commencement of the Post-Employment Service Period on December 31, 2006;

¢ 2 $6.4 million lump-sum cash buyout of Mr. Huff’s entitternent to perquisites and administrative assistance
for ten years from the termination of the Post-Employment Service Period, with the lump-sum amount being
paid in 2007 at an amount equal to a negotiated net present value of those items;

» annual payments of $765,000 in 2007, $540,000 in 2008, $540,000 in 2009 and $540,000 in 2010, in each
case as long as Mr. Huff is then continuing to serve as our Chairman of the Board, in lieu of the perquisites
to which Mr. Huff would have been entitled during the Post-Employment Service Period;

s  atax-protection clause, to ensure that Mr. Huff will not be impacted adversely by taxes under Section 409A
of the Internal Revenue Code in the event the amendments effected pursuant to the Amended Service
Agreement (including those described above) are insufficient to ensure that the arrangements with Mr. Huff
do not constitute “nonqualified deferred compensation arrangements,” provided that Mr. Huff agreed to
changes in the Amended Service Agreement and his separate Change of Control Agreement to satisfy the
requirements of the applicable provisions of Section 409A and applicable Treasury Regulations yet to be
finalized, unless such changes would cause more than insubstantial harm to him;

= the continuation of long-term incentive plan awards to Mr. Huff in 2007 and 2008 at a level equal to the
awards granted to our Chief Executive Officer, to: (1) partially compensate Mr. Huff for the understanding
that he would provide services in addition to those normally provided by a chairman of the board
(“Additional Services™), with those Additional Services to be as mutually agreed but to initially involve
assistance with strategic initiatives and business expansion efforts; and (2} place Mr. Huff in the equivalent
position as if a three-year award had been granted in 2005, as would have been anticipated based on the
practice in effect in 2001;

s the eligibility of Mr. Huff to receive long-term incentive plan awards after 2008, provided that, for any year
that Mr. Huff receives a long-term incentive award in excess of awards applicable to our other nonemployee
directors, Mr. Huff will not receive an additional long-term incentive award equal to the award granted to
our other nonemployee directors for that year;

s the entitlement for Mr. Huff to receive, after 2008, the same pay as our other nonemployee directors during
the period that Mr. Huff continues to serve as one of our directors, (in addition to the $400,000 amount per
year for up to five years if Mr. Huff continues to serve as Chairman of the Board during the Post-
Employment Service Period), to provide compensation for the post-2008 portion of the Post-Employment
Service Period for the understanding that Mr. Huff would provide Additional Services; and

» in the event of his disability, the provision of the same acceleration of payment of the benefits payable to
him for the ten years following the Post-Employment Service Period as would be available in the event of
his death or a change of control (a lump-sum, undiscounted payment).

As part of its actions on December 21, 2006, our Board of Directors also formally requested that Mr, Huff begin
the Post-Employment Service Period by continuing to serve as Chairman of the Board, and Mr. Huff has done so.

Also as part of the negotiated arrangements relating to Mr. Huff's retirement benefits, the Compensation
Committee authorized and approved our establishment of an irrevocable grantor trust, commonly known as a “rabbi
trust,” to provide Mr. Huff greater assurance that we would set aside an adequate source of funds to fund the payment of
the post-retirement benefits under the Amended Service Agreement, including the medical coverage benefits payable to
Mr. Huff, his spouse and their children for their lives. In connection with establishment of the rabbi trust, we contributed
to the trust a life insurance policy on the life of Mr. Huff which we had previously obtained and we agreed to continue to
pay the premiums due on that policy. When the life insurance policy matures, the proceeds of the policy will become
assets of the trust. If the value of trust assets exceeds $4 million, as adjusted by the consumer price index, at any time after
January 1, 2012, the excess may be paid to us. However, because the trust is irrevocable, the assets of the trust are
generally not otherwise available to fund our future operations until the trust terminates, which is not expected to occur
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during the lives of Mr. Huff, his spouse or his children. Furthermore, no tax deduction will be available for our
contributions to the trust; however, we may benefit from future tax deductions for benefits actually paid from the trust
(although benefit payments from the trust are not expected to occur in the near term, because we expect to make direct
payments of those benefits for the foreseeable future).

As we previously described, in November 2001 we entered into a change of control agreement with Mr. Huff
who was then serving as our Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer upon terms and conditions substantially
the same as the Change of Control Agreement described in the “Compensation Discussion and Analysis — Change of
Control Agreements,” except as described below. Mr. Huff's Change of Control Agreement replaced his prior senior
executive and supplemental senior executive agreements. While Mr. Huff is nonexecutive Chairman of the Board, a
termination of his service for any reason other than his refusal to serve as nonexecutive Chairman of the Board would
entitle Mr. Huff to the severance package under his agreement. The calculated minimum amount for determining the
amount of the severance package under the change of control agreement described in the “Compensation Discussion and
Analysis-Change of Control Agreements” is applicable to Mr. Huff for any termination occurring during his service as
nonexecutive Chairman of the Board. Any payment of the Change of Control severance package to Mr, Huff would not
reduce any benefits or compensation due Mr. Huff under the Amended Service Agreement; provided, however, that the
benefit in the Change of Control Agreement regarding benefits under compensation plans and other benefits payable for
three years are not provided under the Change of Control Agreement to Mr. Huff to the extent they are duplicative of
benefits provided to him under the Amended Service Agreement,

Assuming a December 31, 2007 termination date of Mr. Huff serving as our Chairman of the Board for reasons
other than his refusal to serve as our Chairman of the Board for any reason other than we have failed to fulfill our
obligations under his Amended Service Agreement, and, where applicable using the closing price of our Common Stock
of $67.35 on December 31, 2007 (as reported by the New York Stock Exchange), potential payments to Mr. Huff consist
of: $8,000,000, which reflects $800,000 per year payable in advance for ten years provided in the event of Mr. Huff’s
death, disability or a change of control, all unpaid amounts would be accelerated and become payable in a non-discounted
lump-sum payment; $17,445,868 which reflects (1) the value of shares of Common Stock that would be delivered for each
outstanding vested and unvested restricted stock unit pursuant to Mr. Huff's Amended Service Agreement, his 2002, 2006
and 2007 Restricted Stock Unit Agreements and, if applicable, his Change of Control Agreement, (2) the value of the tax-
assistance payment that would be provided pursuant to his Amended Service Agreement, his 2002 Restricted Stock
Agreement, and if applicable, his Change of Control Agreement and (3) a cash payment for outstanding performance units
under the 2006 and 2007 Performance Unit Agreements at the maximum goal level of $125 per unit pursuant to the
Amended Service Agreement. If termination of Mr. Huff’s service as our Chairman of the Board is the result of a Change
of Control, an additional amount of $4,650,000 would be payable as described above. Based upon these amounts, Mr.
Huff would not be subject to an excise tax liability. However, whether an excise tax liability will arise in the future will
depend on the facts and circumstances in existence at the time a change of control payment becomes payable. We have
agreed to reimburse Mr. Huff for all such excise taxes that may be imposed and any income taxes and excise taxes that
may become payable as a result of the reimbursement.

Assuming a December 31, 2007 termination date of Mr. Huff serving as our Chairman of the Board as a result of
his refusal to serve as our Chairman of the Board for any reason other than we have failed to fulfill our obligations under
his Amended Service Agreement, Mr. Huff would not receive the above described severance payments; would forfeit all
unvested restricted stock units and performance units that were awarded to him and potential payments to Mr. Huff would
have consisted of $3,285,800, which reflects (1) the value of shares of common stock using the price of our common
stock of $67.35 per share on December 31, 2007 (as reported by the New York Stock Exchange), that would be delivered
for each outstanding vested restricted stock unit under Mr. Huff’s 2006 and 2007 Restricted Stock Unit Agreements and
(2) a cash payment for outstanding vested performance units under Mr. Huff’s 2006 and 2007 Performance Unit
Agreements at the target goal level of $100 per unit pursuant to the Amended Service Agreement. These outstanding
restricted stock units and performance units are vested by reason of Mr. Huff having met age and years of service
requirements.
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CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

Our Board of Directors adopted a written policy with respect to related-person transactions to document
procedures pursuant to which such transactions are reviewed and approved or ratified. The policy applies to any
transaction in which (1) Oceaneering or any of its subsidiaries is a participant, (2) any related person has a direct or
indirect material interest and (3) the amount involved exceeds $120,000, but excludes any transaction that does not
require disclosure under Item 404(a) of Regulation S-K promulgated by the SEC. Under the policy related persons
include our directors, nominees to become a director, executive officers, beneficial owners of 5% or more of our voting
securities, immediate family members of any of the foregoing persons, and any entity in which any of the foregoing
persons is employed as an executive officer or is a partner or principal or in a similar position or in which such person has
a 5% or greater beneficial ownership. Our policy includes a process to monitor related-person transactions and, if a
determination is made that a proposed transaction or category of transaction is a related person transaction, a submission
is made to the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, which will consider all of the relevant facts and
circumstances available and evaluate whether to approve or ratify the transaction.

Except as set forth in this Proxy Statement, no director or executive officer of Oceaneering or nominee for
election as a director of Oceaneering, or holder of more than 5% of the outstanding shares of Common Stock, and no
member of the immediate family of any such director, nominee, officer or security holder, to our knowledge, had any
material interest in any transaction during the year ended December 31, 2007, or in any currently proposed transaction, to
which Oceaneering or any subsidiary of Oceaneering was or is a party in which the amount involved exceeds $120,000.

No director or executive officer of Oceaneering who has served in such capacity since January 1, 2007 or any
associate of any such director or officer, to the knowledge of the executive officers of Oceaneering, has any material
interest in any matter proposed to be acted on at the 2008 Annual Meeting of Sharcholders, other than as described in this
Proxy Statement.

PROPOSAL 2

Amendment of the Restated Certificate of Incorporation to Increase the
Number of Authorized Shares of Common Stock

Our Board has determined that it is an appropriate time to propose an amendment to our Restated Certificate of
Incorporation to increase the number of authorized shares of capital stock from 93 million to 183 million and to increase
the number of authorized shares of common stock from 90 miilion to 180 million.

Under our Restated Certificate of Incorporation as currently in effect, the total number of shares of capital stock
which we have the authority to issue is 93 million. Of these authorized shares, common stock comprises 90 million shares
and preferred stock comprises three million shares. As of March 24, 2008, the number of shares of common stock
outstanding was 55,118,988 (there were no shares held in treasury), 1,360,525 shares of common stock were reserved for
issuance on exercise of options and vesting and settlement of restricted stock units under our incentive plans and
1,809,492 shares of common stock were reserved for future grants under those plans. As a result, as of March 24, 2008,
we have a.total of 31,710,995 shares of Common Stock available for issuance, after taking into account shares reserved
for issuance on the exercise of stock options and future grants. This number of shares available for issuance takes into
account our two-for-one stock split effected in the form of a stock dividend, which we completed on June 19, 2006. Asa
result of that stock split, we reduced our shares of common stock available for issuance by approximately 26,938,000
shares. There are no outstanding shares of preferred stock and the proposed amendment would not increase the authorized
number of shares of preferred stock.

Our Board believes that it is advisable and in the best interests of our shareholders to increase the number of
authorized shares of common stock to provide a sufficient reserve of shares for our future business and financial needs.
These additional authorized shares would provide us greater flexibility in the consideration of future stock dividends or
stock splits, sales of common stock or convertible securities to enhance capital and liquidity, possible future acquisitions,
and other corporate purposes as our Board may consider appropriate from time to time. Assuming our shareholders
approve the proposed amendment to our Restated Certificate of Incorporation set forth below, we do not expect that
further authorization from our shareholders will be solicited for the issuance of any shares of Common Stock, except to
the extent required by applicable law or by the rules of the New York Stock Exchange. Existing holders of shares of
common stock would have no preemptive rights under our Restated Certificate of Incorporation to purchase any
additional shares of common stock we may issue. It is possible that we may issue additional shares of common stock at a
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time and under circumstances that may dilute the voting power of existing shareholders, decrease earnings per share and
decrease the book value per share of shares presently held. We have no specific plans, proposals or arrangements, written
or otherwise, to igsue any of the additional authorized shares of common stock at this time.

The increase in the authorized number of shares of our common stock and the subsequent issuance of a large
number of thase shares could have the effect of delaying or preventing a change of control of our company withcut further
action by our stockholders, and thus make it more difficult to remove and replace our management. Shares of authorized
and unissued common stock could (within the limits imposed by applicable law) be issued in one or more transactions that
would make a change of control of Oceaneering more difficult, and therefore less likely. The additional authorized shares
could be used to discourage persons from attempting to gain control of Oceaneering, by diluting the voting power of
shares then outstanding or increasing the voting power of persons who would support our Board in a potential takeover
scenario. In addition, the increase in authorized shares of common stock could permit our Board to approve our issuance
of common stock to persons supportive of our incumbent management. Those persons might then be in a position to vote
to prevent or delay a proposed business combination or other change-of-control transaction that is deemed unacceptable to
our Board, although perceived to be desirable by some of our stockholders. Any such issuance could provide our
management with a means to block any vote that might be used to effect a business combination or other
change-of-control transaction in accordance with our Restated Certificate of Incorporation. Although these potential
anti-takeover effects are inherent in the proposed amendment, our Board does not view the increase in the number of
authorized shares of common stock as an anti-takeover measure, and the amendment is not being made in response to any
specific proposed or contemplated change-of-control transaction or effort by any third party.

Our Board has unanimously adopted a resolution approving, subject to sharcholder approval, and declaring the
advisability of an amendment to Article Fourth of our Restated Certificate of Incorporation to increase the number of
authorized shares of capital stock from 93 million to 183 million and to increase the number of authorized shares of
common stock from 90 million to 180 million. The specific amendment to Article Fourth being proposed as follows:

The first paragraph of Article Fourth is proposed to be deleted in its entirety. This paragraph currently provides
that:

Fourth: The total number of shares of stock which the Corporation shall have authority to issue is Ninety-
Three Million (93,000,000), consisting of Ninety Million (90,000,000} shares of Common Stock of the par
value of Twenty-Five Cents ($.25) per share and Three Million (3,000,000) shares of Preferred Stock of the
par value of One Dollar ($1.00) per share.

The following paragraph is proposed to be the new first paragraph of Article Fourth:

Fourth: The total number of shares of capital stock which the Corporation shall have authority to issue is
183 Million (183,000,000), consisting of 180 Million (180,000,000) shares of Common Stock of the par
value of Twenty-Five Cents ($.25) per share and Three Million (3,000,000) shares of Preferred Stock of the
par value of One Dollar ($1.00) per share.

If approved, this amendment will become effective upon the filing of a certificate of amendment to our Restated
Certificate of Incorporation with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware, which we would complete promptly after
the annual meeting. )

The persons named in the accompanying proxy card intend to vote each proxy received in favor of the
amendment of the Restated Certificate of Incorporation as set forth above, unless a contrary choice or an abstention is
indicated thereon.
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PROPOSAL 3
Ratification of Appointment of Independent Auditors

Subject to ratification by the shareholders, the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors has appointed Emst &
Young LLP, independent certified public accountants, as independent auditors of Oceaneering for the year ending
December 31, 2008. Representatives of Ernst & Young LLP will be present at the meeting, will be given the opportunity
to make a statement if they so desire and will be available to respond to appropriate questions of any shareholders.

In accordance with our bylaws, the approval of the proposal to ratify the appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as
independent auditors of Oceaneering for the year ending December 31, 2008 requires the affirmative vote of a majority of
the shares of Common Stock voted on this proposal at the meeting. Accordingly, abstentions and broker “non-votes”
matked on proxy cards will not be included in the tabulation of votes cast on this proposal.

The persons named in the accompanying proxy intend to vote such proxy in favor of the ratification of the
appointment of Emst & Young LLP as independent auditors of Oceaneering for the year ending December 31, 2008,
unless a contrary choice is set forth thercon or unless an abstention or broker “non-vote” is indicated thereon.

The following table shows the fees incurred by Oceaneering for the audit and other services provided by Ernst &

Young LLP for 2007 and 2006.
Fees Incurred by Qceaneering for Ernst & Young LLP 2007 2006
Audit Fees (1) . $2,224,000 $2,232,000
Audit-Related Fees (2} 95,000 $132,000
Tax Fees (3) 44,000 86,000
All Other Fees (4) 4,000 - 10,000
Total $2,367,000 $2,460,000

(1) Audit Fees represent fees for professional services provided in connection with; (a) the audit of our financial statements
for the years indicated and the reviews of our financial statements included in our Forms 10-Q during those years; and
(b} audit services provided in connection with other statutory or regulatory filings.

(2) Audit-Related Fees consisted of accounting, consultations, employce benefit plan audits, services related to due
diligence for business transactions, and statutory and regulatory compliance.

(3) Tax Fees consisted of tax compliance and consultation fees.

(4) All Other Fees consisted of a subscription to Emst & Young LLP’s informational on-line service and special purpose
foreign regulatory certifications.

The Audit Committee has concluded that Emst & Young LLP’s provision of services that were not related to the
audit of our financial statements in 2007 was compatible with maintaining that firm’s independence from us.

The Audit Committee has established a policy that requires pre-approval of the audit and non-audit services
performed by our independent auditors. Unless a service proposed to be provided by the independent auditors has been
pre-approved by the Audit Committee under its pre-approval policies and procedures, it will require specific pre-approval
of the engagement terms by the Audit Committee. Under the policy, pre-approved service categories are generally
provided for up to 12 months and must be detailed as to the particular services provided and sufficiently specific and
objective so that no judgments by management are required to determine whether a specific service falls within the scope
of what has been pre-approved. In connection with any pre-approval of services, the independent auditors are required to
provide detailed back-up documentation concerning the specific services to be provided. The Audit Committee does not
delegate to management any of its responsibilities to pre-approve services performed by our independent auditors.

None of the services related to the Audit-Related Fees, Tax Fees or All Other Fees described above were
approved by the Audit Committee pursuant to the waiver of pre-approval provisions set forth in applicable rules of the
SEC.

36




The Audit Committee has delegated to the Chairman of the Audit Committee the authority to pre-approve audit-
related and non-audit-related services not prohibited by law to be performed by Ernst & Young LLP, provided that the
Chairman is required to report any decisions to pre-approve such audit-related or non-audit-related services and fees to the

full Audit Committee at its next regular meeting.

SHAREHOLDER PROPOSALS

Any shareholder who wishes to have a qualified proposal considered for inclusion in our proxy statement for our
2009 Annual Meeting of Shareholders must send notice of the proposal to our Corporate Secretary at our principal
executive offices, 11911 FM 529, Houston, Texas 77041-3000, so that such notice is received no later than December 12,
2008. If you submit such a proposal, you must provide your name, address, the number of shares of Common Stock held
of record or beneficially, the date or dates on which you acquired those shares and documentary support for any claim of

beneficial ownership.

In addition, any shareholder who intends to submit a proposal for consideration at our 2009 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders, regardless of whether the proposal is submitted for inclusion in our proxy statement for that meeting, or
who intends to submit nominees for election as directors at that meeting, must notify our Corporate Secretary. Under our

bylaws, such notice must:

o be received at our executive offices no earlier than November 17, 2008 and no later than clase of business
on January 16, 2009; and

» satisfy requirements that our bylaws specify.
A copy of the pertinent bylaw provisions can be obtained from our Corporate Secretary on written request.

We received no shareholder proposals and no shareholder director nominations for the 2008 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders.

TRANSACTION OF OTHER BUSINESS

Should any other matter requiring the vote of shareholders arise at the meeting, it is intended that proxies will be
voted for or against that matter in accordance with the judgment of the person or persons voting the proxies.

Please return your proxy as soon as possible. Unless a quorum consisting of a majority of the outstanding shares
entitled to vote is represented at the 2008 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, no business can be transacted. Therefore,
please be sure to date and sign your proxy exactly as your name appears on your stock certificate and return it in the
enclosed postage-paid return envelope, or vote by telephone or over the Internet by following the instructions included in
this package. Please act promptly to ensure that you will be represented at the meeting.

WE WILL PROVIDE WITHOUT CHARGE ON THE WRITTEN REQUEST OF ANY PERSON SOLICITED
HEREBY A COPY OF OUR ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K AS FILED WITH THE SECURITIES AND
EXCHANGE COMMISSION FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007. WRITTEN REQUESTS SHOULD BE
MAILED TO GEORGE R. HAUBENREICH, JR., CORPORATE SECRETARY, OCEANEERING INTERNATIONAL,
INC., 11911 FM 529, HOUSTON, TEXAS 77041-3000.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

e ihmit]

George R. Haubenreich, Jr.
Senior Vice President, General Counsel
and Secretary

April 11, 2008
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Appendix A

Oceaneering International, Inc,

Audit Committee Charter

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors (the “Committee™) is appointed by the Board of
Directors (the “Board”) to assist the Board in its oversight of (1) the integrity of the financial statements of the Company,
(2) the compliance by the Company with legal and regulatory requirements, (3) the independence, qualifications and
performance of the Company’s independent auditors and (4) the performance of the Company’s internal audit function.
Pursuant to the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission
(the “SEC"), the Committee shall be directly responsible for the appointment, compensation, retention and oversight of
the work of any registered public accounting firm engaged for the purpose of preparing or issuing an audit report or
performing other audit, review or attest services for the Company. The Committee shall also make regular reports to the
Board and deliver any reports that may from time to time be required by the rules of the New York Stock Exchange (the
“NYSE") or the SEC to be included in the Company’s annual proxy statement or Annual Report on Form 10-K. The
Committee shall have and may exercise all the powers of the Board, except as may be prohibited by law, with respect to
all matters encompassed by this Charter, and all the power and authority required under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

The Committee shall be appointed by the Board and shall consist of not less than three membets of the
Board, each of whom shall serve at the discretion of the Board. The Board shall also elect a chairman of the Committee
(the “Chairman”). The members of the Committec shall meet the independence, expertise, financial literacy and
experience requirements of the NYSE, Section 10A(m)(3) of the Securitics Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the
“Exchange Act”), and the rules and regulations of the SEC. At least one member of the Commuttee shall be an “audit
committee financial expert” as defined by Item 407(d)(5) of Regulation S-K promulgated by the SEC. No member of the
Committee shall simultancously serve on the audit committees of more than two other public companies.

The independent auditors of the Company are ultimately accountable to the Board and the Committee.
The Committee shall have the sole authority to appoint and, where appropriate, replace the Company’s independent
auditors (subject to stockholder ratification} and to approve all audit engagement fees and terms. The Committee shall be
directly responsible for the compensation and oversight of the work of the independent auditors (including resolution of
disagreements between the Company’s management and the independent auditors regarding financial reporting) for the
purpose of preparing or issuing an audit report or related work or performing other audit, review or attest services for the
Company. The independent auditors shall report directly to the Committee.

The Committee shall preapprove all audit, review or attest engagements and permissible non-audit
services, including the fees and terms thereof, to be performed by the independent auditors, subject to, and in compliance
with, the de minimis exception for non-audit services described in Section 10A(i)(1)(B) of the Exchange Act and the
applicable rules and regulations of the SEC.

The Committee may form and delegate authority to subcommittees consisting of one or more members
when appropriate, including the authority to grant preapprovals of audit and permissible non-audit services. Any
decisions of such subcommittee to grant preapprovals shall be reported to the full Committee at its next scheduled
meeting.

The Committee shall:

1. Review and discuss with management and the independent auditors, on an annual
basis, the annual audited financial statements and the disclosures to be made in
management’s discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations
in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K.

2. Make a recommendation to the Board each year as to whether the Company’s annual
audited financial statements for the immediately preceding fiscal year and
accompanying notes should be included in the Company’s Annual Report on Ferm
10-K for such fiscal year.

3. Prepare and approve the audit committee report as required by the SEC to be included

in the Company’s proxy statement for the annual meeting {or in the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K if required to be included therein).
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Review and discuss with management and the independent auditors, on a quarterly
basis, the Company’s quarterly financial staterments and disclosures to be made in
management’s discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations,

pror to the filing of the Company’s Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for such fiscal
quarter, including any matters provided in Statement on Auditing Standards No. 100
arising in connection with the Company’s quarterly financial statements.

Review and discuss with management and the independent auditors:

10.

a. Major issues and judgments (i) regarding accounting principles and financial
statement presentations or (ii) otherwise made in connection with the
preparation of the Company’s financial statements, including any significant
changes in the selection or application of accounting principles, any major
issues concerning the adequacy of the Company’s internal controls, any
special audit steps adopted in light of material control deficiencies and the
adequacy of disclosures about changes in internal control over financial
reporting.

b. Analyses prepared by management and/or the independent auditors setting
forth significant financial reporting issues and judgrments made in connection
with the preparation of the Company’s financial statements, including
analyses of the effects of alternative methods of generally accepted
accounting principles (“GAAP”) on the financial statements.

Review and discuss with management and the independent auditor management’s
annual report on internal control over financial reporting prior to the filing of the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Review and discuss annual reports from the independent auditors on:
a. All critical accounting policies and practices to be used.

b. All alternative treatments of financial information within GAAP that have
been discussed with management, including (1) ramifications of the use of
such alternative disclosures and treatments and (2) the treatment preferred by
the independent auditors.

c. Other material written communications between the independent auditors
and management, such as any management letter provided by the
independent auditors and management’s response to that letter, any
management representation letter, any reports on observations and
recommendations on internal controis, any schedule of unadjusted audit
differences and a listing of adjustments and reclassifications not recorded, if
any, and any engagement or independence letters.

Review with management the Company’s earnings press rcleases, including the use of
any “non-GAAP financial measures,” as well as financial information and earnings
guidance provided to analysts and rating agencies. Such discussion may be done
generally (covering, for example, the types of information to be disclosed and the
types of presentation to be made).

Review with management and the independent auditors the effect of regulatory and
accounting initiatives as well as off-balance sheet structures on the Company’s
financial statements.

Meet periodically with management to review the Company’s major financial risk
exposures and the steps management has taken to monitor and control those
exposures, including the Company’s policies and guidelines conceming risk
assessment and risk management.
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11.

12.

t3.

14,

15.

16.

17.

13.

19.

20.

21.

Discuss with the independent auditors the matters required to be communicated by the
independent auditors pursuant to Statement on Auditing Standards No. 61 relating to
the conduct of the audit, including any problems or difficulties encountered in the
course of the audit work and management’s response, any restrictions on the scope of
activities or access to requested information and any significant disagreements with
management.

Review with management (including the Chief Financial Officer) and the independent
auditors the Company’s internal system of andit and financial controls and the results
of internal audits.

Review the disclosures that the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer make to the Committee and the independent auditors in connection
with the certification process for the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K and
Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q concerning any significant deficiencies or
weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting and
any fraud that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in
the Company's internal control over financial reporting.

Review and evaluate the capabilities and performance of the lead partner of the
independent auditors.

At least annually, obtain and review a report by the independent auditors describing
(i) the independent auditors’ internal quality-control procedures; (ii) any material
issues raised by the most recent internal quality-control review, or peer review, of the
independent auditors, or by any inquiry or investigation by governmental or
professional authorities, within the preceding five years, respecting one or more
independent audits carried out by the firm, and any steps taken to deal with any such
issues; and (iii) all relationships between the independent auditors and the Company
as contemplated by Independence Standards Board Standard No. 1. Evaluate the
independent auditors’ qualifications, performance and independence, including
considering whether the independent auditors’ quality controls are adequate and the
provision of permitted non-audit services is compatible with maintaining the
independent auditors’ independence. In making this evaluation, the Committee shall
take into account the opinions of management and interna)l auditors. The Committee
shall present its conclusions with respect to the independent auditors to the full Board.

Confirm the regular rotation of the audit partners as required by applicable law.
Consider whether there should be regular rotation of the independent auditing firm.

Establish hiring policies for the Company’s employment of the independent auditors’
personnel or former personnel, including those whe participated in any capacity in the
audit of the Company.

Review with the independent auditors any communication or consultation between the
Company’s audit team and the independent auditors’ national office respecting
auditing or accounting issues presented by the engagement.

Meet with the independent auditors prior to the audit to review the planning and
staffing of the audit.

Review the appointment and replacement of the Company’s senior internal auditor.
The senior internal auditor shall make direct, periodic repoits to the Committee
regarding the matters within his or her authority.

At least annually, review with management and the independent auditers the
responsibilities, authority, internal reporting lines, budget and staffing of the internal
auditors and review and approve any changes in the planned scope of the annual
internal audit and any restrictions or limitations thereon. The internal audit function
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22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

28

29.

30.

31.

32

33.

34

(which may be outsourced to a third-party provider other than the independent
auditor) is intended to provide management and the Committee with ongoing
assessments of the Company’s risk management processes and system of internal
controls. Accordingly, the Committce shall also meet, from time to time, separately
with management, the senior internal auditor and the independent auditors to discuss
issues relating to the internal audit function which warrant attention by the
Committee,

Review the results of the internal audit process with management and the senior
internal auditor, including significant findings, management’s responses thereto, and
the status of corrective actions or implementation of recommendations.

Evaluate the budget, activities, organizational structure, and qualifications of the
internal audit department and its impact on the accounting practices, internal controls
and financial reporting of the Company.

Obtain from the independent auditors assurance that Section 10A(b) of the Exchange
Act has not been implicated. !

Make inquiries of management, the Company’s senior internal auditor and the
independent auditors as to their knowledge whether the Company and its subsidiary
and affiliated entities are in conformity with applicable legal requirements and the
Company’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics.

Advise the Board with respect to the Company’s policies and procedures regarding
compliance with applicable laws and regulations and with the Company’s Code of
Business Conduct and Ethics.

Establish and review procedures for the receipt, retention and treatinent of complaints
received by the Company regarding accounting, internal accounting controls or
auditing matters, and the confidential, anonymous submission by employees of the
Company of concems regarding questionable accounting or auditing matters.

Discuss with management and the independent auditor any correspondence with
regulators or governmental agencies and any published reports that raise material
issues regarding the Company’s financial statements or accounting policies.

Review with the Company’s General Counsel legal matters that may have a material
impact on the Company’s financial statements, the Company’s compliance policies
and any material reports or inguiries received from regulators or governmental
agencies. :

In its discretion, conduct or authorize investigations into matters within its scope of
responsibility.

Meet periodically with management (including the Chief Financial Officer and the
General Counsel), the internal auditors and the independent auditors in separate
executive sessions and have such other direct and independent interaction with such
persons from time to time as the members of the Committee deem appropriate.

Review and reassess the adequacy of this Charter annually and recommend any
proposed changes to the Board for approval.

Evaluate annually the Committee’s own performance.

Make regular reports to the Board.
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While the Committee has the responsibilities and powers set forth in this Charter, it is not the duty of
the Committee to plan or conduct audits or 1o determine that the Company’s financial statements are complete and
accurate and are in accordance with GAAP. It is also not the duty of the Committee to conduct investigations, to resolve
any disagreements between management and the independent auditors or to assure compliance with laws and regulations
and the Company’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics.

The Committee shall have the authority to retain and obtain advice and assistance from current or
independent legal, accounting or other advisors without seeking approval of the Board. The Committee may request any
officer or employee of the Company or the Company’s outside counsel or independent auditors to attend a meeting of the
Committee or to meet with any members of, or advisors to, the Committee. The Company shall provide for appropriate
funding, as determined by the Committee, for payment of compensation to the independent auditors for the purpose of
preparing or issuing an audit report or performing other audit, review or attest services for the Company, compensation to
any advisors employed by the Committee, and ordinary administrative expenses of the Committee that are necessary or
appropriate in carrying out its duties.

The Committee will meet as often as the members shall determine to be necessary or appropriate, but at
least four times during each year. The Chairman shall be responsible for scheduling all meetings of the Committee and
providing the Committee with a written agenda for each meeting. The Chairman shall preside at the meeting. In the
absence of the Chairman, the majority of the members of the Committee present at a meeting shall appoint a member to
preside at the meeting. In addition, the Committee shall make itself available to the independent auditors and the internal
auditors of the Company as requested. A majority of the Committee members shall constitute a quorum. The Committee
shall cause to be kept adequate written minutes of all its proceedings. The Committee may meet by teleconference and
may take action by unanimous written consent as permitted by Delaware law. Reports of meetings of the Committee shalt
be made to the Board at its next regularly scheduled meeting following the Committee meeting, accompanied by any
recommendations to the Board approved by the Committee.




Using a black ink pen, mark your votes with an X as shown in X
this example. Please do not write outside the designated areas.

Electronic Voting Instructions
You can vote by Internet or telephone!
Available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week!

Instead of mailing your proxy, you may choose ane cf the two voting
methods oullined below to vote your proxy.

VALIDATION DETAILS ARE LOCATED BELOW IN THE TITLE BAR.

Proxies submitted by the Internet or telephone must be received by
11:00 p.m., Central Time, on May 15, 2008.

|:| Vote by Internet
+Log on to the Intenet and go to
www.investorvote.com/oli
* Follow the steps outiined on the secured website,
#eou  Vote by telephone
B » Call oll free 1-800-652-VOTE (8683) within the Uniled

States, Canada & Puerto Rico any time on a touch tone
telephone. There is NO CHARGE to you for the call.

* Follow the instructions provided by the recorded message.

Annual Meeting Proxy Card

< > b1

W IF YOU HAVE NOT VOTED VIA THE INTERNET QR TELEPHONE, FOLD ALONG THE PERFORATION, DETACH AND RETURN THE BOTTOM PORTION IN THE ENCLOSED ENVELOPE. W

Proposals — The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR all the nominees listed and FOR Proposals 2 and 3.

1. Election of Directors: For Withheld
01- T, Jay Colins |:| D 02 - D. Michael Hughes

For  Against Abstain
2. Proposal to amend the Restated Cerlificate of Incorporation D D D
to increase the nurmber of authorized shares of capital stock
from 93,000,000 to 183,000,000 and increase the number
of authorized shares of Common Stock from 90,000,000
to 180,000,000,

EJ Non-Voting Items
Change of Address — Please print new addrass below,

For Withhold

allm +

For  Against Abstain

3. Proposal to ratify the appointment of Emnst & Young LLP as D D D
independent auditors for the year ending December 31, 2008.

4. In their discretion, the proxies are authorized lo vote upon such other business as may
properly come before the meeting or any adjoumment thereof, including procedural
matters and matters relating 1o the conduct of the meeting.

Authorized Signatures — This section must be completed for your vote to be counted. — Date and Sign Below
Pleass sign exactly as name(s) appears herean. Joint owners should each sign. When signing as atiomey, executor, administrator, corperate officer, trustes, guardian, or custodian, please give

full tide.
Date {mmidd/yyyy} — Please print date below. Signature 1 — Please keep signature within the box. Signature 2 — Please keep signature within the box.
| 22AV Oll1 -4

001CD40033

QOUNGC

016908_COMPANY_BLANKS_1_3271054 1 5/000005/00000%A




W [F YOU HAVE NOT VOTED VIA THE INTERNET OR TELEPHONE, FOLD ALONG THE PERFORATION, DETACH AND RETURN THE BOTTOM PORTION IN THE ENCLOSED ENVELOPE. ¥

®

(OCEANEERING,

Proxy — Oceaneering International

Notice of 2008 Annual Meeting of Shareholders
Proxy Solicited on behalf of the Board of Directors for the 2008 Annual Meeting

M. Kevin MeEvoy and George R. Haubenreich, Jr., and each of them individually, are hereby appointed as agents and proxies, with full power of substitution
and resubstitution, to vote all the shares of common stock of the undersigned in Oceaneering Intemational, Inc., held of record by the undersigned on
March 24, 2008, at the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on May 16, 2008 at Oceaneering's regional offices at 5004 Railroad Ave.,
Morgan City, Louisiana 70380, and at any adjoumment or postponement thereof, as indicated on the reverse side hereof.

The undersigned acknowledges receipt of Oceaneering's annual report for the year ended December 31, 2007 and the Notice of the 2008 Annual Meeting
of Shareholders and related Proxy Statement.

This proxy, when praperly executed, will be voted as directed herein. If no direction is made, this Proxy will be voted FOR Proposals 1, 2 and 3. |
The proxy holders named above also will vote in their discretion on any other matter that may properly come before the meeting. |

! You are encouraged to specify your choices by marking the appropriate boxes on the reverse side. The proxies cannot vote your shares unless
you sign and return this card or vote by telephone or Internet as described below before the Annual Meeting.

Voting by telephorie or Internet eliminates the need to return this proxy card. Your vote authorizes the proxies named on the reverse side to vote
your shares to the same extent as if you had marked, signed, dated and returned the proxy card. Before voting, read the proxy statement and .
voting instructions form. Follow the steps listed on the reverse side. Your vote will be immediately confirmed and posted. Thank you for voting.

{ltems {0 be voted appear on reverse side.)




| éGeneral Information

:CorPORATE OFFICE

OcEANEERING INTERNATIONAL, INC.
‘rigrr FM 529

%HOUSTON,TX 77041-3000

PO, Box 40494

EHOUSTON,TX 77240-04094
éTF_LEPHONE: (713) 329-4500

FAx (713) 329-4951
{WWW.OCEANEERING.COM

{Srock Symeor: OIl

::S-rocx TRARED on NYSE

ECUSIP NUMBER: 675232102

{ PLEASE DIRECT COMMUNICATIONS CONCERNING
ESTOCK TRANSFER REQUIREMENTS OR LOST

ECERT]FICATES TO OUR TRANSFER AGENT.

‘TRANSFER AGENT AND
‘REGISTRAR

CompuTersHARE TrRUsT CoMpany, NLA.
EP.O. Box 43078

Provinesnce, Rl o02940-3078

i OvernigHT DELIVERIES:
i250 Rovarl STReEET

-Canron, MA ozozi-rorr

EOH AccounT INFORMATION
EWWW’.CDMPUTERSHARE.COM

ETELEPHONE: {781) 575-2579

FAX (781) 575-3605

Hearing ImpatreD/TDD: {800) 952-9245

Design by Origin Design, Houston, Texas

www.otigindesign.com

ANNUAL SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING

;DATE: May 16, 2008

;TIME: 8:30 a.M. CDT

‘;LOCA’TION: OCEANEERING INTERNATIONAL, INC.
5 oo4 RaiLroaD AVENUE

EMDRGAN City, LA 70380

InpEPENDENT PusLic
‘ACCOUNTANTS

i:ERNST & Youns LLP

5 Houston CenTER

%1401 McKinnEY, SUITE 1200
EHOUSTON,TX 77010-4033

CounsEL
EBAKER Borrs L.L.P.
?ONF. SHELL PLaza

‘910 Lourstana STREET

Houston, TX 77002-4995

GENERAL INFORMATION :: 2007 ANNUAL REPORT

‘Prnoto CREDITS

AT A GLANCE

4., SUBSEA PrODUCTS 1 ScoTT WIGINGTON

- 2 Sunsea ProjecTs i: Conrab Picou
[ - InspECTION : MaARTIN HOCKLEY
5 Apvancep TECHNOLOGIES =

CourTesy U.S. Navy

{OPERATIONS

:EPAGF.
6 ........ ROV ManuracTuring FaciLiTy =

Dagryr RunpquisT

- JH— Toowr Recovery ©: Epwarp GALLOwAY
17 e VEHICLE 1N HANGAR @ Jorn Svrom
i S VEHICLE RECOVERY 2

AvLexanpr KonstanTinov

- SO IWQCS = RoperT Pucxitt
10 ... ELecrronic Cavteer 2 GrEG Grosz
T REepaIR & CONNECTOR SYSTEM ::

Dyrx ReynoLps

O UnmsiLicar DisTriBUTION SYSTEM @

Van VanDEcAPELLE

9 ........ UmsiricaL Loapour :: Bor Hess
;10 ...... SAT DepLovMENT i: Lours FourGrre
510 ...... SILS® :: Don THorNE

27 .. OcEAN PROJECT 8 OICEAN INSPECTOR 1

CHaRrRLES WaTson

3311 ...... Dry Hagrtat :: CHARLES WaTson
1. WELDER :: CHARLES WATSON

120 UrTrasonic INSPECTION &

MarTin HockLey

313 ...... Corros1oN SCREENING :: Jim McNas
513 ...... X-Ray Hapirar = Jim McNag
14 Ocrdn PrODUCER :: JaN PAWELSK1
14 Water MoNITORING :: BEN NEwTOR

15...... SusmarinE :: CourTesy U.S. Navy
15...... Lanping Crarr :: CourTrsy U.S. Navy
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